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DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty First Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Accounts
for the year ended 31* March 2007.

Financial Results :
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2007 is summarized below:

{Rupees in Crores)

Particulars 2006 - 07 2005 - 06
Total Income 81.19 62.48
Gross Operating Profit 50.47 32.53
Less: Interest 2.16 1.57
Less: Depreciation 3.33 2.61

Add: Impact of change in accounting policy - -
Less: Prior Period Expenses - -

Profit before Tax 44.98 28.35

Less: Provision for Taxation
- Current 11.15 6.10
- Deferred 0.22 0.93
- Excess provision written back - {0.02)
- Fringe benefit 0.14 0.14
Net profit after tax 33.91 21.20

Performance :

During the year 2006-07, your Company has achieved a 45.95% increase in turnover at Rs. 91.19 Crores compared to
Rs. 62.48 Crores of pravious year. The Gross Cperating Profit was higher by 55.15% at Rs. 50.47 Crores from the previous year
Rs. 32.53 Crores and the Profit before tax is higher by 58.66 % in the current year at Rs. 44.98 Crores compared to
Rs. 28.35 Crores of the previous year.

During the year 2006-07, your Company and its subsidiaries (consolidated) has achieved a 44.42% increase in turnover at
Rs. 124.16 Crores compared to Rs. 85.98 Crores of previous year. The Gross Operating Profit was higher by 48.65% at
Rs. 57.14 Crores from the previous year Rs. 38.44 Crores and the Profit before tax is higher by 48.65% in the current year at
Rs. 50.21 Crores compared to Rs. 33.81 Crores of the previous year.

Your Directors are also pleased to inform you that the operating margins have also improved compared to the previous year
due to better room realizations and various cost control measures undertaken by your Company.

The Audit Committee of the Company reviewed the audited financial statements for the year 2006-07 at its meeting held on
15" June 2007 and recommended the same for the approval of the Board of Directors.

Dividend :

Your Directors have recommended a dividend @ 60% on the paid-up equity share capital of Rs. 27, 23, 39,650 for the financial
vear 2006-07, considering the excellent financial results of the Company. The outflow of funds on account of declaration of
dividend would be Rs. 19.12 crores including tax on dividend.

Your Directors propose to transfer an amount of Rs. 3.39 crores to General Reserves and carry the balance of profits to next
year.




Future outlook :

The growing economy :

Over the last few years, the country has witnessed a large influx of business travelers in the country owing to relaxation of the
Government's stand on Foreign Direct Investments {FDI) for most of the sectors in the country. The hotel industry has greatly
benefited from opening up of the aviation industry in the country. With the growth of the economy expected to continue, the
hospitality industry is bound to expand provided it is able to overcome the hurdles and meet the growing expectations of the
immensely interested tourists and travelers.

The growing hospitality industry :

India is not only a growing hospitality market but profitable as well. Over the last three years, the hospitality industry has
witnessed active interest and has transformed the country as a huge development destination. The Industry is growing at a rate
of 15% annually. The current supply of 110,000 rooms is inadequate either to meet the demand of 4.4 million tourists who visited
India last year — a figure that, according to the tourism ministry, will touch 10 million in 2010,

Hospitality Industry in Bangalore :

The Hospitality Industry in Bangalore is upbeat, with increase in average occupancies of the hotels and the city is emerging as
International Business destination. With Industrial growth (including the Hospitality Industry} likely to remain strong, your
Company's overall performance and operating results are expected to further improve in the current year. With the various
expansion plans and the expectation of improvements in the business and tourism growth, the outlook for the company
promises to be brighter in the coming years.

Expansion & Renovation :
Existing Properties : Bangalore

During the year your Company has completed its plans for renovation of existing property, viz., Royal Orchid Central and Royal
Orchid Harsha in Bangalore.

New Properties: Mumbai, laipur, New Delhi and Hyderabad.

During the year, your Company has acquired 99% share in M/s. Royal Orchid Hyderabad Private Limited and M/s. Royal Crchid
South Private Limited. Also during the year M/s Royal Crchid East Private Limited became the subsidiary of your company. Further
during the year, M/s. A B Holdings Private Limited and M/ Royal Orchid Jaipur Private Limited became wholly owned subsidiary
of your Company.

Your Company has entered into a Management agreement with Royal Orchid Golden Suites {Pune).
The new hotel — Royal Orchid Central at Pune is scheduled to commence its operations by October 2007.
Listing :

Your Company’s shares are listed in the National Stock Exchange {NSE) and the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE}. There are no
payments outstanding to the said Stock Exchanges towards listing fees etc.

Change of Registrars and Share Transfer Agents :

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of your company for hoth physical and demat segments have been changed from M/is. MCS
Limited, Mumbai to M/s. Alpha Systems Private Limited, Bangalore with a view to provide better service to the shareholders.
Transfer of data and records are completed.

Term Loans:

Your Directors are happy to report that the overall interest on the term loans has been reduced during the year due to continued
low cost debt. Your Company got the benefit of reduction in interest rates during the year.

Subsidiary Companies :

As per requirement of Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956 the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31" March 2007
and the Balance Sheet as on that date and the reports of Directors and Auditors of M/, lcon Hospitality Private Limited,

4




ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

M/s. Maruti Comforts & Inn Private Limited, M/s. Royal Crchid Hyderabad Private Limited, M/s. Royal Orchid South Private Limited,
M/s. Royal Orchid East private Limited, M/s. Royal Orchid Jaipur Private Limited and M/s. A B Holding Private Limited, statement
of the holding company’s interest in the subsidiary companies are attached to the Balance Sheet of the company.

As per the requirement of Accounting Standard - 21 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report thereon are annexed.

Directors :

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. RV.5.Rao and Mr. Sunil
Sikka, Directors, retire by rotation and are eligible for re-appointment. Your Board recommends the above re-appeointment of
Directors as it is in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. R. V. 5. Rao, Independent Director of your Company, is acting as a Director on the Board of M/s. Icon Hospitality Private Limited
{material non-listed Indian subsidiary company) 1o comply with the requirements of Corporate Governance as per Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement of Stock Exchanges.

During the year, Mr. Arjun Baljee was co opted as additional director and holds his office up to this Annual General Meeting. Your
Board recommends the above re-appeintment of Directors as it is in the best interests of the Company.

Auditors and their Report :

M/s. Walker, Chandiok & Ce., Chartered Accountants, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for
re-appointment. Your Directors propose the re-appointment of M/s. Walker, Chandiok & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the Next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Reply in respect of Para no. {iv) of Annexure of the Auditor’s Report

The Internal Control Procedures were put in place for the purchase of fixed assets and sale of services. However, in view of the
growth in the scale of operations, new measures have been initiated and implemented to strengthen the existing Internal
Control Procedures.

Public Deposits :
During the year under review, your Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA} of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the representations
received from the Management, hereby confirms that;

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there are no
material departures.

ii. It has in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and has applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31" March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

iii. WK has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should be recognized
while relying on any system of internal control and records.

iv. It has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

Management Discussion and Analysis and Corporate Governance:

A report on Management Discussicn and Analysis, a report on compliance of Corporate Governance and a Certificate from
Practicing Company Secretary to that effect are annexed and forms part of this report.

Employees :

The details of Employees as specified under Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 is annexed and forms part of this report.




Human Resources :

The company assigns a great deal of importance to this most precious resource. lt has a full-fledged Hurman Resource Department
that seeks to attract and recruit the best possible talent and groom it to fulfill its vision for the future. The directors wish to
acknowledge the efforts of all employees in raising the performance of the company. Industrial relations throughout the year
continued to remain cordial.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo :

Energy conservation efforts in the Company are being pursued on a continuous basis. Close monitoring of power consumption is
maintained to minimize wastage and facilitate optimum utilization of energy. Regular maintenance and repairs of all the
equipments and machineries are carried out to ensure optimum efficiency.

The Company continues to absorb and upgrade modern technologies and advanced hotel managerment technigues in various
guest contact areas, which includes wireless Internet connectivity at all the hotels.

During the year 2006-07, your Company earned Foreign Exchange of Rs. 4,242.43 Lakhs as against Rs. 3,235.27 Lakhs in the
previous year. The outgo on account of commission and others is Rs. 9.54 Lakhs as against Rs. 2.13 Lakhs in the previous year.

Acknowledgments :

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish to place on record their sincere thanks and appreciation for the
co-operation received by the Company from customers, suppliers, investors, bankers, Central and State Governments and other
statutory authorities and others associated with the Company.

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering outstanding services. Your Directors also thank all the
stakeholders for their unstinted support and confidence reposed by them in the Management and lock forward to their
continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Bangalore Chander K. Baljee
Date : 15.06.2007 Chairman

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS” REPORY

Infermation as required under Section 217(2A) of the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules 1975 and foerming part of
Director's Report for the year ended 31 March 2007.

sl Name of the Designation/ Age Qualification/ | Remuneration | Commencement Last
No. Employee Nature {yrs.} Experience (Rs. In lacs}) of Employment
of duties Employment
1 Mr. Chander K. Managing 56 MBA ([IMA} 138.66 22.06.2000 NA
Baljee Directar
2. Mr. Arjun Baljee | President 28 | Management 264 01.05.2006 Oberoi Group
Projects graduate from

Brisbane Schools
{Australia) and
[IM {Bangalore)

3 Mr. Anil Kaul Senior 58 Graduate from 14.81 14.08.2006 Oberoci Group
Vice President - Gberoi 5chool of
Operations Hotel
Management

Remuneration includes all allowances, perquisites and commission.

Place : Bangalore Chander K. Baljee
Date : 15.06.2007 Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1.

Indian Economy

India is the world’s 6th largest economy growing at a strong rate of 8% a year. Both the manufacturing and service
sectors are performing well. India’s total exports registered a growth of 21.6% in 2005-06 as compared with 2004-05
and imports registered a growth of 31.8% in 2005-06 as compared with 2004-05. India’s foreign exchange reserves
during the first week of April 2007 reached US$ 200 billion for the first time (US$ 145 billion as an March 2006).

India is now among the fastest growing economies in the world, exhibiting strong performance during 2006-07, led
by sustained growth in the industry and the service sectors. The GDP compaosition is well diversified across different
sectors with robust growth in agriculture, industry and services sector. This is mainly due to good monsoon, impressive
growth of manufacturing and service sectors and a higher share of service sector (at 54%]) in the GDP.

Industry Qutlook
Tourist arrivals remain healthy:

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have
touched an all time high. Success of the "Incredible India” campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing
infrastructure thrust by the government and India’s emergence as an outscurcing hub has led to a 13.3% surge in
foreign tourist arrivals in calendar year 2006 over the previous year.

The increasing demand:

In 2006-07, hotels across India benefited from higher demand from the commercial travel segment. As demand
continues to be higher than supply in most of the cities with stable occupancies, the demand base has been substituted
with increased rates t¢ augment the performance of the hotels. India is currently seen as a huge growth market,
with demand for hotel rooms far outstripping the supply. Key cities, such as Bangalore, have seen major investment
from foreign destinations with many companies intreducing or re-locating their operational offices into the country.
With the demand from IT, IteS and the financial service sector in cities such as Bangalore and Hyderabad growing, the
demand for rooms in these cities is on a rise.

The growing hospitality industry:

India is not only a growing hospitality market but profitable as well. Qver the last three years, the hospitality industry
has witnessed active interest and has transformed the country as a huge development destination, The Industry is
growing at a rate of 15% annually. it is gathering steam and is poised for a boom not only in terms of tourist arrivals
but also with regard to GDP as the direct and indirect contribution of the tourism sector to the total GDP is 5.83%.
The tourist arrivals in the country grew by 13.3% to 4.4 million during the year 2006 compared to the last year.

The outlook:

Thanks to the relaxing Foreign Direct Investments (FDI) policy for most of the sectors, the country has witnessed a
large influx of business travelers. The hotel industry has greatly benefited from opening up of the aviation industry
in the country. With the growth of the economy expected to continue, the hospitality industry is bound to expand
provided it is able to overcome the hurdles and meet the growing expectations of the immensely interested tourists
and travelers.

Market Review
Bangalore the booming city:

In line with the trend in hospitality industry in the country, Bangalore has witnessed a major demand for hotel rooms,
augmenting the average room rates, with the city becoming a host for various national and international events. The
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overall occupancies in the city have been increased as compared to the previous year. New international Airport
situated at Yelhanka in Bangalore will be commissioned by 2nd April 2008, Vendors movement already started. Your
company will expect better room realizations by 2008.

Foreign Business travelers:

Foreign currency is pumping big time into the Bangalore hotels because of increased overseas traffic. Bangalore has
left Mumbai and Delhi behind in this regard. Foreign Business travelers were increased during the year 2006-07. The
high influx of Foreign Business travelers is helping the industry and keeping the average room rates high. Business
travelers have really boomed in the recent past with Bangalore continuing to attract big companies.

The demand supply mismatch.

With growing business, domestic and international leisure travel, room demand is going to rise further. Though
there is a huge room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction,
the demand supply mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next year. By the middle of 2008 we might see
some capacities coming in. Till that time room rates are expected to rise further.

Financials

During the year your Company has achieved turnover of Rs. 91.19 crores as against Rs. 62.48 crores in the previous year
and recorded Profit after Tax of Rs. 33.91 crores as against Rs. 21.20 crores in the previous year.

Highlights of the year are as follows:

- Increase in room revenues by 30%.
- Increase in ARR by 16.65%.
- F & B revenues increased by 47.12%.

Risks and Concerns

Hotel business in general is sensitive to fluctuations in the economy. The hotel secter may be unfavourably affected by
changesin global and domestic economies, changes in local market conditions, excess rocom supply, reduced international
or local demand for hotel rooms and associates services, competition in the industry, government policies and
regulations, fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates and cther natural and social factors. Since
demand for hotels is affected by world economic growth, a global recession could lead to a downturn in the hotel
industry. The Hotel industry faces risk from volatile socio-political environment, internationally as well as within the
country.

India, being one of the fastest growing economies in the world in the recent past, continues to attract investments.
However, any adverse events such as political instability, conflict between nations, terrorist attacks or spread of any
epidemic or security threats to any countries may affect the level of travel and business activity.

Your Company earns its entire revenues from Indian operations. Moreover, your Company’s operations are currently
concentrated more in Bangalore, making it susceptible to demestic socio-political and economic conditions. Your
Company aims to increase its presence nationally to reduce it's over dependence in one market. Continuing its
efforts in that direction and to mitigate this risk to an extent, your Company is also looking at various other locations
for expansions.

The hotel industry needs quality employees and with demand for the same improving across the industry, the
Company feels that wage inflation would be a critical factor in determining costs for the Company. Thus,
your Company will continue to focus on improving manpower efficiencies and creating a lean organization, while
maximizing effectiveness in terms of customer service and satisfaction, which is an area of great importance for your
Company.
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Internal Control Systems and adequacy

Your company is committed to maintain high standards of Internal Control & Procedures. The Internal Control System
is an essential element of the Corporate Governance and plays a key role in identifying, minimizing and managing
risks that are significant for the Company, contributing to the safeguarding of stakeholders investments and the
Company’s assets. Your Company has established and is maintaining adequate controls within the system to ensure
the completeness, accuracy, and authority of all financial information and of all other information that forms the
basis for calculation of financial information or is used for management control and accountability. The adequacy
and effectiveness of internal controls are monitored regularly by the Internal Auditors and remedial measures are
adopted, wherever necessary.

The Audit Committee of the Company meets periodically to review and recommend guarterly, half yearly and annual
financial statements of the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the important findings of the Internal Auditors
during their audits, periodically. The Committee also holds discussions with the internal auditors, statutery auditors
and the management on the matters relating to internal controls, auditing and financial reporting. The Committes
also reviews with the statutory auditors, the scope and results of the audits.

Human Resources

Your company assigns a great deal of importance to this most precious resource. It has a full fledged human rescurce
department that seeks to attract and recruit the best possible talent and groom it to fulfill its vision for the future. The
directors wish to acknowledge the efforts of all employees in raising the performance of the company.

Your Company believes that employees are the key to achieve goals and are the primary source of competitive
advantage. Your Company believes that training is the important tool to enhance the capabilities of people and
performance of the organization. Therefore on and off the job training programs are organized through internal
and external resources. To achieve high levels in guest satisfaction, your Company has been consistently investing in
training and developing the employees to surpass the expectations of the customers. Further, the Company has
stable and experienced middle and senior level management team.

The Industrial relations during the year under review, continued to remain cordial with no interruption of the
operations of the company.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Management Biscussion and Analysis describing the Company's abjectives, projections, estimates
and expectations may be 'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.

As 'forward locking statements’ are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events over which the
Company exercises no control, the Company cannot guarantee their accuracy nor can it warrant that the same will
be realized by the Company. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Significant factors
that could make a difference to the Company's operations include domestic and international econemic conditions
affecting demand, supply and price conditions in the hospitality industry, changes in government regulations, tax
regimes and cther statutes.




COHRPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company strongly believes that corporate governance is a framework to encourage the efficient use of resources and
have accountahility for the stewardship of those resources. The aim is to align as nearly as possible the interests of all
stakeholders.

Your company is firmly committed to continue to excel in its journey towards best Corporate Governance practices prevailing
in the industry and adhere to the highest standards of corporate values and ethics. The company has been consistently
striving towards enhancement of value for all its stakeholders.

Your company always seeks to attain its performance rules with integrity and is dedicated to increase value by maximizing
returns to investors, being transparent and maintaining high degree of disclosure levels. Your company would continually
endeavour to further refine the existing systems to place stakeholder's interest as its foremost priority.

The mandatory requirements as per the Listing Agreement under Corporate Governance as complied by the Company are
given as under;

1. Company Philosophy on code of Governance:

The basic philosophy of corporate governance is to enhance the value of all stakeholders. In this regard the company
is committed to transparency in its dealings, efficiency & guality in services, utmast integrity in its conduct and total
compliance with regulatory norms.

2. Board of Directors:

The Board consists of 5 Directors (one managing director, three non-executive independent directors and one
non-executive director). The Independent Directors take active part at the Board and Committee meetings, which adds
value in the decision making process. More than two-thirds of the Board comprise of non-executive directors. As on 31st
March, 2007, the composition of the Board is given herein below:

- One Promoter, Executive, Non-Independent Director
- One Promoter, Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
- Three Non-Executive, Independent Directors

3. Board Meeting :

During the year 2006-07, the Board met 5 times on 27.04.2006, 12.06.2006, 28.07.2006, 27.10.2006, and 30.01.2007.
The maximum time gap between any two meetings was not more than four calendar months.

The names and categories of directors, their attendance at the board meetings, number of Directorships and Committee
memberships held by them in other companies are given hereunder:

Name Category Board AGM No. of other No. of other Committee
Meeting | attendance | Directorship positions held
attendance Member Chairman

Mr. Chander K. | Promoter-

Baljee Managing Director 5 Yes 12 - -

Mr. Sunil Sikka Promotear— 4 No - - -
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Naresh Independent 5 Yes 10 2 2

K. Malhotra Director

Mr. Jaithirth Rao | Independent 2 No 13 1 1
Director

Mr. R. V. 5. Rao | Independent Director 5 Yes 5 - -

Nane of the Directors is a member in more than ten committees and acts as a chairman in more than five committees
across all companies in which he is a director.
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Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Agreement of Stock Exchanges on Corporate Governance, the informaticn
about the Directors propeosed to be appointed / re-appointed is given as an Annexure.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee presently consists of Mr. Naresh K. Malhotra, Mr. R. V. 5. Rac and Mr. Jaithirth Rao, all Non
Executive Independent Directors and is headed by Mr. Naresh K. Malhotra. The Vice President-Finance is a permanent
invitee for the meetings. The Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors are also invited to the meeting. The Company
Secretary functions as Secretary to the Committee.

During the financial year 2006-07, the Audit Committee has met 4 times, i.e., on 12.06.2006, 28.07.2006, 27.10.2006,
30.01.2007, During these meetings, the Committee, inter alia, reviewed the financial statements including changes in
accounting policies and practices before submission to the Board, recommended the appointment of statutory and
internal auditors including fixation of audit fee, discussed the internal auditors findings and reviewed the company's
financial and risk management policies.

The attendance details for the Committee meetings are as follows:

Name Designation Attendance
Mr. Naresh K. Malhotra Chairman of the Committee -
Independent, Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Jaithirth Rao Independent, Non-Executive Director 1
Mr. R. V. 5. Rao Independent, Non-Executive Director 4

The Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Jaithirth Rao, Mr. Naresh K. Malhotra and Mr. R. V. S. Rao and is
headed by Mr. Jaithirth Rao, all three of whom are Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Committee met
once during the year 2006-07.

Details of remuneration/commission to the Directors for the year 2006-07:

Sl. No. Name of Director Salary Benefits Commission Total
1. Mr. Chander K. Baljee 72,00,000 17,04,827 44.10,217 1,45,91,050
2. Mr. Sunil Sikka - - 11,02,554 11,02,554
3. Mr. Naresh K. Malhotra - - 11,02,554 11,02,554
4. Mr. Jaithirth Rao - - 11,02,554 11,02,554
5. Mr. R. V. 5. Rao - - 11,02,554 11,02,554

Investors’ Grievances and Share Transfer Committee

The Investors' Grievances & Share Transfer Committee comprises of Mr. R. V. S. Rao, Mr. Naresh K. Malhotra and
Mr. Chander K. Baljee and is headed by Mr. R. V. 5. Rao. The respensibilities of the Committee include redressal of all
shareholders complaints and grievances. The Company has received 154 complaints during the Quarter ended 31.03.2007,
all were redressed and none were pending as at 31.03.2007.

Mr. A. Someswara Rao, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company and is the Secretary to all the
above Committees.
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Code of Conduct

The Company has a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in place, as prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India. The Board monitors the implementation of the Code and takes on record the status reports
detailing the dealings in securities by the Specified Persons.

The Board of Directors has already adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel.
This Code is a comprehensive code applicakle to all Directors, Executives and members of the Senior Management. A
copy of the Code has been put on the Company’'s website www.royalorchidhotels.com.

The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel and compliance of
the same has been affirmed by them. A declaration signed by the Managing Director in this regard is given below:

I hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senicr Management Personnel of the Company,
affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct framed for Directors and Senior
Management Personnel in respect of the financial year 2006-07.

Chander K. Baljee
Managing Director

General Body Meetings

Annual General Meetings

Year Date Time Venue
2003-04 30.09.2004 11.00 A.M. Registered Office
2004-05 28.09.2005 11.00 A.M. Registered Office
2005-06 13.09.2006 11.00 AM. Registered Office

During the year 2006-07 no Extracrdinary General Meetings were held.
Disclosures

& There were no transactions of material nature with its promoters, the Directors or the Management, their
subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the company.

&  Therewere no instances of non compliances nor have any penalties/ strictures been imposed by any stock exchange
or SEBI or any statutory authority during the last three years on any matter related to the capital markets.

Means of Communication

Quarterly results The Quarterly results of the company is published in news papers

Half yearly results The Half yearly results of the company is published in news papers

Any website where displayed: http:/Awww.royalorchidhotels.com:

Annual financial statements, Quarterly reports and the Shareholding pattern
etc, of the company are also posted on the Company Website.

Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it
mandatory for companies to file information through the internet on their
website http /www.sebiedifar.nic.in/ vide the Electronic Date Informatien and
Retrieval System (EDIFAR} which is an automated system for filing, retrieval and
dissemination of price sensitive corporate information. Accordingly the company
applied for EDIFAR registration during the year and awaiting registration.




Whether website also displays
official news Releases and the
presentations made to
Institutional investors or

to the analysts

Newspapers in which results
are normally Published

Whether Management Discussion
and Analysis is a part of the
Annual Report

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting :

Date and Time :
Venue :

Book Closure Dates :

Dividend Payment Date :

Financial Calendar 20007-08

Financial Reporting

For the quarter ended 30.06.2007 :

For the quarter ending 30.09.2007 :
For the quarter ending 31.12.2007 ;
For the guarter ending 31.03.2008 :

Listing of Equity Shares on :
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The financial results and official news releases are also displayed on the
website of the company

Economic Times
Udayavani.

Yes

08.08.2007 at 11:00 am
Hotel Royal Orchid

No. 1, Golf Avenue
Adjoining KGA Golf Course
Airport Road

Bangalore - 560 008

1. Demat Shareholders -
2. Physical Sharehodlers -

Friday 03.08.07 at the end of business hours.
06.08.2007 - Monday to 08.08.2007 -
Wednesday (Both days inclusive)

The dividend at 60%, if approved, at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
will be paid to the eligible shareholders within 30 days from the date of
declaration.

July 2007
October 2007
January 2008
April/May 2008

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor

Plot No. C/1, 5th Block

Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra {E}
Mumbai - 400 051

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Phiroze Jegjbhoy Towers,

Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 01
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Stock Code

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
ISIN Numbers in NSDL & CDSL

ROHLTD
532699
INE2ZB3HO1019

Listing fees for and up to the year 2007-08 have been paid to hoth the ahove Stock Exchanges where shares are listed.

Market Price Data

The following is the data of high and low closing guotations of Equity Shares of the Company during April 2006 to March
2007. The Equity shares of the Company got listed with Stock Exchanges on 06.02.2006.

Month National Stock Exchange (NSE) Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

Month’s High Month's Low Month's High Month's Low

Price Price Price Price

April 2006 215.95 182.25 219.85 175.25
May 2006 191.55 141.80 209.90 140.00
June 2006 139.65 99 .45 148.50 96.30
July 2006 141.45 124.70 146.00 119.50
August 2006 172.25 138.65 176.00 135.30
September 2006 178.65 167.20 183.20 164.00
October 2006 193.20 177.05 203.80 174.50
November 2006 191.55 178.25 193.95 176.45
December 2006 202.05 182.65 204.50 181.00
January 2006 217.9¢ 196.30 220.00 190.50
February 2007 213.35 188.85 215.70 185.00
March 2007 208.55 187.45 210.25 180.05

Share Transfer System

Ahout 99% of the equity shares are held in dematerialized form. The share certificates in physical form are generally
processed and returned within 30 days from the date of receipt, if the share transfer documents are clear in all respects.

Secretarial Audit

Secretarial Audit is being carried out every quarter by a Practicing Company Secretary and the Audit Report is placed
before the Board for its perusal and filed regularly with the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 317 March 2007

No. of shares held No. of % of share No. of % of total
shares capital shareholders No. of

shareholders

Up to 500 1245980 97.49 19788 4,58
501 to 1000 215594 1.29 262 0.79
1001 to 2000 189361 0.59 19 0.70
2001 to 3000 87352 017 34 0.32
3001 to 4000 56885 0.08 16 0.21
4001 to 5000 90276 0.09 19 0.33
5001 to 10000 117388 0.08 17 0.43
10001 and above 25230629 .21 42 92.64
TOTAL 27233965 100.00 20297 100.00
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11. Dematerialisation of Shares & Facility of simultaneous transfer

Approximately 99% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company has been dematerialized as on 31st March 2007.
Trading in equity shares of the company is permitted only in dematerialized form as per notification issued by SEBI.
Shareholders interested in dematerializing their shares are requested to write to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

through their Depository Participants.

12. Unit Locations :

13. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

i. HOTEL ROYAL ORCHID
No. 1, Golf Avenue
Adjoining KGA Golf Course
Airport Road, Bangalore - 560 008

ii. ROYAL ORCHID CENTRAL
No. 4711, Manipal Centre
Dickenson Road
Bangalore — 560 042

iii. ROYAL ORCHID HARSHA
No. 11, Park Road, Shivajinagar
Bangalore - 560 051

iv. ROYAL ORCHID RESORTS
{Doddi's Resorts)
Allasandra, Bellary Road, Yelahanka
Near Jakkur Flying Club
Bangalore — 560 065

v. ROYAL ORCHID METROPOLE
5, Ihansi Lakshmibai Road
Mysore — 570 005

vi. ROYAL ORCHID BRINDAVAN GARDEN
Brindavan Garden, Krishna Raja Sagar
Mysore, Karnataka.

vii. ROYAL ORCHID CENTRAL JAIPUR
Af2 Bani Park,
Jaipur 302 016, India.

Alpha Systems Private Limited,
30, Ramana Residency,

4t Cross, Sampige Road,
Malleswaram,

Bangalore — 560003,

Tel. No.080 - 23460815 - 818
Fax No.080 - 23460819

Email ID: alfint@vsnl.com
Contact person & designation :
S Guruswamy Babu

Company Secretary

Note: Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all correspondence to their respective depository

participants.

14. Address for Correspondence :

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Royal Orchid Hotels Limited

No. 1, Golf Avenue

Adjoining KGA Galf Course

Airpert Road, Bangalore — 560 008
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CERTIFICATE ON (OHRPORATE GOVERNANCE
To the Members of Royal Orchid Hotels Limited

I have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by ROYAL CRCHID HOTELS LIMITED {"the Company™},
for the year ended on 31 March 2007, as stipulated in clause 49 of the listing agreement of the said Company with stock
exchange(s}.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited
to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the
corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, | certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned listing agreement(s).

| state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records
maintained by the investors’ grievance committee.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

G Shanker Prasad
Practicing Company Secretary
CP.No - 6450
Bangalore
15% June, 2007

CERTIFICATE BY CEQ/CRO

Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, it is hereby certified that for the
financial year ended 31st March 2007:

1. lAwve have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge
and belief, these statements:

(i) do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

(i} together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the hest of cur knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year that are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. liwe accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that liwe have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reperting and IAve have
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which lAwve are aware and the steps liwe have taken or propose to take, to rectify these deficiencies.

4. lfwe have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud, if any, of which liwe have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place : Bangalore Chander K. Baljee
Date : 15.06.2007 Managing Director
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ANNEXURE
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Details of Directors seeking re appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company (Pursuant to Clause 49
of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange)

Qualifications

Expertise in specific functional areas

List of Companies in which outside
Directorship held as on 31.03.2007

Chairman / Member of the
* Committees of other
Companies on which heis a
Director as on 31.03.2007

Commerce and Law Graduate and a
Fellow of Indian Institute of Bankers,
Bombay.

Had served as Executive Director of
HDFC and now is appointed in
Ptarmigan Capital Investment
Advisors Private Limited as

Non Executive Chairman for

Indian Cperations.

1. Icon Hospitality Private Limited

2. Puravankara Projects Limited

3. Nilgiries Dairy Private Limited

4. Shobha Developers Private Limited

5. Ptarmigan Capital Investment Advisors Pvt Ltd
Nil

Name of the Director Mr. R.V.5. Rao Mr. Sunil Sikka
Date of Birth 15.03.1944 24.08.1957
Date of Appointment 28.09.2005 28.09.2005

Post graduate in commerce

Has experience in export
business

Nil

Nil

* The Committees include the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Shareholders'/Investor Grievance

Committee.
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AUDITORS” REPORT

To

The Members of Royal Orchid Hotels Limited

1.

18

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Royal Crchid Hotels Limited {*the Company’} as at 31 March 2007, and also
the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 as amended by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) {Amendment)
Order, 2004 (‘the Order') issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956 {the 'Act’), we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the
said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

i} We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
neacessary for the purposes of our audit;

i) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of those books;

iii)  The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account;

iv) In our opinion and to the bhest of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements, read together with the notes thereon, comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section
(3C) of Section 211 of the Act, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, in the case of:

i) the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2007;
i) the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
i) the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

v)  On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31 March 2007 and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March 2007 from being appointed
as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section {1) of Section 274 of the Act.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh
Partner
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore
15 June 2007
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORSY" REPORT

Annexure t¢ the auditor's report of even date to the members of Royal Orchid Hotels Limited {'the Company’). on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

In terms of the information and explanaticns given to us and the bocks and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we report that:

(i}

(i)

{iii)

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

{vii)

{viii)

(ix}

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

{b)} All the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regqular
programme of verification which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its fixed assets. As informed, based on this verification no material discrepancies were noted on such
verification.

{¢) In our opinion, a substantial part of fixed assets have not been disposed off during the year.

{a) Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In ocur opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

{b} The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

{c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and discrepancies were observed on physical verification,
which have been appropriately adjusted in the financial statements.

{a) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 4(iii)(b}, 4(iii}{c} and
4(iii)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has not taken any lcans, secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4 (iii} {(f} and 4 {iii) {(g) of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business for the sale of goods and services. However, the internal control procedures for the
purchase of fixed assets and inventory are inadeguate as Company policies are not formally documented and
therefore cannot be verified.

{a) We are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301 of the Act have
been entered in the register maintained under that section.

{b}) Owing to the unigue and specialized nature of the items involved and in the absence of any comparable prices, we
are unable to comment whether the transactions made in pursuance of the contracts or arrangements referred to
in Section 301 of the Act were made at prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{vi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of business.

To the best of our knowledge, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause
(d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act for the products of the Company and accordingly, the provisicns of clause
A{viii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor
education fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, custom duty, excise
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()

(xi}

{xii)

{xiii)

{xiv}

()

{xvi)

{xvii)

{xviii)

{xix)

(xx)

{xx1)

duty and cess with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, wealth-
tax, service-tax, sales-tax, customs duty and excise duty were outstanding, at the year end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable,

{b} There are no amounts in respect of sales tax, income tax, customs duty, wealth tax, service tax, excise duty and cess
that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the
current and immediately preceding financial year.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or a bank. The Company has not issued
or repaid any debentures during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities and accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinicn, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhif mutual benefit fund/ society. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 4A(xiii) of the QOrder are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{xiv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 4{xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

Based on an overall examination of the balance sheet and cash flow statement of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment

The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{xviii) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{xix) of
the Crder are not applicable to the Company.

We have verified that the end use of the monies raised hy the public issue is as stated in the notes to the financial
statements.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by
the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh
Partner
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore
15 June 2007
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BALANCE SHEEY

ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

Schedule 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Capital 1 272,339,650 272,339,650
Reserves and surplus 2 4,372,980,838 1,225,089,917
$,645,320,488 1,497,429,567
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans 3 220,768,018 269,351,992
220,768,018 269,351,992
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY, NET 4 33,000,000 35,200,000
1,899,088,506 1,801,981,559
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 5
Gross block 530,648,269 434,823,424
Less: Accumulated depreciation/amortisation 109,807,488 76,473,941
Net block 420,840,781 358,349,483
Capital work-in-progress including capital advances 3,370,096 8,403,598
424,210,877 366,753,081
INVESTMENTS [ 107,749,000 2,049,000
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 7 5,039,481 5,388,165
Sundry debtors 8 44,259,496 34,222,268
Unbilled revenues 2,496,437 6,282,627
Cash and bank balances 9 1,210,272,005 1,401,533,640
Leans and advances 10 385,250,333 167,124,658
1,647,317,746 1,614,551,358
LESS : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Liabilities 11 83,897,747 81,825,107
Provisions 12 196,291,350 155,546,773
280,189,117 241,371,880
NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,367,128,629 1,373,179,478
1,899,088,506 1,801,981,559
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the finandial statements.

This is the balance sheet referred 1o in our report of even date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh
Partner
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore
15t June 2007

Bangalore

Chander K. Baljee
Managing Director

15" June 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Naresh K. Malhotra

Director

A Someswara Rao
Company Secretary
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Schedule | 31* March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
INCOME
Operating income 13 811,399,400 604,170,862
Other income 14 100,451,904 20,636,020
911,851,304 624,806,882
EXPENDITURE
Food and beverages consumed 15 64,083,974 44,236,545
Employee costs 16 73,292,481 55,270,026
Other operating expenses 17 129,002,534 102,580,284
Selling, general and administrative expenses 18 140,818,691 97.398,111
Interest 19 21,557,837 15,753,431
Depreciation 5 33,333,547 26,050,364
462,089,064 341,288,761
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 44%,762,240 283518121
Provision for income tax
- Current {111,500,000) {61,000,000)
- Deferred 2,200,000 {9,300,000)
- Fringe Benefit Tax (1,397,055) {1,374,318)
- Provision for income tax of prior years written back - 200,000
PROFIT AFTER TAX 339,065,185 212,043,803
Balance brought forward from the previous year 72,101,442 133,729,362
Balance available for appropriation 411,166,627 345,773,165
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed dividend {163,403,790) (136,169,825)
Tax on distribution of dividend (27,770,474} {19,097,818)
Transfer to general reserve (33,944,202) (21,204,380)
Bonus shares issued - (97,199,700}
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 186,048,161 72,101,442
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Par value - Rs. 10}
Basic and diluted 12.45 10.10
{Refer Note 3 in Schedule 20)
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the profit and loss account referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Aashish Arjun Singh
Partner
Membership No. 210122

Naresh K. Malhotra
Director

Chander K. Baljee
Managing Director

A Someswara Rao
Company Secretary

Bangalore
15 June 2007

Bangalore
154 June 2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

SCHEDULE 1
CAPITAL

Authorised

30,000,000 (31 March, 2006 : 30,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up

27,233,965 (31 March, 2006 ; 27,233,965) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
300,000,000 300,000,000
272,339,650 272,339,650
272,339,650 272,339,650

Note:

a) Of the above 6,000,000 (31 March 2006: 6,000,000) equity shares have been allotted as fully paid up, by capitalizing the
interest free refundable deposit due to the Managing Director. Pursuant to an agreement entered between the Company
and the Managing Director, in 1992, the Company has been granted the right to use his interest in the land leased from
the Karnataka $tate Tourism Development Corporation {KSTDC') pertaining to the Royal Orchid Hotel, for the period of

the lease arrangement.

b) At the Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2005, the members of the Company approved a bonus issue of
one equity share for every equity share held on 1 September 2005. Conseguently, of the above outstanding shares,
9,718,970 (31 March 2006 - 8,719,970} equity shares have been allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares by

capitalising the balance in the profit and loss account.

¢)  Onlanuary 30, 2006, the Company issued 6,820,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs.155 per equity share

through an Initial Public Offer {'IPQ") of equity shares. (Refer Schedule 2).

SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS

Share Premium

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Premium received on equity shares issued during the year
Less: Utilisation towards IPO issue expenses

Balance at the end of the year

Foreign Exchange Earnings Reserve

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Transfer during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Profit and Loss Account
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Net profit for the year

Less: Proposed dividend

Less: Tax on distribution of dividend
Less: Transfer to general reserve
Less : Issue of bonus shares
Balance at the end of the year

31 March 2007 315t March 2006
Rs. Rs.
4.130,684,095 -
- 1,202,109,600
- 71,425,505
1.130,684,095 1,130,684,095
4,100,000 1,100,000
21,204,380 -
33,944,202 21,204,380
55,148,582 21,204,380
72,101,442 133,729,362
339,065,185 212,043,803
411,166,627 345,773,165
163,403,790 136,169,825
27,770,474 19,097,818
33,944,202 21,204,380
- 97,199,700
186,048,161 72,101,442
1,372,980,838 1,225,089,917

Note:

a) Share premium includes Rs 1,057,100,000 received on allotment of 6,820,000 equity shares pursuant to the Company’s IPO

in lanuary 2006. Refer Schedule 1.

b) At the Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2005, the members of the Company approved a bonus issue of
one equity share for every equity share held on 1 September 2005. Of the above outstanding shares, 9,719,970
(31 March 2006 - 9,719,970} equity shares have been allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares by capitalising the

balance in the profit and loss account.
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31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS
Term loans from banks (a) 213,650,992 263,650,987
QOther loans (b} 5,292,328 4,289,459
Interest accrued and due on term loans 1,824 698 1,411,546
220,768,018 269,351,992

Notes:
a) During the year ended 31 March 2004, the Company availed a term loan facility of Rs 250 million from the Housing and

Lrban Development Corporation of India (‘'HUDCQ') for the expansion activities of the Company that carried an interest
rate of 11.25 % per annum which was subsequently revised to 9.75 % per annum. Gf the above, the Company availed
Rs 208 millicn with the balance facility remaining unutilised. This loan was repayable in 36 quarterly instalments of
Rs 6.9 million each ending in June 2013 and was secured against the land and buildings of Royal Orchid Hotel and Royal
Orchid Harsha with an escrow over the collections from sales settled through credit cards at both hotels.

Additionally, this borrowing was backed by the personal guarantees of Mr. Chander K. Baljee, the Managing Director of
the Company and Mrs. Sunita Baljee, Diractor of the Company and a corporate guarantee from Baljees Hotels and Real
Estates Private Limited, a company under the same management.

On 16 December 2004, the Company was sanctioned a term loan from the State Bank of Hyderabad (‘the Bank') for
Rs 300 millicn. The company drew down Rs. 192 million of which Rs.154 million was utilised towards the repayment of the
loan outstanding from HUDCO with the balance of Rs.38 million being utilised for the purposes of the expansion by the
Company. This loan carries an interest rate of 3 % below the Prime Lending Rate ('PLR’) of the Bank subject to a maximum
of 9.75 % per annum in the previous year. This loan is secured by way of an equitable mortgage of the land and building
of the Royal Orchid Hotel and a first charge on the present and future fixed assets of the Company. The key covenants
include cost overruns on expansion being met directly by the Company, and new plant and machinery acquired to he
insured jointly in the names of the Company and the Bank. Further, the arrangement also requires all expenditure in
excess of the budgets and any other expansion activities to be pre-approved by the Bank.

Additionally, this borrowing has alsc been backed by the personal guarantees of Mr Chander K. Baljee, the Managing
Director and Mrs Sunita Baljee, Director of the Company and a corporate guarantee from Baljees Hotels and Real Estates
Private Limited. This loan is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments of Rs 12.5 million each, commencing from 31 December 2005.

b) Other loans represent loans taken to purchase vehicles that are secured by the hypothecation of the vehicles concerned.
These loans carry interest rates varying from 6.29 % to 8.5 % and are repayable through 2010.
Amounts due in one year are as follows:
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
Term loans 50,080,000 50,000,000
Other loans 1,536,821 1,465,612
51,536,821 51,465,612
SCHEDULE 4

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY, NET
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :

Depreciation

Less: deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Employee benefits

Provision for doubtful debts

Lease rentals allowable on payment basis

35,898,815 37,801,389
713,349 1,321,646
1,508,845 688,536
676,621 591,207
33,000,000 35,200,000

Note:
The Company is eligible for a deduction of 30 percent of its profits from the Royal Orchid Hotel, being a new industrial undertaking
as defined under Section 80IB of the Income-tax Act, 1961. This benefit is available for a period of ten consecutive years ending
on 31 March 2010. Consequently, the deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2007 have been recorded to the extent of

the timing differences that reverse outside the tax holiday period.
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Gross block Accurnulated Depreciation Net blodk
Categories of Assets Balance Additions Deletions Balance Balance Deletions Charge Balance Asat Asat
As at1 April during during Asat3TMarch | Asat? April during forthe | Asat3TMarch | 31 March 31 March
2006 theyear theyear 007 206 theyear year 01 207 2006
Goodwill . 4554452 4554452 . 555,790 555,790 3998662 -
Buildings 187308563 10,500,268 197898831 1713351 5291877 DAXES | AT5AT0B | 170174602
Plantand machinery 103195876 35,556,282 1R/7IB | 1403730 7ATRE7 BEUMT | W0OSSEN | 81792146
Office Eguipment 7360679 1215157 - 857583 2352038 558,171 291029 565627 5008641
Computers and related
software 7,051,654 3166947 - 10218601 2925124 13873% 4312522 5906073 4126530
Furniture and fixtures 118,606,509 16682528 - | 13289037 | 30878078 1583472 6714550 | B9SM4E7 | BR7IRA31
Vehides 10300143 24059211 - 335934 1,781010 225202 0622 | 0332 8519133
TOTAL BASBLRY ERABE - 530618269 TeATRMN 333350 109307488 | 420840781 | 358349483
Prioryear WABGIAT | 149955017 - | 4M8BAM | S04BET 26060364 AT | 39483 | 234M08%0
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 6
INVESTMENTS
[Long Term, unquoted, at cost {non-traded)]
Investment in Government Securities 225,000 25,000
Investment in Subsidiaries
(Unqguoted and fully paid up)
Icon Hespitality Private Limited 3,073,000 3,073,000
(30,730 {2006 - 30,730) Equity Shares of Rs.100 each)
Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited 58,849,000 58,849,000
(209,100 (2005 - 209,100} Equity Shares of Rs.100 each)
Royal Orchid Hyderabad Private Limited 17,602,000 102,000
(1,760,200 {2006 - 10,200) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each)
Royal Orchid Jaipur Private Limited 16,500,000 -
(1,650,000 {2006 — Nil) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each)
AB Holdings Private Limited 2,500,000 -
(250,000 (2006 — Nil} Equity Shares of Rs 10 each)
Royal Orchid South Private Limited 9,000,000 -
(90,000 (2006 - Nil) Equity Shares of Rs 100 each) 107,749,000 62,049,000
Note:
During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company purchased and
sold 1,544,183,857 units of mutual funds for a gain of Rs 7,721,320.
SCHEDULE 7
INVENTORIES
Food and heverages 3,000,700 3,191,339
Stores and spare parts 2,038,781 2,196,826
5,039,481 5.388,165
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31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 8
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months:
- Considered good - 50,072
- Considered doubtful 6,403,724 2,518,504
6,403,724 2,568,576
Other debts
- Considered good 44,259,490 34,172,196
- Considered doubtful - 403,727
50,663,214 34,575,923
Less : Provision for doubtful debts 6,403,724 2,922,231
44,259,490 34,222,268
A reconciliation of the provision for doubtful debts is provided below :
Balance at the beginning of the year 2922231 692,912
Add: Additional provisicns created during the year 4,966,642 2,229,319
Less: Debts written off 1,485,149 -
Balance at the end of the year 6,403,724 2,922,231
SCHEDULE 9
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash balances on hand 1,057,150 424,085
Demand drafts on hand - 5,100,000
Banks balances with Scheduled banks :
In current accounts {a) 42,220,344 203,385,491
In exchange earners foreign currency account 855,557 5,607,094
In deposit account (b} 1,151,701,933 1,171,611,719
In margin money (© 14,437,021 15,405,251
1,210,272,005 1,401,533,640
Note:

a} At 31 March 2007, current accounts include Rs. 5,511,556 (31 March 2006 —Rs 82,489,172} representing unutilised proceeds
from the Company's IPO.

b} As at 31 March 2007, deposit accounts include unutilised public issue proceeds amounting to Rs 1,031,664,797

{2006 - Rs 1,000,000,00C) which has been temporarily invested with banks until utilization for the specific objects of the
IPO.

<} Margin money represents bank guarantee given by the Company for imports at concessional duty rates under various
Export Promotion Capital Goods {{EPCG’) licenses and proposed projects and letters of credit for imported purchases.
These deposits are to be released between years 2012 and 2014,
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315t March 2007

31 March 2006

Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 10
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits {(a) 118,457,720 94,378,527
Prepaid Expenses 13,873,189 11,536,321
Loan to subsidiaries 190,317,397 16,242,226
Advances to suppliers 5,001,102 2,047,442
Dues frem subsidiaries 7,725,009 19,269,735
Advance tax (net of provision) 15,314,645 4,572,871
Interest Accrued and not due 22,735,401 14,522,839
Others 11,825,870 4,554,697
Total 385,250,333 167,124,658
Note:

a} Security deposits includes Rs 60,000,000 (31 March 2006 — Rs 60,000,000) being a interest-free, refundable security deposit
with the Managing Director for his 50 percent interest in the land taken on |ease from the KSTDC for the Royal Orchid
Hotel. This deposit is repayable on the expiration of the lease agreement with the KSTDC. (Refer Notes 4 and 9 in

Schedule 20).

Security deposits also include Rs 11,253,000 {31 March 2006 — 11,253,000} being amount paid to National 5tock Exchange
as a security deposit for the public issue of equity shares in accordance with Clause 42 of the Listing Agreement. This
deposit is refundable on receipt of a No-Cbjection Certificate from the Securities Exchange Board of India in accordance

with the SEBI {Disclosure and Investor Protection} Guidelines, 2000.

31+ March 2007

31 March 2006

Rs. Rs.

SCHEDULE 11
LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors 20,840,646 27,149,330
Accrued expenses 24,745,836 18,457,218
Dues to employees 7,111,061 5,561,768
Duties and taxes payable 16,894,984 15,735,787
Dues to related parties (a} - 441,793
Dues to directors 5,969,893 5,725,979
Security deposits {b} 2,980,000 2,894,710
Other liabilities 5,355,347 5,858,522

83,897,767 81,825,107

Note:

a) Dues to related parties represent amounts dues to companies under the same management. The maximum amount
outstanding during the year ended 31 March 2007 was Rs.441,793(31 March 2006 - 441,793}
b} Security deposit includes Rs 2,980,000 (31 March 2006 — Rs 2,500,000} received from an entity under the same management
for premises space provided to them for no charge. This amount is repayable on vacation of the aforesaid premises. (Refer

Note 9 in Schedule 20).

¢) Based on information available with the Company, there are ne amounts due to small scale industrial undertakings.
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31* March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 12
PROVISIONS
Provision for |eave encashment 2,669,244 1,756,349
Provision for gratuity 2,447,842 2,522,781
Proposed dividend 163,403,790 136,169,825
Tax on proposed dividend 27,770,474 19,097,818
196,291,350 159,546,773
A reconciliation of the provision for leave encashment is provided below:
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,756,349 450,435
Add: Additional provisions created during the year 1,190,308 1,315,108
Less: Paid during the year 277,413 9,194
Balance at the end of the year 2,669,244 1,756,349
A reconciliation of the provision for gratuity is provided below:
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,522,781 1,343,869
Add: Additional provisions created during the year 329,126 1,233,596
Less: Paid during the year 404,065 54,684
Balance at the end of the year 2,447,842 2,522,781
SCHEDULE 13
OPERATING INCOME
Room revenues 583,085,518 439,279,509
Food and beverages 192,317,506 136,163,606
Professional consultancy fee 3,398,043 -
Management fees 14,921,616 11,684,455
Other service charges 17,676,717 17,043,292
811,399,400 604,170,862
SCHEDULE 14
QTHER INCOME
Interest income [TDS - Rs.19,176,033 (31 March 2006 - Rs. 3,904,609] 86,552,671 17,076,809
Gain on sale of investments 7,721,320 -
Miscellaneous income 6,177,913 3,559,211
100,451,904 20,636,020
SCHEDULE 15
FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED
Opening stock 3,191,339 2,444,224
Add: Purchases during the year 63,893,335 44,983,660
67,084,674 47,427,884
Less: Closing stock 3,000,700 3,191,339
Consumption for the year 64,083,974 44,236,545

Note:
Consumption above is net of Rs 3,636,059 for the year ended 31 March 2007 (31 March 2006 — Rs 2,638,764), representing
amounts utilised for internal consumption which has been classified under staff welfare.
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31+ March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 16
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries, wages and bonus 63,174,958 45,604,256
Contribution to provident fund 3,453,757 2,865,170
Staff welfare 6,334,640 5,878,978
Gratuity 329,126 921,622
73,292,481 55,270,026
Note:
Staff welfare above includes Rs 3,636,059 (31 March 2006 - Rs 2,638,764),
representing amounts utilised for internal consumption.
SCHEDULE 17
OTHER QOPERATING EXPENSES
Linen and room supplies 18,587,612 9,538,344
Catering supplies 4,276,384 2,647,448
Other kitchen supplies 6,912,585 6,025,696
Linen, uniform washing and laundry expenses 6,025,003 5.438,316
Power, fuel and water 38,405,243 31,371,172
Lease rent for hotel properties 28,550,672 22,443,580
Hire charges 4,047,496 3,285,000
Other rental charges 377.414 -
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 18,869,095 4,305,231
- Machinery 734,760 1,899,236
- Furniture and fixtures - 6,847,187
- Others 2,216,270 8,779,074
129,002,534 102,580,284
SCHEDULE 18
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Commission, brokerage and discount 28,154,390 20,139,057
Rates and taxes 18,273,506 8,996,596
Advertising and business promotion 14,009,047 11,167,483
Legal and professional charges 10,387,541 6,047,202
Communication costs 7,430,872 6,998,294
Printing and staticnary 7,204,411 4,560,521
Travelling and conveyance 7.246,581 5,058,127
Directors’ remuneration 8,904,827 4,419,491
Directors’ commission 9,522,988 5,587,282
Security charges 3,147,010 2,990,894
Audit fees 982,026 913,009
Provision for doubtful debts 4,966,642 2,229,319
Bad debts written off - 891,980
Insurance 2,130,666 1,796,659
Advances written off - 2,274,834
Music and entertainment 1,933,874 2,600,237
Carriage inwards 1,254,435 1,534,187
Bank charges 629,189 495,767
Loss on disposal of Investments - 427,000
Miscellaneous expenses 14,240,686 8,270,172
140,818,691 97,398,111
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317 March 2007

31 March 2006

Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 16
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries, wages and bonus 63,174,958 45,604,256
Contribution to provident fund 3,453,757 2,865,170
Staff welfare 6,334,640 5,878,978
Gratuity 329,126 921,622
73,292,431 55,270,026
Note:
Staff welfare above includes Rs 3,636,059 (31 March 2006 - Rs 2,638,764),
representing amounts utilised for internal consumption.
SCHEDULE 17
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Linen and room supplies 18,587,612 9,538,344
Catering supplies 4,276,384 2,647,448
Other kitchen supplies 5,912,585 6,025,696
Linen, uniform washing and laundry expenses 6,025,003 5,438,316
Power, fuel and water 38,405,243 31,371,172
Lease rent for hotel properties 28,550,672 22,443,580
Hire charges 4,047 496 3,285,000
Other rental charges 377.414 -
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 18,869,095 4,305,231
- Machinery 734,760 1,899,236
- Furniture and fixtures - 6,847,187
- QOthers 2.216,270 8,779,074
129,002,534 102,580,284
SCHEDULE 18
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Commission, brokerage and discount 28,154,390 20,139,057
Rates and taxes 18,273,506 8,996,596
Advertising and business promotion 14,009,047 11,167,483
Legal and professional charges 10.387.541 6,047,202
Communication costs 7,430,872 6,998,294
Printing and stationary 7,204,411 4,560,521
Travelling and conveyance 7,246,581 5,058,127
Directors’ remuneration 8,904,827 4,419,491
Directors’ commission 9,922,988 5,587,282
Security charges 3,147,010 2,990,894
Audit fees 982,026 913,009
Provision for doubtful debts 4,966,642 2,229,319
Bad debts written off - 891,980
Insurance 2,130,666 1,796,659
Advances written off - 2,274,834
Music and entertainment 1,933,874 2,600,237
Carriage inwards 1,254,435 1,534,187
Bank charges 629,189 495,767
Loss on disposal of Investments - 427,000
Miscellaneous expenses 14,240 686 8,270,172
140,818,691 97,398,111
SCHEDULE 19
INTEREST
Interest on term loan 21,173,367 15,376,072
Interest on vehicle loan 384,470 322,137
Interest on overdraft - 55,222
21,557,837 15,753,431
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE - 20

1.

Background

Royal Orchid Hotels Limited (“the Company') was incorporated on 3 January 1986 as Universal Resorts Limited to carry on
the business and management of hotelstholiday resorts and related services. The name of the Company was changed to
Royal Orchid Hotels Limited on 10 April 1897. The Company currently operates three hotel properties - Royal Crchid Hotel,
Bangalore, Royal Orchid Harsha, Bangalore and Royal Orchid Metropole, a heritage property in Mysore. Additionally the
Company has also entered into a hotel operation agreement for the Royal Orchid Central, with its subsidiary, lcon
Hospitality Private Limited, and Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited for which the Company receives an annual
management fee,

The Company acquired the business of Royal Orchid Harsha effective 1 July 2002 on an ongoing basis. Prior to 1 July 2002,
Royal Orchid Harsha was managed and operated by a company under the same management. Pursuant to this
arrangement, the Company has net acquired the underlying land, building and the related assets, which continue to be
leased from the owners. Consequently, in the financial statements of the Company, only the transactions and related
working capital balances, such as sundry debtors and creditors, have been included with that of the Company.

During the year, the Company has acquired the ongoing husiness of Presidency Caterers {an entity under the same
management). The goodwill disclosed in schedule 5 represents the excess of consideration paid over the net assets of
the business acquired and is amortised over a period of 5 years.

The Company has leased Royal Orchid Metropole (including the land and buildings), from the Government of Karnataka
for a non-cancellable period of 15 years. For further details refer Note 4.

Significant accounting policies

i Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAlI'). The
accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

if.  Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates used by
management in the preparation of these financial statements include the estimates of the economic useful lives of
the fixed assets and provisions for bad and doubtful debts.

il Revenue recognition

Revenues comprise income from the sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services during a guest's stay at
the hotel. Room revenue is recognized based on occupation and revenues from sale of food and beverages and
other allied services, as the services are rendered.

Unbilled revenues represent revenues recognized which have not been billed to the customers at the balance sheet
date and are billed subsequently.
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Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. All costs relating to acquisition
and installation of fixed assets are capitalised. Advances paid towards acquisition of fixed assets before the financial
year-end are classified as capital work in progress.

Financing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets are also included to the extent they relate to the period till
such assets are ready to be put to use.

Expenditure directly relating to expansion is capitalized only if it increases the life or functionality of an asset
beyond its original standard of performance.

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line method, using the higher of the rates specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or rates based on management estimates of the economic useful lives of
such assets. These rates are spetified below:

Asset Category Rates of Depreciation (%)
Plant and machinery 4.75% - 20%
Office equipment 4.75%
Computers and related equipment, including software 16.21%
Furniture & fittings 9.50%
Vehicles 9.50%

Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Improvements to
buildings are amortized over the period of the lease.

Goodwill

Goodwill an consolidation is not amortised and is tested for impairment on an annual basis. Goedwill on acquisition
of entities is amartised over a period of five years.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognised in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

nvestiments

Investments made in subsidiaries of the Company are treated as long term investments and are carried at cost.
However, provision for diminution in value is made 1o recognise a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments.

inventory

Inventory comprises stock of food and beverages and operating supplies and is carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition
and is determined on a Weighted Average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.
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Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary
foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance
sheet date. The differences in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign
currency transactions, other than those related to fixed assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Exchange
differences in respect of liabilities incurred to acquire fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying cost of fixed assets.

Leases
Finance feases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between
the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are
charged directly against income. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

For hotel properties i.e. land and buildings, taken on leases along with related assets as a part of a combined lease
arrangement, the Company determines whether these assets acquired are integral to the land and building. If
these assets are integral, the Company analyses the nature of the lease arrangement on a combined basis for all
assets. If the assets are not integral to the land and building, the Company evaluates each asset individually, to
determine the nature of the lease.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term,
capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss
account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirerment benefits

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan in accordance with the rules of the Company based on
an actuarial valuation carried out at the balance sheet date, by an independent actuary. Contributions payable to
the recognized Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme, which are defined contribution schemes,
are charged to the profit and loss account.

Leave encashment

The Company provides for the leave encashment liability at the balance sheet date based on the accumulated
leave balance of the employees and the last drawn salary.

Taxes on income

Tax expense comprises hoth current and deferred taxes. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year
timing differences hetween taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets are recognised
on carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses anly if there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax
assets can be realised against future taxable profits.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised.
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share
to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and contingenit fiabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclasure
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of cutflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Earnings Per Share {('EPS’)

Year ended Year ended

31+ March 2007 | 31* March 2006

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 27,233,965 20,994,370
(Rs) {Rs.)

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders 339,065,185 212,043,803
Basic and diluted earnings per share 12.45 10.10
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

On 28 September 2005, at the Annual General Meeting members of the Company approved the issuance of a bonus
share for every equity share held in the Company on 1 September 2005. For the purpose of calculating EPS, the effect of
the bonus issue has been considered for all periods presented.

Leases

Operating leases

The key operating lease arrangements entered into by the Company are summarised below:

Hotel Royal Orchid

The Company has entered inte various non-cancellable tri-partite agreements along with its Managing Director and the
Karnataka State Tourism Development Corporation ('KSTDC') to lease lands on which the hotel premises has been
constructed and adjacent areas. The primary lease periods for these agreements is 30 years and are further extendable
by a period between 10 to 30 years at the option of the Company and carry an escalation provision for the increase in
annual rent by 15 % every 10 years thereafter.

Additionally, the Company has also entered into an agreement with its managing director for the use of his 50%
interest in the leased lands with the value of this consideration being determined at Rs 80 million, payable as an interest
free security deposit repayable on the termination of the lease with KSTDC. This consideration could be discharged
either in cash or through the issue of equity shares of the Company. The Company discharged this consideration through
the allotment of 6 million equity shares at par through July 1999, (Refer Schedule 1 and Schedule 11).
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Royal Orchid Harsha

Effective July 2002, the Company entered into a tri-partite agreement with Hotel Stay Longer Private Limited and Baljees
Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited, Companies under the same management, to lease the hotel premises and
related assets at Royal Orchid Harsha. This agreement was for an initial period of 11 months, renewable at the option
of the Company and it has deposited an interest-free security deposit of Rs 10 million with Baljee Hotels and Real Estate
Private Limited which is repayable on the termination of the lease agreement.

This agreement has been revised effective 1 September 2005 for a period of eleven months with an option to renew for
a further 22 months. As per the agreement, the Company is required to make annual payments at 33 % of gross room
revenues or a minimum committed amount, whichever is higher. This lease charge is paid to Hotel Stay Longer Private
Limited and Baljees Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited at a pre-determined ratio of 20% and 80% respectively.
(Refer Note 9).

Royal Orchid Metropole

In May 2004, the Company entered into a lease agreement with Jungle Lodges and Resorts Limited {'JLR"), a Government
of Karnataka Undertaking for the use of the land and building representing Royal Orchid Metropole at Mysore for a
nen-cancellable period of 15 years. As a consideration, the Company is required to pay an annual amount comprising a
fixed charge per annum and a revenue share representing 10% of the annual revenues in excess of Rs 25 million,

Royal Orchid Brindavan

In March 2006, the Company entered into a lease agreement with Jungle Lodges and Resorts Limited {'JLR"}, a Government
of Karnataka Undertaking for the use of the land and building representing Hotel Krishna Raja 5agar at Mysore for a
nen-cancellable period of 15 years commencing from the readiness date. As a consideration, the Company is required to
pay an annual amount comprising a fixed charge per annum and a revenue share representing 10% of the annual
revenues in excess of Rs 25 million..

Praperty at Hyderabad

In December 2004, the Company has entered into a lease arrangement for leasing a hotel property in Hyderabad. This
arrangement has an initial period of 25 years which commence on the handover of the constructed property to the
Company by the lessor. The lease rent comprises a fixed rate per square foot constructed which maybe enhanced by
12% every three years from the commencement of the lease period. In the event that the Company withdraws from the
arrangement during the construction period, the Company is liable to pay the lessor, asum of Rs 5 million if the withdrawal
is within 12 months of the date of construction and Rs 10 million, if the withdrawal is after that period. During the year
this lease has bheen assigned to the company's subsidiary, Royal Crchid Hotels Hyderabad Private Limited.

Lease expenses

The lease expense for cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases during the year ended 31 March 2007 was
Rs 28,550,672 (31 March 2006 — Rs 22,443,580).

The details of lease commitments in terms of minimum lease payments within the non-cancellable period are as follows:

2007 2006
Rs. Rs.

Payments falling due:
Within 1 year 11,828,611 11,303,611
Later than one year but not later than five years 37,196,073 35,066,157
Later than 5 years 120,982,973 130,941,500
170,007,657 177,311,268

The above commitment does not include the lease payments amounting to Rs.137 million in respect of Royal Orchid
Brindavan, Mysore payable over 15 years from the date of readiness.
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Utilization of proceeds from the Initial Public Offering ('IPC")

During the year ended 31 March 20086, the Company has raised funds through a public issue of 6,820,000 equity shares of
a par value of Rs.10 each, at a premium of Rs 155 per share, aggregating to Rs.1,125.30 million. At 31 March 2007, the
proceeds of the issue have been utilized as under:

Year ended Year ended

31=*March ,2007 31 March ,2006

Rs. Rs.

Proceeds from public issue/opening balance 1,082,489,172 1,125,300,000
Add: Interest received during the year 79,137,000 9,487,055
Less: Funds withdrawn towards IPO expenses 19,125,622 52,299,883
Funds withdrawn for investment in projects/subsidiaries 70,004,197 -
Funds withdrawn for payment of security deposit for hotel properties 35,320,000 -
1,037,176,353 1,082,489,172

Other commitments and contingencies

aj

b}

¢}

Litigatiorn

The Company has been named as a defendant in two civil suits filed restraining the Company from using certain parts
of land taken on lease from the KSTDC for the operation of the Royal Orchid Hotel, which are adjacent to the hotel
premises. Consequently, these lands are currently not being utilised by the Company. These cases are pending with
the Civil Courts and scheduled for hearings shortly. Management believes that these cases will be settled in its favour
and will not adversely effect its operations.

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs 1,320,600
(31 March 2006 — Rs 23,527,059)

Export obfigation

The Company has received various Export Promotion Capital Goods ("EPCG’) licenses which entitles it to import
capital goods at a concessional rate of duty. Against these imports the Company has an export obligation equal to
eight times the duty amount saved. The Company's export turnover till date is in excess of this obligation.

Statutory information

a) Payments to Directors
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2007 31* March 2006
Rs. Rs.
a) Salary and allowances 8,904,827 4,419,491
¢ Commission 9,922,988 5,587,282
d) Perquisites - 59,814
e}  Gratuity - 606,812
18,827,815 10,673,399




b)

9]

d)
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Computation of net profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956, read in accordance with

Section 198 of the Act.

Year ended Year ended
31° March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
Profit before income-tax 449,762,240 283,518,121
Add:
Remuneration to directors 8,904,827 5,086,117
Commission to directors 9,922,988 5,587,282
Provision for doubtful debts 4,966,642 2,229,319
Loss on disposal of Investment - 427,000
Less :
Gain on sale of Investment {7,721,320) -
Net profit for computation of managerial remuneration 465,835,377 296,847,839
Commission to directors include;-
Managing Director 4,961,494 2,368,197
Other Directors 4,961,494 3,219,085
9,022,988 5,587,282
Payment to auditors
a) Audit fee 649,000 649,000
b} Other services 225,000 75,000
¢ Service tax 108,026 73,848
d) Out of pocket expenses - 115,161
982,026 913,009

Particulars relating to foreign exchange

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

Rs. Rs.
Earnings in foreigh exchange (on accrual basis)
egme from aporations 424,243,441 323,527,982
Expenditure in foreign currency
Commissich 954,923 213,055
Value of imports on a CIF basis
Capital goods 32,365,633 7,449,493
Imported and indigenous raw materials consumed
Year ended Year ended
31" March 2007 31" March 2006
Amount (Rs.) % Amount (Rs.) %
Imported - - - -
Indigenous 64,083,974 100 46,875,309 100
64,083,974 100 46,875,309 100

Consumption above includes Rs 3,636,059 (2006 - Rs 2,638,764) representing amounts utilised for internal
consumption which has been classified under staff welfare expenses.
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8. Additional information pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs 3 of Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956

Due 1o the volume and large number of insignificant transactions, management is unable 1o provide the guantitative
information on the turnover and consumption of foods and beverages. On 20 June 2006, the Company has received the
approval of the Central Government for an exemption from the presentation of this information, and therefore the
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additional information has not been presented.

Related party transactions

i

Parties where control exists

Parties where control exists include

Name of party

Nature of relationship

lcon Hospitality Private Limited

Royal Orchid Hyderabad Private Limited
Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited
A B Holdings Private Limited

Royal Crchid Jaipur Private limited

Royal orchid South Private limited

Royal orchid East Private limited

Chander K. Baljee

Arjun Baljee

Harsha Farms Private Limited

Baljees Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited
Entity controlled by Directors

Hotel Staylonger Private Limited
Presidency College of Hotel Management

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Wholly owned Subsidiary

Wholly owned Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Key management personnel

Relative of key management personnel.
Entity controlled by Directors

Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors

Transactions with related parties during the year

Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year include:

Name of Party

Nature of relationship

lcon Hospitality Private Limited

Royal Orchid Hyderabad Private Limited
Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited
A B Holdings Private Limited

Royal Grehid Jaipur Private limited

Royal Orchid South Private limited

Royal Orchid East Private limited
Chander K. Baljee

Arjun Baljee

Baljees Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited
Entity controlled by Directors

Hotel Staylonger Private Limited

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Wholly owned Subsidiary

Wholly owned Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Key management personnel

Relative of key management personnel.

Entity controlled by Directors
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The transactions with related parties during the year ended 31" March 2007 is summarised below:

Subsidiaries Entity Key Relatives
Nature of transaction controlled Management of key Total
by Directors Personnel management
persennel
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Management service fee received 14,921,616 - - - 14,921,616
Expenses incurred by related parties
on behalf of the company 984,594 - - - 984,594
Professional Services fee 3,398,043 - - - 3,398,043
Interest received 4,864,383 - - - 4,864,383
Lease rental charges paid - 18,223,476 - - 18,223,476
Investrment in subsidiaries 45,500,000 - - - 45,500,000
Loans to subsidiaries 174,075,171 - - - 174,075,171
Deposit received - 480,000 - 430,000
Remuneration - - 8,904,827 1,440,000 10,344,827
Directors’” Commission - - 5512771 - 5,512,771
The transactions with related parties during the year ended 31" March 2006 is summarised below :
Subsidiaries Entity Key Relatives
Nature of transaction controlled Management of key Total
by Directors Personnel management
personnel
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Management service fee received 11,684,455 - - - 11,684,455
General and administrative expenses
incurred on behalf of related parties
charged to related parties 11,528 2,315,010 - - 2,326,538
General and administrative expenses
incurred by related parties on behalf
of the company charged by related parties 60,000 - - - 60,000
Lease rental charges paid - 11,212,122 - - 1,212,122
Payments received on behalf of related parties - 8,975,857 - - 8,975,857
Payments made on behalf of related parties 52,000 5,881,418 - - 5,933,418
Purchases made on behalf of associates
charged - 1,942,301 - - 1,942,301
Loans to related parties 16,242,226 5,344,850 - - 23,307,808
Remuneration - - 4,674,400 411,717 5,086,117
Birectors’ Commission - - 2,368,197 250,607 2,618,804
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1.

Other transactions

a) Asdiscussed in Schedule 3, the borrowing from HUDCO has been backed by the personal guarantees of Mr. Chander
K. Baljee, the Managing Director of the Company and Mrs. Sunita Baljee, Director of the Company and a corporate

guarantee from Baljees Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited.

b) The Company has also entered intc an arrangement with Presidency College of Hotel Management (an associate)
whereby the associate is provided the use of a part of the Royal Orchid Hotel premises rent free against a refundable

security deposit of Rs. 2.9 million (March 31 2006- Rs. 2.5 million).

Balances receivable/ {payable) from/to related parties as at 317 March 2007 and 31" March 2006 is summarised below:

317 March 2007

31" March 2006

{Rs.) (Rs.)

Dues from subsidiaries

Dues 7,725,009 19,269,735
Loan to subsidiaries 190,317,397 16,242,226
Loan to associates - 5,344,850
Security deposit given to entity controlled by Director 10,000,000 16,000,000
Investment in subsidiaries 107,524,000 62,024,000
Security deposit to key management personnel 60,000,000 60,000,000
Security deposit from entity controlled by director {2,980,000) {2,500,000)
Dues to Directors 5,969,893 5,725,979

Segmental Information

The Company’s business comprises the operation of hotels, the services of which represent one business segment as they
are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each other. Further the Company derives its entire revenues from
sarvices rendered in India. Consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment - wise information is not

applicable to the Company.

Prior year comparatives

Pricr year figures/balances have been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's

representation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chander K. Baljee Naresh K. Malhotra
Managing Director Director
Bangalore

15 June 2007
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.

Cash flow from operating activities

Net profit befare taxation 449,762,240 283,518,121
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 33,333,547 26,050,364
Loss on disposal of Investments . 427,000
Advances written off - 2,274,834
Interest income (86,552,671) (17,076,809)
Interest expense 21,557,837 15,753,431
Provision for doubtful debts 4,966,642 2,229,319
Bad debts written off - 891,980
Operating profit before working capital changes 423,067,595 314,068,240

Movements in working capital :
{Increase} in sundry debtors

(Increase} / Decrease in unbilled revenue
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
{Increase} in loans and advances
{Increase}/Decrease in margin monies
Increase/{Decrease) in current liahilities
Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid

Fringe benefit tax

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets and decrease in capital work-In-progress

Net investment in term deposits
Investments made in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries

Cther Investment

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital (including premium]
Dividend paid including taxes thereon

Share issue expenses paid

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term berrowings

Proceeds from short-term horrowings

Interest paid

Net cash generated by /{used in} financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {a)

(12,081,632)

(17,391,004)

3,786,190 {4,144,000)
348,684 {956,845)
(64,846,598} (63,227,392)
20,878,016 {5.260,202)
10,480,482 13,589,745
381,632,737 236,678,542

(79,585,000)
(1.397,055)

(47,300,000)

300,650,682

189,378,542

(98,380,808) (60,516,084)
20,878,016 (1,160,484,368)
(45,500,000) (58,951,000)
{174,075,171) -
{200,000) -
66,163,405 2,553,971
{231,114,558) (1,277,397.481)

{155,267,643)
(9,449,821)

(55,060,463)
1,002,869
(21,144,685)

1,280,299,850
(61,975,684)
92,857,345
(22,815,636)

(15,689,620)

{239,919,743)

1,272,676,255

{170.383,619) 184,657,316
214,516,670 29,859,354
44,133,051 214,516,670

a1




a) The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity, at the date of purchasefinvestment, of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at year end

2007 2006
Cash and bank balances at 31:* March 1,210,272,005 1,401,533,640
Less : Bank deposits and margin monies
considered separately (Refer note above ) 1,166,138,954 1,187,016,970
44,133,051 214,516,670
This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker, Chandiok & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Aashish Arjun Singh Chander K. Baljee Naresh K. Malhotra A Someswara Rac
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary

Membership No. 210122

Bangalore Bangalore
15 June 2007 15 June 2007
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: | 7392 | State code 8

Balance sheet date | 31/03/2007 |

ii Capital raised during the year {Amounts in Rs."000)

Public Issue | Nil | Rights Issue [ Nil |

Bonus Issue I Nil | Private Placement I Nil |

i Pasition of Mobilisation and deployment of funds {amounts in Rs."000)

Total Liabilities | 1899088 | Total Assets | 1899088 |

Sources of fund

Paid up capital [ 272340 | Reserves & Surplus [ 1372981 |
{P &L akc)

Secured Loans | 220768 | Unsecured loans | 0 |

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | 420841 | Investments | 107749 |
Net current assets [ 1367129 | Preliminary expenses [ 0 |
Accumulated losses [ 0 |
iv Performance of the Company (amount in Rs.’000)
Turnover | 911851 | Total Expenditure | 462089 |
Profit Aloss) after tax I 339065 | Earnings per share in Rs. I 12.45 |
Divident rate% | 60% |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms)
Item code No: (ITC code} 591001006
Product description Hotel
ltem code No {ITC code) 390001002
Product discription Restaurant
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Statement attached to the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2006, pursuant to Section 212 of the
Companies Act 1956, relating to Subsidiary Companies

accountsofthe
Company for the
year ended

31 March 2007

Name of the Subsidiary lcon Maruti Royal Royal Royal Royal AB
Companies Hospitality Comforts & Crchid Orchid Orchid Crehid Holdings
Private nnPrivate Jaipur Hyderabad South East Private
Lirnited Limited Private Private Private Private Lid
Limited Limited Limnitad L1d
1. Financialyzarofthe 317 March 31" March 31*March 31" March 1% March 31" March 31" March
Companyended 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
2. Fully paid up shares held
by holding company in
the subsidiary company
at the end of the
Financial year.
{a) Number 30,730 2,09,100 16,60,000 17,60,200 9,00,000 By virtue of 26,00,000
Equity Shares | Equity Shares | Equity Shares | Equity Shares | Equity Shares |being subsidiary | Equity Shares
of Rs. 100/- of Rs. 100/- of Rs. 10/~ of Rs. 10/- of Rs. 10/~ | of AB Holdings of Rs. 104
each fully each fully each fully each fully each fully | Private Limited each fully
paid - up paid - up paid-up paid-up paid-up which is the paid-up
subsicliary of
the Company
{b} Extent of holding 51.22% 51% 100% 99.45% 98.90% -do- 100%
3. Changes in the interest Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
of the Company between
the end of the Financial
Year of the subsidiary
Company and
31 March 2007
4. The net aggregate of
Prafit/ {loss) of the
Subsidiary Company
so far as they concern the
Members of the
Holding Company
{a) Dealt with in the 1,62,82,541 26,27,784 1,26,452 {9,95,400) {1,653} {11,45,330) {12,296)
accounts of the
Company for the
year ended
31* March 2007
{h} Notdealwithinthe Nil Nil ] il il il Nil
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Name of the Subsidiary
Companies

kon
Hospitality
Private
mited

Maruti
Comforts &
ImPrivate
Limited

Royal

Orchid
Jaipur
Private
Lirnitesd

Royal
Crchid
Hyderabad
Private
Limited

Royal
Orchid
South
Private
Limited

Royal
Orchid
East
Private
Ld

AB
Hokdings
Private
d

5. The net aggregate
of Profit/ {Joss) of the
Subsidiary Company
for previous financial
years, so far as they
concern the Members
of the Holding Company

{a) Dealt with in the
accounts of the
Company for the
year ended
31 March 2007

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

{b) Notdealtwith
intheaccounts
of the Company
for the year
ended 37 March 2007

Nil

N

Ml

Nil

Nil

Nil

il

6. Material changes
between the end
of the Financial
Year of the
Subisdiary Company
and 31% March 2007

{a) Fixad Assets

Nil

Nil

Wil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

{b} Investment

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

{c) Moneys lent by
the Subsidiary
Company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

{d) Moneys barrowed
by the Subsidiary
Company other
than for meeting
current liabilities.

Nil

Nil

Wil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We, the Directors of your Company, have pleasure in presenting the Fifth Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the vear ended 31 March 2007.

Financial Results
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2007 is summarized below:

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2006 - 07 2005 - 06
Operating income 2807.37 235%.38
Non-cperating income 24.15 16.43
Total revenue 2831.51 2375.81
Expenditure 2240.70 1787.69
Net profit hefore Depreciation & Tax 590.81 588.12
Depreciation 53.42 32.72
Profit after Depreciation but before Taxation and prior period expenses 537.39 555.40
Prior period expenses - -
Profit after depreciation and prior period expenses but before taxation 537.39 555.40
Provision for taxation 219.48 189.13
Profit after depreciation and taxation 317.%1 366.27

Performance Analysis

During the year 2006 - 07, your Company has witnessed an increase by 19.18% in turnover at Rs. 2831.51 lakhs compared
to Rs. 2375.81 lakhs of previous year. The Gross Operating Profit (PBDIT) was higher by 0.45 % at Rs. 590.81 Lakhs
compared to Rs. 588.12 Lakhs of the previous year. However, due to increase in the tax burden, the Profit After Tax stood
at Rs. 317.91 lakhs as compared to Rs. 366.27 lakhs of previous year.

Future Outlook
Tourist arrivals remain healthy

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have touched
an all time high. Success of “Incredible India” campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing infrastructure thrust by
the government and India’s emergence as an outsourcing hub has led to a2 13.2% surge in foreign tourist arrival in calendar
year 2006 over the previous year.

ARR expected to rise further

WwWith growing business, domestic and international leisure travel, room demand is going to rise further. Though there is a
huge room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction, the demand
supply mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next two years. By the middle of 2008 we might see some
capacities coming in. Till that time room rates are expected to rise further.

Company’s performance

With Industrial growth, including the Hospitality Industry, likely to remain streng, your Company's overall performance and
operating results are expected to further improve in the current year. With the positive mood prevailing in the tourism
industry, the outlook for the company promises to be brighter in the coming years.
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Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 256, Mr. Chander K. Baljee- Director and Mrs. Sunita Baljee retire by rotation and
being eligible offers themselves for re-appointment.

Auditors’ and their Report:

M/s. Walker, Chandiok & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and have expressed
their willingness to continue in office if re-appointed. Since the proposal is in the best interest of the Company, your
Directors propose their appointment as Statutory Auditors for the current year, for the approval of shareholders.

The comments of the Auditors in Para No, 4,5, of their report are self explanatory and company’s reply is as follows:

Reply in respect of Para No.4 of Auditor’s Report
The Company has made an application to the Ministry of Company Affairs, New Delhi for the payment of remuneration to
the Directors under Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956. Approval is awaited.

Reply in respect of Para No.5 of Auditor's Report

The Company has made an application to the Ministry of Company Affairs, New Delhi seeking an exemption for providing
guantitative details as required under paragraph 3, 4C and 4D of Para Il of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956.
Approval is awaited.

Public Depaosits
During the year under review, your company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public.
Directors” Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the
representations received from the Management, hereby confirms that:

i. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there
are no material departures.

i. Ithas, intheselection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and has applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

iii. It hastaken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeqguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should
be recognized while relying on any system of internal control and records.

iv. It has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
Employees

The details of employees as specified under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies
{Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 are not applicable.

Statutory Information

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section {1){e) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
{Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out hereunder:

(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company’s efforts towards conservation of energy, which results in savings in consumption of electricity, a significant
component of the energy cost, is an ongoing process.

a7




(2) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D} TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION

Your Company is engaged in Hotel & Hospitality Industry. Hence, your Company does not require Research &
Development activities. Despite that, the Company is constantly upgrading and optimizing the Process parameters
with emphasis on cost control and rationalization. The Company continues to strive for improving methodology of
work and productivity of operations through continuous research. However, the actual expenditure incurred thereon
is minimal.

{3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
There is no foreign exchange earnings and cutgo during the year.
Acknowledgments

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish te place on record sincere thanks and appreciation for the co-
operation received by the Company from customers, suppliers, bankers, Central and State Governments and other statutory
authorities and others associated with the Company.

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering outstanding services. Your Directors thank you
for the unstinted support and confidence reposed in the Management and look forward to your continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICON HOSPITALITY PRIVATE LIMITED

Place : Bangalore CHANDER K. BALJEE
Date : 15.06.2007 Chairman
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIARCE CERTIFICATE

Registration No.: 08/31516

Neminal Capital : Rs.1,00,00,000/-

To

The Members

M/s ICON HOSPITALITY PRIVATE LIMITED
No.47/1, Dickenson Road,
Bangalore-560042.

Dear Sir,

| have examined the registers, records, books and papers of M/s lcon Hospitality Private Limited as required to be
maintained under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made there under and also the provisions contained
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2007. In my
opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished
to me by the Company, its officers and agents, | certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1.

11.

The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure 'A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions
and the rules made there under and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar of
Companies, or other authorities as per the provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.

The Company is a Private Limited Company, which is a subsidiary of a company which is not a private Limited
company within the meaning of section of 3 (1) {iv) of the companies Act 1956 and has the minimum prescribed paid
up capital and its maximum number of members during the said financial year was 03 {Three) and the company
during the year under scrutiny:

has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures and
has not invited or accepted any deposits during the financial year under review.

The Board of directors duly met 5 times on 12.06.2006, 15.09.2008, 20.11.2006, 29.12.2006 and 23.01.2007 in
respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the
Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

The Company has not closed its Register of Members during the financial year.

The Annual General meeting for the financial year ended on 31.3.2006 was held on 30" September,2006 after
giving due notice to the members of the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in
Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

Cne Extra-ordinary general meeting held during the financial year under report i.e. 30" Decernber 2006.
The Company has not made any loan to Directors under the provisions of section 295 of the Companies Act 1956.
The Company has not entered in to any contracts falling within the purview of section 297 of the Act.

The Company has made necessary entries in the Register of Companies and firms in which Directors are interested
maintained under Section 301(3) of the Act.

As there were no instances falling within the purview of Section 314 of the Act, the Company has not obtained any
approvals from the Board of Directors, members or Central Government as the case may be.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25,

26.

27.
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The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the financial year.

a) There was no allotment of Equity Shares during the financial year. There was no transfer/transmission of
equity shares during the financial year.

k) The Company has not deposited any amount in a separate Bank Account as no Dividend was declared during
the financial year.

4] The Company has not posted warrants to any member of the Company as no Dividend was declared during
the financial year.

d) The company has duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. There was appointment of a Director during the financial
year and no appointment of Alternate Directors or Directors to fill Casual vacancy during the financial year.

The Company has not appointed any Managing Director/Whole time Director/Manager during the financial year.
The Company has not appeinted any sole selling agents during the financial year.

The Company has made an application to the Ministry of Company affairs seeking exemption from the applicability
of para 3(1){a} and 3(2){d) of part Il of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 and also scught condonation of delay
in making the application seeking approval for payment of remuneration to the Directors. The Company also has
made an application to the Ministry of Company Affairs, New Delhi, for payment of remuneration to the Directors
under Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956, Approval is awaited,

The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/Companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and hence the same has been recorded in the register
maintained under section 301(3) of the Act.

The Company has not issued Equity Shares during the financial year under review.
The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

The company has not issued any preference shares or debentures and hence redemption thereof during the year
does not arise.

There were no transactions necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance the rights to dividend, rights shares and
bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits including any unsecured loans falling within the purview of
Section 58A during the financial year.

The Company has duly complied with provisions of section 293 (1) (d) of the Act and necessary resolutions as per that
section have been passed in duly convened extraordinary general meeting.

The Company has not made any loans/investments or provided any guarantee or securities falling within the
provisions of section 372A of the Act.

The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memarandum with respect to Situation of the Company’s
registered office from one State to another during the year under scrutiny.

The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to the Objects of the Company during
the year under scrutiny.
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28.  The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to Name of the Company during the
year under scrutiny.

29.  The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memarandum with respect to Share Capital of the Company
during the year under scrutiny

30.  The Company has not altered the provisions of its Articles of Association during the year under scrutiny.

31.  Therewere no prosecution initiated against or show cause notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties
or any other punishment was imposed on the company during the financial year, for offences under the Act.

32.  From the records, it has heen observed that the Company has not received any meney as security deposit from its
employees during the financial year.

33,  The Company has deposited contribution towards Provident Funds collected from the employees together with
employers contribution with the prescribed authorities during the financial year.

Sdr- :
PLACE: BANGALORE Name : Ramachandra Bhat S.

DATE: 15.06.2007

CPNo. : 5421
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ANNEXURE-A

Name of the Company : ICON HOSPITALITY PRIVATE LIMITED

Company No. . 0B/31516
Authorised Capital : Rs.1,00,00,000/-
Paid Up Capital : Rs.60,00,000/-

Registers as maintained by the Company:

1.

2.

Register of Members u/s 150

Register of Companies and Firms in which Directors, etc., are interested u/s 301(3}

Minutes of Board Meetings/Annual General Meetings/Extra- Ordinary General Meetings u/s 193
Register of Directors u/s 303

Board Meeting Attendance Register

General Meeting Attendance Register

Register of share transfers.

Register of Cantract u/s 301

Register of Directors share halding u/s 307

ANNEXURE B

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, during the financial year ending on 31st
March 2007.

1.

4th Annual Report containing Directors Report, Auditors Report, Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account for the
financial year ended 31.3.2006 has been filed with RCC office on.11.11.2006.

2. 4th Annual Return u/s 159 made as on the date of 4th Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2006 has been filed
with RCC office on 11.11.2006.
3. Compliance Certificate u/s 383A of the Companies Act, 1956 obtained from the practicing Company Secretary was
filed with the ROC on 20.11.2006
4, Form No.8 in respect of creation of Charge was filed with the RCC office on 21.02.2007.
5. Form 32 in respect of reappointment of Director was filed with the ROC on 21.12.2006.
6. Form No.23 in respect of ordinary resolution passed in the EGM under Section 293(1)}{d) of the Companies Act, 1956
is yet to be filed.
Sdr-
PLACE: BANGALORE Name : Ramachandra Bhat 5.
DATE: 15.06.2007
C.PNo. : 5421
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AUDITORS' REPORY

To

The Members of
lcon Hospitality Private Limited

1.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Icon Hospitality Private Limited {the ‘Company’} as at 31" March 2007
and also the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alse includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 as amended by the Companies {Auditor's Report}
{Amendment) Order, 2004 {'the Order?) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A} of
Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 {'the Act’), we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

As more fully discussed in note 6(a) to Schedule 20, the Company has provided for directors’ remuneration in excess of
the limits specified by Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956, by Rs 7, 128,080 without the prior approval of the Central
Government. The Company has applied to the Central Government for the said approval, which is currently awaited.

As more fully discussed in Note 7 of Schedufe 20, the Company has not provided the quantitative disclosures of
purchases, sales and consumption as required by paragraphs 3, 4C and 40 of Part I of Schedule Vi to the Companies
Act, 1956, The Company has applied to the Central Government seeking an exemption from providing such information
and the approval is awaited.

Subject to our comments in paragraph 4 and 5 above and further to our comments in the Annexure referred to ahaove,
we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In ouropinion, proper beoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from
our examination of those books

¢. The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial
statements, read together with the notes thereon, comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-
section {3C) of Section 211 of the Act, give the information required by the Actin the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, in the case of:

i) the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March 2007;
iy the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
iii) the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31™ March 2007and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2007 from being
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Act.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh
Partner
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore
15 June 2007
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS® REPORT

Annexure to the auditor's report of even date to the members of Icon Hospitality Private Limited (“the Company’), on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us in the normal course
of audit, we report that:

(i)

(i)

il

(iv)

(vi}

{vii)

(viii}

54

{a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situationof
fixed assets.

{b} Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
identified on such verification.

{c} In our opinion, a substantial part of fixed assets have not been disposed off during the year.

(a} Inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

{b} The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

{c} The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

{a} The Company has not granted any leans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses {b}, (c) and (d} of the
Crder are not applicable to the Company.

{e} The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Secticn 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (g} and {(f) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, there are adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the
course of our audit, no major weakness has been neoticed in the internal controls in respect of these areas.

{a} We are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301 of the Act have
been entered in the register maintained under that section.

{b} Owing to the unigue and specialized nature of the items involved and in the absence of any comparable prices, we
are unable to comment whether the transactions made in pursuance of the contracts or arrangements referred
to in Section 301 of the Act were made at prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{vi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system which is generally commensurate with the nature and size of its business.
To the best of ocur knowledge, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause

{d} of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Act for the products of the Company and accordingly, the provisions of
clause Mviii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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{ix) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, investor
education fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, customs duty, excise
duty, cess and other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities except for a few delays
in a few cases. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, sales-tax,
customs duty and excise duty were outstanding, at the year end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

{b) There are no amounts in respect of sales tax, income tax, customs duty, wealth tax, service tax, excise duty and cess
that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

{x) The Company has been registered for a period of less than five years. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(x) of the
QOrder are not applicable to the Company.

{xi) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or a bank. The Company has not issued
or repaid any debentures during the year.

{xii) The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities and accerdingly, the provisions of clause 4(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 4{xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xiv) In our opinion, the company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xvJ The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 4(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) The Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the lecans were obtained.

{xvii} The Company did not have any short term borrowings outstanding during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 4 (xvii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

{xviii}The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties or companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4{xviii) of the Order are not applicable
to the company.

{xix) The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xix) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xx) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by
the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh
Partner
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore
15 June 2007
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SALANCE SHEET

Schedule 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHQLDERS” FUNDS
Capital 1 6,000,000 6,000,000
Reserves and surplus 2 114,412,660 82,621,194
120,412,660 88,621,194
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans 3 3,046,689 4,373,254
Unsecured loans 4 155,000,000
158,045,689 4,373,254
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 5 2,300,000 1,200,000
TOTAL 280,759,349 94,194,448
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS b
Gross block 85,841,983 61,705,965
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 14,046,589 5,704,610
Net block 74,795,394 56,001,355
Capital work-in-progress (including capital advances} 4,157,309 1,060,303
78,952,703 57,061,658
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 7 1,570,264 1,372,263
Sundry debtors 8 15,754,917 9,009,733
Unbilled revenues 1,165,934 1,440,056
Cash and bank balances 9 33,198,097 35,552,653
Loans and advances 10 200,442,818 19,752,148
252,132,730 67,126,851
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current liahilities 11 47,986,942 24,858,360
Provisions 12 2,339,140 5,135,701
50,326,082 29,994,061
NET CURRENT ASSETS 201,806,646 37,132,788
TOTAL 280,759,349 94,194,448
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh Chander K. Baljee Satish Pai
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore Bangalcre
15 June2007 15 June 2007
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Schedule | 31 March 2007 31" March 2006
Rs. Rs.
INCOME
Operating income 13 280,736,622 235,938,08%
Other income 14 2,414,578 1,642,739
283,151,200 237,580,828
EXPENDITURE
Food and beverages consumed 15 23,628,778 15,989,172
Employee costs 16 30,215,616 20,584,891
Operating expenses 17 118,834,000 100,031,852
Selling, general and administrative expenses 18 44,036,187 41,839,422
Depreciation [ 5.341,979 3,272,012
Interest 14 7,355,206 323,426
229,411,756 182,040,775
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 53,739,434 55,540,053
Provision for income tax- Current {20,600,000) {18,100,000}
- Fringe Benefit Tax {382,833) (212,952}
- Deferred {1,100,000) {600,000)
- Provision for income tax of prior years written back 139,865 -
PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX 31,791,466 36,627,101
Balance brought forward from the previous year 81,971,194 45,344,093
SURPLUS CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 113,762,660 81,971,194
Basic and diluted Earnings per share (Par value — Rs.100)
{Refer note 3 in Schedule 20} 529.86 610.45
Notes to the financial statements 20
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker, Chandiok & Co For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Aashish Arjun Singh Chander K. Baljee Satish Pai

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore Bangalore
15 June2Q07 15 June 2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

Schedule 1
CAPITAL

Authorised
100,000 { 31 March 2006 - 100,000} equity shares of Rs. 100 each
Issued, subscribed and paid up

Note:
Of the above 30,730 (31 March 2006 - 30,730} equity shares of Rs. 100 each
are held by Royal Orchid Hotels Limited, the Holding Company.

Schedule 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Foreign Exchange Earnings Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Balance at the end of the year
Profit and Loss Account

Schedule 3
SECURED LOANS
Vehicle loans

Note:
These loans represent amounts payahle for vehicles taken on leans that are
secured against the hypothecation of the vehicles acquired. Ameount due in

SCHEDULE 4
UNSECURED LOANS

From Holding company
From Director

SCHEDULE 5
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET}

Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Depreciation

Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Employee benefits
Provision for doubtful debts

60,000 {31 March 2006 - 60,000) nequity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up

one year as at 31 March 2007 is Rs. 1,664,500 (31 March 2006 - Rs. 1,528,456).

Rs. Rs.
10,000,000 10,000,000
6,000,000 6,000,000
6,000,000 6,000,000
650,000 650,000
650,000 650,000
113,762,660 81,971,194
114,412,660 82,621,194
3.046,689 4,373,254
3,046,689 4,373,254
77,500,000 -
77.500,000 -
155,000,000 -
3,266,470 2,083,976
3,266,470 2,093,976
796,991 609,335
169,479 284,641
966,470 893,976
2,300,000 1,200,000
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31 March 2007

31 March 2006

SCHEDULE 7
INVENTORIES
Food and beverages

Stores and spare parts

SCHEDULE 8

SUNDRY DEBTORS

{Unsecured)

Debts cutstanding for a period exceeding six months:
- considered good
- considered doubtful

Other debts
- considered good

- considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful debis

A reconciliation of the provision for doubtful debts is provided below:

Balance at the beginning of the year/period
Add: Additional provisions created

Less: Bad debts written off

Less: Doubtful debts recovered
Balance at the end of the year

SCHEDULE 9
CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash balance on hand
Banks balances with Scheduled banks:
- In current accounts
- In exchange earners foreign currency accounts
- In deposit account
- In margin money

Rs. Rs.
1,117,156 887,734
453,808 484,529
1,570,964 1,372,263
503,504 845,635
503,504 845,635
15,754,917 9,009,733
16,258,421 9,855,368
503,504 845,635
15,754,917 9,009,733
845,625 380,345
- 942,080
- 477,400
342,131 -
503,494 845,625
386,937 180,595
14,308,495 9,056,383
252,665 298,232
15,000,000 25,000,000
3,250,000 1,017,443
33,198,097 35,552,653

Note:

Margin money represents bank guarantee given by the Company for import of capital goods at concessional duty rates

under various Export Promeotion Capital Goods ('EPCG) licenses.
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31* March 2007

31¢ March 2006

SCHEDULE 10

LOANS & ADVANCES

{Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits

Advance for purchase of property

Prepaid Expenses (a)
Advances to suppliers

Others

Note:

a) Prepaid expenses include Rs. 9,989,247 (31 March 2006 - Rs 9,989,041)
representing insurance premium paid towards two Key man Insurance
policies taken by the Company for two of its directors. The premiums
are for the period from 31 March 2007 to 31 March 2008.

SCHEDULE 11

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors

Accrued expenses

Dues to employees
Duties and taxes payable
Due to Holding Company
Dues to directors

Lease rent payable

Other liabilities

SCHEDULE 12

PROVISIONS

Provisions for taxation (net of advance tax)
Provision for leave encashment

Provision for gratuity

Reconciliation of the provision for leave encashment is provided below:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Additional provisions created during the year

Less: Payments made during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Reconciliation of the provision for gratuity is provided below;
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Additional provisions created during the year

Less: excess provision reversed

Balance at the end of the year

Rs. Rs.
6,484,000 6,354,000
180,000,000 -
12,604,456 11,446,775
376,691 1,008,060
977.671 943,313
200,442,818 19,752,148
9,074,554 5,237,343
1,079,811 2,657,210
3,360,183 2,590,362
9,779,766 6,049,002
10,030,883 1,734,085
3,128,496 596,281
10,211,272 3,741,208
1,321,972 2,252,859
47,986,942 24,858,360
6,26,447 3,745280
1,027,599 659,984
675,094 730,437
2,339,140 5,135,701
659,984 309,313
377,615 428,515
- 77,844
1,037,599 659,984
730,437 276,571
173,647 453,866
228,990 -
675,094 730,437
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31 March 2007

31+ March 2006

SCHEDULE 13
OPERATING INCOME
Room revenues
Food and Beverages

Other Service Charges

SCHEDULE 14
OTHER INCOME

Rent

Excess provisions written back
Discount Received

Others

SCHEDULE 15

FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED
Opening Stock

Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing Stock

Consumption

SCHEDULE 16

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident fund

Gratuity

Interest income {Tax Deducted at Source - Rs. 252,734 2006-Rs. 122,027}

Note: Consumption above is net of Rs 1,862,491
(31 March 2006 - Rs 1,347,520) representing amounts utilised for

internal consumption which has been classified under staff welfare.

Staff welfare (Net of recoveries of Rs.280,257) (2006- Rs. 241,635)

Rs. Rs.
203,632,844 187,518,712
65,376,648 43,389,256
11,727,130 5,030,121
280,736,622 235,938,089
1,126,266 516,467
240,000 240,000
453,240 94,925
- 205,554
835,072 825,793
2,414,578 1,642,739
887,735 496,400
23,858,199 16,380,506
24,745,934 16,876,906
1,117,156 887,734
23,628,778 15,989,172
25,807,943 16,895,269
1,696,968 1,297,888
2,537,658 1,937,868
173,647 453,866
30,215,616 20,584,891
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31 March 2007

31* March 2006

SCHEDULE 17
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Lease rent for hotel property
Power and fuel
Water
Management fees
Hire Charges
Linen and room supplies
Laundry expenses
Kitchen and other supplies
Contractor charges
Rent
Others
Repairs and maintanance
- Building
- Machinery
- Others

SCHEDULE 18

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Director's remuneration {Refer note 6{a) in Schedule 18)

Commission, brokerage and discount
Rates and taxes

Advertisement and business promotion
Communication expenses

Legal and professional charges
Insurance

Printing and stationery

Audit fees

Travelling and conveyance

Bank charges

Music and entertainment charges
Miscellaneous expenses

Provision for doubtful debis

SCHEDULE 19

INTEREST

Interest on vehicle loan
Interest on unsecured loan

Rs. Rs.
60,513,191 56,970,285
17,469,191 14,998,227

1,112,639 1,504,706
11,666,661 10,608,822

6,076,434 4,730,033

6,102,711 2,552,309

2,061,571 1,730,666

2,832,037 3,836,810

2,342,671 1,522,687

1,847,168 1,624,580

222,730 -
4,041,040 3,271,938
2,233,883 1,032,110

312,673 278,712

118,834,000 100,031,852

9,000,000 9,000,000

9,620,383 7,283,596

1,587,911 1,104,973

1,428,099 1,852,370

3,272,824 1,901,772

1,334,316 1,375,951
10,763,978 10,639,250

1,462,410 279,827

428,595 504,060
1,279,823 1,273,001

126,925 103,663

2,280,462 2,038,520

1,792,592 3,440,359

{342,131} 942,080
44,036,187 41,839,422

251,782 323,426
7,103,424 -
7,355,206 323,426
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE - 20

1.
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Background

lcon Hospitality Private Limited ('lcon’ or ‘the Company') was incorporated on 28 January 2003 as a private limited
company providing hospitality services. The Company cperates Royal Orchid Central in Bangalore, India and the Company
has leased the land, building and other assets from Sacred Hospitality Company Limited under an operating lease
arrangement for a period of 25 years. For its daily operations, the Company has also entered into an agreement with
Royal Orchid Hotels Limited, the holding Company for which it pays an annual management fee based on a pre
determined percentage of net profits.

Significant accounting policies

a.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
the applicakle accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting perieds. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates used by
management in the preparation of these financial statements include the estimates of the economic useful lives of
the fixed assets, provision for bad and doubtful debts and accruals for leave encashment and gratuity.

Revenue recognition

Revenues comprise income from the sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services during a guest's stay at
the hotel. Room revenue is recognized based on occupation and revenue from sale of food and beverages and other
allied services, as the services are rendered,

Unbilled revenues represent revenues recognized which have not been billed to the customers at the balance sheet
date and are billed subsequently.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. All costs relating to acquisition
and installation of fixed assets are capitalised. Advances paid towards acguisition of fixed assets before the financial
year-end are classified as capital work-in-progress.

Financing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such
assets are ready to be put to use.

Expenditure directly relating to expansion is capitalized only if it increases the life or functionality of an asset
beyond its original standard of performance.

Depreciation

DCepreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line method, using the higher of rates specified in Schedule
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or the management estimates of the economic useful lives of such assets. These
rates are specified below:
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Asset category Rates of depreciation used {%}
Plant and machinery 4.75%
Furniture and fixtures 9.50% - 20%
Computers and related equipment, including software 16.21%
Office equipment 4.75%
Vehicles 9.50%

Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Improvements to buildings are
amortized over the period of the lease.

f Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss
and is recognised in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

g inventory
Inventory comprises stock of food and beverages and operating supplies and is carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition and
is determined on a Weighted Average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.

h Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary
foreign currency assets and liahilities are translated into rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the halance
sheet date. The differences in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign
currency transactions, other than those related to fixed assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Exchange
differences in respect of liabilities incurred to acquire fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying cost of fixed assets.

i Leases

Finance leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned
hetween the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges
are charged directly against income. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are
capitalised,

For hotel properties i.e. land and buildings, taken on leases along with related assets as a part of a combined lease
arrangement, the Company determines whether these assets acquired are integral to the land and building. If
these assets are integral, the Company analyses the nature of the lease arrangement on a combined basis for all
assets. If the assets are not integral to the land and building, the Company evaluates each asset individually, to
determine the nature of the lease.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term,
capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.
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Operating leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss
account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement benefits

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan in accordance with the rules of the Company based on an
actuarial valuation carried out at the balance sheet date, by an independent actuary. Contributions payable to the
recognized Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme, which are defined contribution schemes, are
charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Leave encashment
The Company provides for the leave encashment liability at the balance sheet date based on the accumulated leave
balance of the employees and the last drawn salary.

Taxes on income

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred taxes. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year
timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets are
recognised on carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such
deferred tax assets can be realised against future taxable profits,

Unrecognised deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has hecome
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised.

. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares cutstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share
to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid eguity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
reguires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
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Year ended Year ended

31+ March 2007 31* March 2006

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 60,000 60,000
{Rs.) (Rs.)

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders 31,791,466 36,627,101
Basic and diluted earnings per share 529.86 610.45
Nominal value per equity share 100 100

Leases

Operating leases

Asindicated in Note 1 of this schedule, the business of the Company comprises revenues from the operation of the Royal
Orchid Central at Bangalore. This operation is carried out through a lease entered into with Sacred Hospitality Company
Limited in January 2003. As per the provisions of this arrangement, the Company has leased the land, the asscciated
hotel building and other assets necessary for the operation of the hotel under a non-cancellable operating lease
arrangement for a period of five years. This agreement was renewed in June 2004 extending the period of the lease
for a further period of 20 years ending on 30 January 2028.

As per the agreement, the Company is required to make annual payments at 33% of net room revenues determined
after reducing certain allowable expenses from the room revenues for the period, or a minimum committed amount,
whichever is higher. This lease includes an escalation provision of 15% from the previous rent, every three years
commencing from July 2010.

This agreement also requires the Company to invest Rs. 50 million towards renovation and improvement of the concerned
property within three years from the date of the arrangement,

The lease expense for cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases during the year ended 31 March 2007 was
Rs. 60,513,191 {31 March 2006 - Rs. 56,970,285)

The details of lease commitments in terms of minimum lease payments within the non-cancellable period are as
follows:

Payments falling due: Amount

{Rs.)
Within 1 year 36,000,000
Later than one year but not later than five years 156,000,000
Later than 5 years 475,011,928
TOTAL 1.167,011,928

Commitments and contingencies

{a) Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at 317 March 2007
— Rs 3, 250, 000. (31 March 2006 — Rs 1,498,165).
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(b) Other matters

Sacred Hospitality Company Limited (‘Sacred Hospitality') has permitted the Company vide a deed of license dated
January 31, 2003, to use its license to sell liquor and the retail sale of bulk beer at the Royal Orchid Central for a
consideration included in the |lease rentals. In terms of the license issued for Indian/ foreign liquor to Sacred
Hospitality, Royal Orchid Central (previously Central Park) was permitted to possess/sell Indian/foreign liguor and for
retail sale of bulk beer. In accordance with the terms of the deed of license, the revenues from such sales are
recorded in these financial statements and the Company has been paying the excise on behalf of Sacred Hospitality
in respect of the sale of liquor and the retail sale of beer for the license to the appropriate authorities, which means
that Sacred Hospitality has assigned the right to use the license to the Company, which is not in terms of the license
issued to Sacred Hospitality. However, based on independent legal advice received, the Company is informed that
this transaction is not a violation of the Karnataka State Excise Act, 1967 and that the Company will not be subject
to any penalties or levies. Accordingly, this transaction will not have an adverse impact on the Company's financial
statements and accordingly no provision for any penalties or levies has been made in these financial statements.

6. Supplementary statutory information

a) Payments to directors

Year ended Year ended
315t March 2007 31+ March 2006

a} Salary and allowances 9,000,000 9,000,000
b} Contribution to provident and other funds - -
9,000,000 9,000,000

Computation of net profit in accordance with Section 349 and 350 of the Companies Act, 1956, read in accordance
with Section 198 of the Act.

31% March 2007

31 March 2006

Profit before income tax

Add:
Directors’ remuneration
Provision for doubtful debts

Net profit for the purpose of computation of
managerial remuneration

Rs. Rs.
53,739,434 55,540,053
9,000,000 9,000,000
{342,131} 442,080
62,397,303 65,482,133

As per the provisions of Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956, remuneration payable to directors not in the whole
time employment of the Company cannot exceed 3 percent of the net profits for the year, without the prior
approval of the Central Government. The total remuneration paid to the directors during the year ended
31 March 2007 exceeds the limits as specified in Section 309 by Rs 7,128,080 (31 March 2006 — Rs. 7,035,536). The
Company has applied for the Central Government approval under Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956 which is

currently awaited.

b) Payment to auditors

31t March 2007

31 March 2006

a) Audit fee
b} Service tax

¢ Out of pocket expenses

(Rs.) {Rs.)
400,000 400,000
28,595 48,960
- 55,100
428,595 504,060
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31 March 2007 | 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)
Income from operations 146,626,246 113,779,358
Expenditure in foreign currency
Commission 768,657 310,056
Others 226,827 -
Total 995,484 310,056
Value of imports on a CIF basis
Capital goods 2,142,072 1,433,661
2,142,072 1,433,661
d) Imported and indigenous raw materials, components and spare parts consumed
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Amount % Amount %
Imported - - - -
Indigenous 25,491,269 100 17,336,692 100
Total 25,491,269 100 17,336,692 100

The above figure includes Rs. 1,862,491 (2006 - Rs. 1,347,520) of internal consumptions which is included in staff
welfare costs net of recoveries from staff.

7.  Additional information pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs 3, 4C and 4D of Part || of Schedule VI to the Companies
Act, 1956

Due to the volume and large number of insignificant transactions, management is unable to provide the quantitative
information on the turnover and consumption of food and beverages consumed. On 29 August 2005, the Company has
applied an approval from the Central Government for an exemption from the presentation of such information. The
approval for the same is currently awaited.

8. Related party transactions

L Parties where control exists
Parties where control exists include:

Name of the related party

Relationship

Royal Orchid Hotels Limited

AB Holdings Private Limited

Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited
Chander .K.Baljee

Sunita Baljee

Arjun Baljee

Presidency Caterers

Harsha Farms Private Limited

Baljee Hotels and Real Estate Private Limited
Hotel Staylonger Private Limited
Presidency College of Hotel Management

Reyal Orchid Scuth Private Limited

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Key management personnel { Director )
Key management persennel { Director )
Key management perscnnel ( Director )
Entity controlled by Directors

Entity controlled by Directors

Entity controlled by Directors

Entity controlled by Directors

Entity controlled by Directors

Entity controlled by Directors
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Transactions with related parties during the period
Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year include:

Name of the related party

Relationship

Royal Orchid Hotels Limited
Chander K.Baljee
Sunita Baljee

Dayanand Pai

Baljee Hotels and Real Estate Private Limited

Holding Company

Key management persannel ( Director )
Key management persannel ( Director )
Key management personnel ( Director )

Entity controlled by Directors

The transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2007 are summarised below:

Nature of transaction Holding Associates Key TOTAL
company Management
Personnel
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Management service fee expense 11,666,661 - -
Payments received on behalf of the
related parties 1,271,961 193,535 - 1,465,496
Payments made on behalf of the
related parties - 46,461 - 46,461
Short term loan received from related
parties 105,000,000 - 137,500,000 | 242,500,000
Short term loan repayment to
related parties 27,500,000 - 60,000,000 87,500,000
Remunertion - - 9,000,000 9,000,000
The transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2006 are summarised below:
Nature of transaction Holding Associates Key TOTAL
company Management
Personnel
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Management service fee expense 10,608,822 - - 10,608,822
Payments received on behalf of the related
parties 52,000 930,342 - 982,342
Payments made on behalf of the related parties 9,632 138,077 - 147,709
Remuneration - - 9,000,000 9,000,000

Balances receivable/ (payable) from/to related parties as at 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006 is summarised below:
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Holding Company

Due from Associate

31 March 2007 | 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.

10,030,883 {1,879,758)

- 145,663
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9. Segment Information

The Company's business comprises the operation of the Royal Orchid Central the services of which represent one
business segment as they are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each other. Further the Company derives
its entire revenues from services rendered in India. Consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment -
wise information is not applicable to the Company.

10. Prior year comparatives

Prior year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s representation.

Far and on behalf of the board of directors

Chander K. Baljee Satish Pai
Director Director

Place : Bangalore
Date :15 June 2007
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CALH FLOW STATEMENT

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash {used in} financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+ B+C}

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {a)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2007 37t March 2006
Rs. Rs.
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 53,739,434 55,540,053
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5,341,979 3,272,012
Interest income {1,126,266) {516,467)
Interest expense 7,355,206 323,427
Provision for doubtful debts (342,131) 942,080
Bad debts written off
Operating profit before working capital changes 64,968,222 59,561,105
Movements in working capital :
{Increase} in sundry debtors (6,429,167) {1,778,163)
{Increase} in inventories (198,701) {387.140)
(Increase}Decrease in unbilled revenue 274,120 (28,647)
Decrease / (Increase) Advance towards purchase of hotel property {180,000,000)
(Increase} loans and advances (690,668) (130,547)
{Increase) in margin money 7,767,443 (52,443)
Increase in current liabilities and provisions 13,811,280 191,479
Cash generated from operations {100,497,471) 57,375,644
Direct taxes paid (21,326,401) (12,663,644)
Fringe benefit tax paid (380,000) {212,8952)
Net cash from operating activities {122,203,872) 44,499,048
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (26,943,209) (25,431.561)
Net investment in term deposit {21,500,000)
Interest received 1,126,266 516,467
Net cash {used in) investing activities (25,816,943) (46,415,094)
C. Cash flows from financing activities

155,000,000
(1,326,566) (1,451,693)
(239,732) {307,291)
153,433,702 {1,758,984)
5,412,887 (3,675,030)
9,535,210 13,210,240
14,948,097 9,535,210
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Note:

a) The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity, at the date of purchasefinvestment, of
threa months or less to be cash equivalents.

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at year end 31 March 2007 31st March 2006

Rs. Rs.

Cash and bank balances at 31 March 33,198,097 35,552,653
Less : Bank deposits and margin monies

considerad separately (Refer note above ) 26,017,443 14,948,097 18,250,000

14,948,097 9,535,210

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh Chander K. Baljee Satish Pai

Partner Cirector Director
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore Bangalore
15 June2007 15 June 2007
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: [ 31516 | State code | 8

Balance sheet date | 31/03/2007 |

ii Capital raised during the year {Amounts in Rs.'000}

PublicIssue [ Nil | Rights Issue | Nil |

Bonus Issue | Nil | Private Placement | Nil |

i Pasition of Mobilisation and deployment of funds (amounts in Rs.’000)

Total Liabilities | 280759 | Total Assets 280759

Sources of fund

Paid up capital l 6000 | Reserves & Surplus | 114413 |
{P &L a/d)

Secured Loans [ 3046 | Unsecured loans | 157300 |

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | 78952 | Investments | ¢ |
Net current assets [ 201807 | Preliminary expenses | o |
Accumulated losses [ ¢ |
iv Parformance of the Company (amount in Rs."000)
Turnover l 283151 | Total Expenditure | 229412 |
Profit Kloss) after tax I 31791 | Earnings per share in Rs. | 530 |
Divident rate% l Nil |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms}
Item code No: {ITC code) 591001006
Product description Hotel
Item code No {ITC code) 390001002
Product description Restaurant
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DIRECTORS REPORY

Dear Shareholders,

We, the Directors of your Company, have pleasure in presenting the Thirteenth Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2007,

Financial Results
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2007 is summarized below:

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2006 - 07 2005 - 06
Operating income 550.92 277.36
Non-operating income 21.64 57.17
Total revenue 572.56 334.52
Expenditure 475.47 281.99
Net profit before Depreciation & Tax 97.09 52.53
Depreciation 55.7C 34.69
Profit after Depreciation but before Taxation 41.39 17.84

Performance Analysis

During the year 2006-07, your Company has achieved a 98.63% increase in turnover at Rs.550.92 lakhs compared toc Rs.277.36
lakhs of previous year, and the Net Profit before depreciation and tax is higher by 84.83% in the current year at Rs.97.09
lakhs Compared to of Rs.52.53 lakhs of the previous year.

Your Directors are also pleased to inform you that the profit after tax have also improved compared to the previous year due

to better room realizations and various cost control measures undertaken by your company.
Future Qutlook
New international Airport:

New international Airport situated at Yelhanka in Bangalore will be commissioned by 2nd April 2008, Vendors movement

already started, Your company will expect better room realizations by 2008 provided the hotel is renovated.
Tourist arrivals remain healthy

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have touched an
all time high. Success of “Incredible India™ campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing infrastructure thrust by the
government and India‘’s emergence as an outsourcing hub has led to a 13.2% surge in foreign tourist arrival in calendar year

2006 over the previous year.
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ARR expected to rise further

With growing business, domestic and international leisure travel, room demand is going to rise further, Though there is a
huge room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction, the demand
supply mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next year. By the middle of 2008 we might see some capacities
coming in. Till that time room rates are expected to rise further.

Directors

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Articles of Association of the Company Mr. Chander K.Baljee and
Ms.Panna Doddi retire by rotation and being eligible offers themselves for re-appointment.

Auditors’ and their Report:

M/s. P. Chandrasekar, Chartered Accountants, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has expressed their
willingness to continue in office if re-appointed. Since the proposal is in the best interests of the Company, your Directors
propose their appointment as Statutory Auditors for the current year, for the approval of shareholders.

Public Deposits
During the year under review, your company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217{2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the represen-
tations received from the Operations Management, hereby confirms that:

i.In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there are no
material departures,

It has, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and has applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

ii. It has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should be recog-
nized while relying on any system of internal control and records.

iii. It has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
Employees

The details of employees as specified under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies {Particu-
lars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended uptc date is not applicable.

Statutory Information

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section {1){e) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out hereunder:
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(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company's efforts towards conservation of energy, which results in savings in consumption of electricity, a
significant component of the energy cost, is an ongoing process.

(2} RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D), TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION

Your Company is engaged in Hotel & Hospitality Industry. Hence, your Company does not require Research &
Development activities. Despite that, the Company is constantly upgrading and optimizing the Process parameters
with emphasis on cost control and raticnalization. The Company continues to strive for improving methodology of
work and productivity of operations through continuous research. However, the actual expenditure incurred thereon
is minimal.

(3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
There is no foreign exchange earnings and cutgo during the year.
Acknowledgments

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish to place on record sincere thanks and appreciation Tor the co-operation
received by the Company from customers, suppliers, bankers, Central and State Governments and other statutory authori-
ties and others associated with the Cempany.

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering cutstanding services. Your Directors thank you
for the unstinted support and confidence reposed in the Management and look forward to your continued support.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

MARUTI COMFORTS & INN PRIVATE LIMITED

Flace : Bangalore CHANDER K. BAUEE
Date : 11.06.2007 Chairman
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AUDITORS REPORT

To
The Members of Maruti comforts & Inn Private Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Maruti Comforts & Inn Private Limited as at 31% March 2007 and also the
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company's Management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accerdance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staterments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003, issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227(4A)
of the Companies Act, 1956, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said
Order, to the extent applicable to the Company.

Further to our comments in the annexure attached hereto, we report that:

A, We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

B. In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been kept by Company, so far as appears from our
examination of books;

C.  The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this repart are in agreement with the books of account;

D. Inouropinion, the Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection
{3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ;

E.  Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanaticns given to us, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors under clause (g} of sub section (1) of Section 274 cof the
Companies Act, 1956.

F In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
together with the notes thereon, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required
and give the true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

{a )in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2007.
(b} in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on the date,

For P. CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR

Partner
Place ;: Bangalcre
Date : 11.06.2007
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORSY REPORT

Annexure to the auditor’s report of even date to the members of Maruthi Comforts and Inns Private Limited {"the
Company’), on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

{i} (a) The company is in the process of updating proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

{b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and nc material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{0) No substantial part of fixed assets have been disposed off during the year, to affect the going concern.

(i} (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management; In our
opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of
its business. In case of stocks lying with third parties, certificate confirming such stocks have been received in
respect of stocks held on 31st March-2007.

{b) The procedures of physical verification of inventary followed by the management is reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

(c) The company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

(iii} (a) The company has not granted, unsecured loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act.

{b) The company has taken interest free unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act from two parties amounting te Rs. 260.28 Lakhs and the
terms and conditions of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest
of the company. There is no amount overdue for mere than Rupees One Lakh

vi) In owr opinion and according to informations and explanations given to us, the company needs to strengthen the
internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business, for the
purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and there is no continuing faflure to correct major
weaknesses in internal control.

(v} (a) All transactions that need to be entered into a register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act have been so
entered.

(b) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, there are no transactions made
in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Campa-
nies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rs. 5.00 Lakhs, in respect of any party during the year have been
made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market price at the relevant time;

{vi} The company has not accepted deposits from the public, under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules framed there under.

{(vii) in our opinfon the company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its business.
However it needs to be strengthened

(viii} The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under clause (d) of sub-section
(1) of section 209 of the Act.
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(ix} (a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutery dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education
and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty,
cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of cutstanding statutory
dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

There is no dues of sales tax/income tax/custom taxfwealth tax/excise duty/cess that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

{x} The Company has accumulated losses and has not sustained cash losses during the current financial year covered
under our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi} The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank .

{xii} The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities.

(xiil} The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/nidhi/ mutual henefit fund/societies are not applicable
to the Company and therefore the provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are
not applicable to the company.

(xiv} As the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, the maintenance
of proper records of the transactions and contracts and making timely entries of the shares, securities, debentures
and other securities held by the company, are not applicable.

(xv} The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions, the terms
and conditions whereof are prejudicial to the interest of the company;

{(xvi} The Company has not taken any term loan from any bank or financial institutions.

{xvii} According to information and explanations given to us, and an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and fund
flow statement of the Company, we report that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long
term investment and vice versa.

{(xviii} The company has not made any preferantial allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under section 301 of the Act .

(xix} According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not issued any debentures during the year
and no securities were created by the company.

{xx} The company has not raised money on public issue.

(xxi) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and other relevant records and information made
available to us, prima-facie have not noticed any fraud on or by the Company, during the year. Further, the manage-
ment has represented to us that no fraud on or by the Company has been reported during the vear, However, we
are unable to determine / verify as to whether any such reporting has been made, during the year.

For M/s P. CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR
Partner
Place : Bangalore
Date : 11.06.2007
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Schedule 31% March 2007 | 31% March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS" FUNDS
Share Capital 1 41.000,000.00 41,000,000.00
Reserves and surplus 2 {41,215,646.27} (45,190,267.95)
{219,646.27} {4,190,267.95)
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans 3 356,949.76 435,815.31
Unsecured loans 4 26,028,609.00 20,103,246.00
26,385,558.76 20,539,061.31
26,165,912.4% 16,348,793.36
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 5
Gross Block 110,863,596.35 108,218,292.17
Less : Accumulated depreciation 53,776,556.20 48,206,071.20
Net block 57,087,040.15 60,012,220.97
Capital work-in-progress and advances 3,871,288.00 -
60,958,328.15 60,012,220.97
INVESTMENTS 6 - -
CURRENT ASSETS,LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 7 736,027.16 200,425.00
Sundry debtors 8 6,284,375.64 3,259,738.00
Unbilled revenues 183,749.00 -
Cash and bank balances 9 10,785,790.91 2,929,343.51
Loans and advances 10 6,211,930.28 4,378,154.38
24,201,872.99 10,767,660.89
LESS:CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 11 58.994,288.65 54,431,088.50
58,994,288.65 54,431,088.50
Net current assets {34,792,415.66} (43,663,427 .61)
26,165,912.49 16,348,793.36
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 21

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

M/s P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Ravi S Doddi
Chartered Accountants Director Director
P.Chandrasekar

Partner

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 11.06.2007

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 11.06.2007
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PROMT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Schedule | 31= March 2007 31* March 2006
Rs. Rs.
INCOME

Operating Incorne 12 55,092,044.10 27,735,606.66
Other Income 13 2,163,733.05 5,716,607.64
EXPENDITURE 57.255,777.15 33,452,214.30
Food and beverages consumed 14 9,683,104.05 5.168,757.11
Employee costs 15 8,201,298.00 4,035,874.00
Other operating expenses 16 15,979,681.00 11,198,359.35
General and administration expenses 17 12.445,914.97 7,003,367.33
Finance charges 18 1,235,554.45 792,581.31
Depreciation 5 5,570,485.00 3,469,177.28
53,117,037.47 31,668,116.38
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 4,138,739.68 1,784,097.92
LESS:0OLD BALANCES WRITTEN OFF - 6,908,743.00
4,138,739.68 (5.124,645.08)
Provision for tax - -
- Fringe Benefit tax 168,118.00 32,818.00
PROFIT AFTER TAX 3,970,621.68 (5.157,463.08)
Balance brought forward from the previous year/period 45,190,267.95 4(,032,804.87
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 41,219.646.27 45,193,267.95
EARNING PER SHARE (Par value - Rs.100) 9.68 {12.58)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 21

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the profit and loss account referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.
M/s. P. Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

BE. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 11.06.2007
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Director
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Director
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS

31t March 2007

31¢ March 2006

SCHEDULE 1

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

410000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up

410000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up

SCHEDULE 2

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Profit and Loss account

Balance at the beginning of the period
Add:Profit for the year/Period

Balance at the end of the year / period

SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS
Vehicle Loans

SCHEDULE 4

UNSECURED LOAN

From Directors- Ravi Doddi Group
From Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd.,

SCHEDULE &
INVESTMENTS

SCHEDULE 7
INVENTORIES

Food and beverages
Other items

SCHEDLILE 8
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured)

Debts outstanding for pericd exceeding six months:

- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Other debts

- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less:Provision for doubtful debts

Rs.

41,000,000.00

Rs.

41,000,000.00

41,000,600.00

41,000,000.00

41,000,600.00

41,000,000.00

45,190,267.95
3970621.68

40,032,804.87
-5,157,463.08

41,219,646.27

45,190,267.95

41,219,646.27

45,190,267.95

41,219,646.27

45,190,267.95

356,949.76 435,815.31
356,949.76 435,815.31
9,080,376.00 9,080,376.00

16,948,233.00

11,022,870.00

26,028,609.00

20,103,246.00

450,316.49 20042500
285,710.67 -
736,027.16 200,425.00
1,022,212.00 45,920.00
- 36,363.00
1.022,212.00 82,283.00
5.330,404.64 3,259,738.00
- 7.166.00
6,352,616.64 3,349,187.00
68,241.00 89,445.00
6,284,375.64 3,259,738.00
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31 March 2007

31 March 2006

SCHEDULE 9

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash balances on hand

Other cash balances

Banks balances with Scheduled Banks:

In Current accounts
F.D with Corporation Bank

SCHEDULE 10
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Advance Income tax
Security deposits
Prepaid Expenses
Interest accrued

SCHEDULE 11

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors

Accrued expenses

Trade Advances

Other liabilities

Dues to employees

Duties and taxes payable

Other liabilities - Club Membership
Less:Membership Revenue

SCHEDULE 12
OPERATING INCOME
Room Revenue

Food and Beverages
Other Service Charges

SCHEDULE 13

OTHER INCOME

Difference in Foreign exchange
Excess provision written back
Miscellaneous Income
F.D.Interest

24233466.00
1053444.00

Rs. Rs.

7.586.00 9,925.00
726,551.00

3,025,663.91 2,819,418.51
7,025,990.00 -
10,785,790.91 2,928,343.51
1,799,031.00 1.289,612.38
700,000.00 -
3,105,314.00 2.837,514.00
502,430.00 251,028.00
105,155.28 -
6,211,930.28 4,378,154.38
5.524,768.56 699,587.50
1,247,997.00 4,871,998.50
155,205.00 201,834.00
26,687,828.00 23,374,098.00
946.304.34 609,939.73
1,252,163.75 444, 424.77

23,180,022.00

24,229,206.00

58,994,288.65

54,431,088.50

28,380,143.57
24,942,192.15
1,769,708.38

13,371,045.14
13,849,981.27
1,130,570.25

55.092,044.10

28,451,606.66

27,859.00 0.0G
7,567.00 1,428,261.00
2,023,151.77 3,572,346.64
105,155.28 -
2,163,733.05 5,000,607.64
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315 March 2007

31 March 2006

SCHEDULE 14
FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED
QOpening Stock

Add:Purchases during the period

Less:Closing Stock

Consumption for the period

SCHEDULE 15

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries, wages and bonus

Kitchen stewarding

Contribution to Provident Fund & ESIC

Staff welfare

SCHEDULE 16

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Linen and room supplies

Kitchen and other supplies

Linen, Uniform washing and laundry expenses
Power and fuel

Lease rent for hotel premises

Hiring Charges

Management fees paid to ROHL
Management fees paid to Concept Hospitality
Repairs and Maintenance

Building

Machinery

Furniture

Others

Vehicle

Rs. Rs.
5,168,757.11 84,789.00
5,250,374.10 5,284,393.11

10,419,131.21 5,369,182.11
736,027.16 200,425.00
9,633,104.05 5,168,757.11
7,303,148.00 2,897,277.00
262,242.00 30,000.00
633,299.00 305,712.00

2,609.00 802,885.00
8,201,298.00 4,035,874.00
1,143,176.53 597,988.50

984,395.88 104,034.10
613,173.00 283,260.20
4,178,044.00 3,106,651.00
1.379.410.00 1,422,424.00
1,555,894.41 1,098,894.00
3,541,134.00 1,185,347.00
- 1,750,000.00
1.117,424.50 977.244.10
716,880.17 28,120.00
41,614.50 48,926.00
670,683.01 365,933.45
37.851.00 29,537.00

15,979.681.00

11,198,359.35
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31* March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs, Rs.
SCHEDULE 17
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Commission, brokerage and discount 1,560,087.93 1,322,233.13
Rates and taxes 1,514,574.10 1,831,068.96
Advertising and business promotion 1,241,765.00 190,299.00
Legal and professional charges 219,602.00 246,593.00
Technical fees - ROHL 3,813,963.00 -
Telephone, Internet and Fax 389,098.00 385,774.77
Printing and Stationery 533,228.05 213,366.50
Travelling and conveyance 26,874.00 926,645.00
Consultancy paid 586,902.00 502,520.00
Audit fees 84,270.0 40,000.00
Security charges 615.946.00 378,291.00
Provisional for doubtful debts 68,241.00 £9,449.00
Insurance 410,235.00 195,092.00
Music and entertainment 211,822.00 217,402.00
Carriage inward 387.661.00 93,916.00
Bank Charges 49,880.1% 50,843.70
Miscellaneous expenses 490,875.70 319,873.27
12,446,914.97 7.003,367.33
SCHEDULE 18
FINANCE CHARGES
Interest on Vehicle Loan 35,554.45 9,955.31
Interest on Loan (KSIIDC) - 782,626.00
Interest on Unsecured Loan 1,200,000.00 -
1,235,554.45 792,581.31

M/s. P. Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Chander K. Baljee
Director

Ravi 5 Doddi
Director

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 11.06.2007

Flace : Bangalore
Dated : 11.06.2007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE - 21

1.

Background

Maruti Comforts & Inn Pvt Ltd., (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 16" March 1994 to carry on the business Hotels
! Holiday resorts and related services. M/s.Royal Crchid Hotels Limited holds 51% of equity shares and Balance of 49%
hold by M/s.Senet Cable Private Ltd.,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). The
accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liahilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledye
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates of the economic useful lives of the
fixed assets, provisions for bad and doubtful debts and accruals for leave encashment, bonus and gratuity.

Revenue recognition

Revenues comprise income from the sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services during a guest’s stay at
the Hotel. Room revenue is recognized based on occupation and revenues from sale of food and beverages and
other allied services, as the services are rendered.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. All costs relating to acquisition
and installation of fixed assets are capitalized.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line Method, using the higher of the rates specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or management estimates of the economic useful lives of such assets.
These rates are specified below:

Asset Category Rates of Depreciation {%)
Plant and machinery 4.75%
Office Equipment 4.75%
Computer and related equipment, including software 16.21%
Furniture & fittings 9.50%
Vehicles 9.50%
Gym Equipments 4.75%
Discotheque 4.75%
Water Fountain 4.75%

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Improvements to buildings
are amortized over the period of the lease.
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. Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as on impairment loss
and is recognized in the profit and loss account. It at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost,

Inventary

Inventory comprises stock of food and beverages and is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and conditicn and determined on a
Weighted Average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.

Retirement benefits

The Company provides for gratuity and bonus, a defined benefit plan in accordance with the rules of the Company
based on actuarial valuation carried out at the balance sheet date, by an independent actuary. Contributions
payable to the recognized Provident Fund and Employees state Insurance Scheme, which are defined contribution
schemes, which are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

ix. Leave Encashment

The Company provides for the leave encashment liahility at the balance sheet date based on the accumulated leave

balance of the employees and the last drawn salary.

. Taxes on income

During the year no deferred tax has been recognized as there is no virtual certainty that sufficient taxable incomemay
be available in future against with such deferred tax could be realized.

Earnings per share
Basic Earning per Share are Calculated by dividing Net Profit/Net Loss for the period divided by Number of Shares. As
there are no un issued shares during the year the diluted earning will be the same as basic earning.

. Provisions and contingent liahilities

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an cutflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of

which the likelihood of cutflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Recoverability of loans and advances

In the opinion of the beard of directars, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ardinary

course of business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provisions for all known lizbilities has been

made in the accounts.
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4,  Earnings per share
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31" March 2007 | 31" March 2006
Rs. Rs.
Net Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholder 39,70,622 {51,57,463)
Basic earning per share 13.07 34.88
Nominal value per equity share 100 100
5. Related party transactions
i. Parties where control exists include
Name of the party Nature of Relationship
Ravi.S.Doddi Key Management Personnel
Panna Doddi Key Management Personnel
C.K.Baljee Key Management Personnel
Reyal Orchid Hotels Ltd Entity Controlled by Directors
Ravi.S.Doddi- HUF Entity Controlled by Directors
Quantum Technologies Entity Contrelled by Directors
R.D.Realtors Entity Controlled by Directors
R.5.Corporation Entity Controlled by Directors
Senet Cables Private Limited Entity controlled by Director
ii. Transactions with Related Parties during the year
Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year include:
Name of the Party Nature of Relationship
Ravi.S.Doddi Key Management Personnel
Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd Entity Contrelled by Directors
The transactions with related parties during the year ended 31" March 2007 is summarized below:
Nature of transaction Holding Entity Relatives of TOTAL
company controlled Management
by Directors Personnel
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Management Service fee (32,18,698} - - - 32,18,698

6. Segmental Information

The Company’s business comprises the operation of hotels, the services of which represent one business segment as
they are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each other. Further the Company derives its entire revenues
from services rendered in India, consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment - wise information is
not applicable to the Company.

7. Priar year comparatives

The Company has prepared financial statements, in accordance with AS-25, prier period comparatives have been
provided.
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Membership fees if for a period of 30 years from the commencement of operations. Accordingly Membership fees are
accrued ratably over the contract period. The balance of such fees received is carried as a liability. Also, membership fee
is accrued for the contracted amount on receipt of Application for membership. Dues on such account are carried under
other current assets.

Further the Prometers of the Company have guaranteed for settlement of any Liabilities arising due tc the above.

During the year 51% of the Equity Shares have been acquired by Royal Orchid Hotels Limited Bangalore (RGHL}. In
terms of various agreements, between Senet Cables Private Limited (being the 4%% stake holders) and ROHL, all the
liabilities and certain activities are to be carried out by Senet Cables Private Limited. The process of such commitments
are still continuing and expected to bhe completed during the subsequent financial years. In view of the ahove, the
liabilities which have remained outstanding but not payable are regrouped under currant liabilities and will be adjusted
Awritten back in future years upon completion of the commitments made by Senet Cables Private Limited.

Deferred Income Taxes:

In view of the carried forward losses and future uncertainties, the deferred tax assets have not been recognized in the
books for the period under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

M/s, P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Ravi S Doddi
Chartered Accountants Director Director

P. Chandrasekar

Partner
Place :Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Dated : 11.06.2007 Dated : 11.06.2007
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Year ended
31% March 2007
Rs.

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 4,138,740
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation 5,570,485
Assets written off -
Finance charges 1,235,554
Provisional for Doubtful debts 68,241
Operating profit before working capital changes 11,013,020
Movement in working capital:
Increase in sundry debtors - 3,276,628
Increase in Inventories - 535,602
Increase in loans and advances 1,833,776
Increase in current liabilities - 4,563,201
Taxes paid - 168,118
Net cash from operative activities - 1,250,923
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets - 2645304
Capital Work in Progress - 3871288
Net investment in term deposit -
Purchase of investment -
Loan to holding co 5925363
Loan repayment by holding co -
Sales/maturity of investments -
Interest received -
Net cash used in investing activities - 591229
Cash flows from financing activities
Share capital
Proceeding from long-term borrowings -
Repayment of long-term borrowings - 78866
Interest paid - 1235554
Net cash used in financing activities - 1314420
A+B+C 7,856,448
Cash and bank balance as on 01/04/06 2929343
Cash and bank balance as on 31/03/07 10785791

Far and an behalf of the Board of Directors

M/s. P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Ravi S Doddi
Chartered Accountants Director Director

P. Chandrasekar

Partner

Place :Bangalare Place : Bangalore

Dated : 11.06.2007 Dated : 11.06.2007
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VITO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: | 15366 | State code | 8

Balance sheet date | 31/03/2007 |

ii Capital raised during the year {Amounts in Rs.’000}
Public Issue | Nil | Rights Issue | Nil ‘

Bonus lssue | Nil | Private Placement | Nil |

iii Position of Mobilisation and deployment of funds (amounts in Rs.'000)

Total Liabilities 26165 | Total Assets 26165

Sources of fund

Paid up capital | 41000 | Reserves & Surplus | 41220 |
(P &L al)
Secured Loans | 357 | Unsecured loans | 26029 ]

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | 57087 | Investments | Nil |
Net current assets | 34792 | Preliminary expenses | Nil ]
Accumulated losses | Nil |
iv Performance of the Company {amount in Rs."000)
Turnover | 57256 | Total Expenditure | 53117 |
Profit /{loss) after tax | 3971 | Earnings per share in Rs. | 9.68 ‘
Divident rate% | Nil |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms}
Item code No: (ITC code) 591001006
Product description Hotel
Item code No.{ITC code) 390001002
Product description Restaurant
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We, the Directors of your Company, have pleasure in presenting the Second Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 317 March 2007,

Financial Results
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2007 is summarized below:

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Particulars 2006 - 07
Operating income 121.16
Non-operating income 3.0
Total revenue 125.06
Expenditure 105.93
Net profit before Depreciation & Tax 19.13
Depreciation 3.34
Profit after Depreciation but before Taxation 15.29

Performance Analysis

During the year 2006 - 07, your Company has witnessed a period of revival with a turnover of Rs. 121.16 lakhs and the Net
Profit before depreciation and tax at Rs.19.13 lakhs.

Future Qutlook
Tourist arrivals remain healthy

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have touched an
all time high. Success of “Incredible India” campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing infrastructure thrust by the
government and India‘’s emergence as an outsourcing hub has led to a 13.2% surge in foreign tourist arrival in calendar year

2006 over the previous year.
ARR expected to rise further

With growing business, domestic and internaticnal leisure travel, room demand is going to rise further. Though there is a
huge room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction, the demand
supply mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next year. By the middle of 2008 we might see some capacities

coming in. Till that time room rates are expected to rise further,

93




Company’s performance

With Industrial growth, including the Heospitality Industry, likely to remain strong, your Company’s overall performance and
operating results are expected to further improve in the current year. With the positive mood prevailing in the tourism
industry, the outlook for the company promises to be brighter in the coming years.

Directars

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 256, Mr. Chander K. Baljee- Director retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself
for re-appointment.

Auditors’ and their Report:

M/s. P. Chandrasekar, Chartered Accountants, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has expressed their willingness
to continue in office if re-appointed. Since the proposal is in the best interests of the Company, your Directors propose their
appointment as Statutory Auditors for the current year, for the approval of shareholders.

Public Deposits
During the year under review, your company has neither invited nor accepted any depasits from the public.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the representations
received from the Operations Management, hereby confirms that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there
are no material departures.

ii. Ithas, inthe selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and has applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

iii. It hastaken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should be

recognized while relying on any system of internal control and records.
iv. It has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
Employees

The details of employees as specified under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies {Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended upto date is not applicable.

Statutory Information

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section {1){e) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies

{Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out hereunder:
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(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company's efforts towards conservation of energy, which results in savings in consumption of electricity, a
significant component of the energy cost, is an ongoing process.

(2) RESFARCH AND DEVEL OPMENT (R & D), TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOQVATION

Your Company is engaged in Hotel & Hospitality Industry. Hence, your Company does not require Research &
Development activities. Despite that, the Company is constantly upgrading and optimizing the Process parameters
with emphasis on cost control and rationalization. The Company continues to strive for improving methodology of
work and productivity of operations through continuous research. However, the actual expenditure incurred thereon
is minimal.

(3} FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
There is no foreign exchange earnings and outge during the year.
Acknowledgments

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish to place on record sincere thanks and appreciation for the co-operation
received by the Company from customers, suppliers, bankers, Central and State Governments and other statutory authorities
and others associated with the Company.

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering outstanding services. Your Directors thank you for
the unstinted support and confidence reposed in the Management and look forward to your continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RCYAL ORCHID JAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED

Place : Bangalore CHANDER K. BALJEE
Date : 15.06.2007 Chairman
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Registration No : 08/36813
Nominal Capital : Rs 2 Crores
To

The Members,
ROYAL ORCHID JAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED

| have examined the registers, records, books and papers of ROYAL ORCHID JAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED {the Company){Formerly
Known as Reyal Orchid Banjara Private Limited), as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 1956, {the Act) and
the rules made thereunder and also the provisions contained in the Memoerandum and Articles of Association of the Company
for the financial year ended on 317 March 2007. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the
examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished to me by the company, its officers and agents, | certify that in
respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1.  The company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure ‘A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions and
the rules made thereunder and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

2. The company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other authorities under the Act and the
rules made thereunder.

3. The company being a private limited company (and subsidiary of public company} has minimum prescribed paid-up
capital and its maximum number of members during the said financial year was 3 excluding its present and past
employees and the company during the year under scrutiny.

+ Has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures; and
+ Has not invited or accepted any deposits from persons other than its members, directors or their relatives.

4.  The Board of Directors duly met 6 (5ix) times on 1st June 2006, 28th July 2006, 1st September 2006, 30th September
2006, 9th October 2006, 30th January 2007 and in respect of which meetings proper notices were given and the
proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose

5. The Company was not required to close its Register of Members or Debenture holders during the financial year.

6. The Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 31st March 2006 was held on 30th September 2006 after
giving due notice to the members of the Company and the resolution passed thereat were duly recorded in Minutes
Book maintained for the purpose.

7. Two Extra-ordinary General Meetings were held during the financial year.

B. The company has not advanced any loans to its directors or persons or firms or companies referred to under Section 295
of the Act.

9.  The company has duly complied with provisions section 297 of the Act in respect of contracts specified in that section.
10.  The company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act

11.  As there were no instances falling within the purview of section 314 of the Act, the company has not obtained any
approvals from the board of directors, members or Central Government.

12. The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the financial year.
13. The company

has delivered all the certificates on allotment of securities during the financial year;

has not deposited any amount in a separate bank account as no dividend was declared during the financial year.
has not posted warrants to any member of the company as no dividend was declared during the financial year
was not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund, as the Company has no
unclaimed dividend.

+ has duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.

* * * ¥
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14. The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted.

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Director AWhole-time Director/ Manager during the financial year.

16. The Company has not appeointed any sole-selling agents during the financial year.

17. The company was not required to obtain any approvals of the Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional
Director, Registrar of Companies or such other authorities as may be prescribed under the various provisions of the Act
during the financial year.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms /fcompanies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and the rule made thereunder.

19. The company has issued 16,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each during the financial year and complied with the provisions
of the Act.

20. The company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

21.  Since the company has not issued debentures and preference shares the matter of redemption does not arise.

22, There were no transactions necessitating the company to keep in abeyance rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus
shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The company has not invited/accepted any deposits including any unsecured loans falling within the purview of Section
58A of the Companies Act 1956, during the financial year.

24, The Company has duly complied with provisions of Section 293{1){d) of the Act and the necessary resolution as per that
Section have been passed in duly convened extraordinary general meeting.

25. The company has not made any loans or advances or given guarantees or provided securities to other bodies corporate
and consequently no entries have been have heen made in the register kept for the purpose.

26. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to situation of the
company during the year under scrutiny

27. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to the objects of the
company during the year under scrutiny.

28. The company has altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to name of the company
during the year under scrutiny.

29. The company has altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to share capital of the
company during the year under scrutiny.

30. The company has altered its Articles of Association during the financial year.

31. The company has nct received any notices from Registrar of Companies during the financial year

32. The company has not received any maney as security from its employees during the financial year.

33. Since the company is directly paying employers and employees contribution to provident fund authorities, the provisions
of section 418 of the Act is not applicable to this company.

Sdr-
PLACE : Bangalore Name : G. Shanker Prasad
DATE : 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice

C.P.No. : 6450
97




ANNEXURE “A"

Registers as maintained by the Company:

Statutory Registers

5L. Ne. Name of the Register Under Section Remarks
1 Register of Members 150 Updated
2 Register of Directors 303 Updated
3 Register of Director’s Share holding 307 Updated
4 Register of Charges 143{1) Updated
5 Minutes Books of Board Meeting & General Meeting 193 Updated
6 Books of Accounts 208 Updated
7 Register of Contracts 301(3) Updated

Other Registers

SL No Name of the Register
1 Register of Directors Attendance
2 Register of shareholders Attendance

Note: - The company has not maintained the following registers as it was informed that there were no entries/transactions

to be recorded there in

S5L.NO Name of the Register
1 Register of Securities Bought Back
2 Register and Index of Debenture holders
3 Minutes Book of Class Meeting
4 Register of Renewed and duplicate certificates
5 Register of Destruction of Records
6 Register of Deposits
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ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies during the financial year ending an 31 March

2007
SL. No. Forms U/s For Whether filed If delay in filing
within the whether requisite
prescribed time additional fee paid
Yes/No Yes/NA
1. Balance Sheet 220 For the year
ended on 31.03.2006 NO YES
2. Annual Return 159 Made up to 30.09.2006 NO YES
3. Form 2 75(1} Allotment of shares
4, Form 23 192 Alteration of articles of
association and Increase of
share capital YES NO
5 Form 62 Alteration of articles of
association for increase of
share capital YES NO
6. Form 23 192 Change of name
7. Form 62 Alteration of MOA & AQA for
change of Name YES NO
8. Form 5 Increase of share capital YES NO
9. Form 1A Change of name application
10. Form 1B Change of name YES NO

PLACE : Bangalore
DATE :15.06.2007

Sd/-

Name

C.P.No. :

G. Shanker Prasad
Company Secretary in Practice
6450

99




AUVDITORS REPORT
To

The Members
Royal Orchid Jaipur Private Limited
Bangalore

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Royal Orchid Jaipur Private Limited as at 31° March 2007 and also the Profit
and Loss Account for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsihility of the
Company's Management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinicn on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003, issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227{4A)
of the Companies Act, 1956, the matters specified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order, are not applicable to the Company.

Further to cur comments in the annexure attached hereto, we report that:

A. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by Company, sc far as appears from our
examination of books;

C.  The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this repert are in agreement with the books of account;

D. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards  referred to in
subsection (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ;

E.  Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified from heing appointed as Directors under clause (g} of sub section (1) of Section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

F In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
together with the notes thereon,. give the information required by the Companies Act, 1856 in the manner so required
and give the true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

a} in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March 2007.

b} in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on the date.

For M/s PCHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Date : 15 June 2007

100




ROYAL ORCHID JAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

ANNEXURE TO AUDITOR™S KEPORT

Annexure to the auditor's report of even date to the members of Royal Orchid Jaipur Private Limited (‘the Company’), on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

(i) (a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

{b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and nc material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) No substantial part of fixed assets have been disposed off during the year, to affect the going concern.

(il (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management; In our opinion
the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

{b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

{c) The company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

{(iii) (a) The company has not granted interest free unsecured loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act on the terms and conditions of loans taken by the company,
unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company. There is no amount overdue for more than
Rupees One Lakh.

(b). The company has taken interest free unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act from one party amounting to Rs. 438.98 Lakhs and the terms and
conditions of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company.
There is no amount overdue for more than Rupees One Lakh

{iv) Inouropinionand according to informations and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,

{v) (a) Alltransactions that need to be entered into a register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act have been so entered.

{b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rs, 5.00 Lakhs, in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices
which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market price at the relevant time;

{vi} The company has not accepted deposits from the public, under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(vii) Inour opinion the company has an internal audit system commaensurate with its size and nature of its business. However
it needs to be strengthened

{viil) The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under clause {d) of sub-section (1)
of section 209 of the Act.

{ix) The Company has no accumulated losses and has not sustained cash losses during the current financial year covered
under cur audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

{(x) The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank .

101




(xi} The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
other securities.

(xii) The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/nidhif mutual benefit fund/societies are not applicable to the
Company and therefore the provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 2003 are not applicable
to the company.

(xiii) As the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, the maintenance of
proper records of the transactions and contracts and making timely entries of the shares, securities, debentures and
other securities held by the company, are not applicable.

(xiv) The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions, the terms and
conditions whereof are prejudicial to the interest of the company;

(xv)] The Company has not taken any term loan from any bank or financial institutions.

{xvi}) According to information and explanations given to us, and an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and fund flow
statement of the Company, we report that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long term
investment and vice versa.

(xvii) The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under section 301 of the Act .

(xviii) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not issued any debentures during the year and
no securities were created by the company.

(xix} The company has not raised money on public issue.

{xx) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and other relevant records and information made available
to us, prima-facie have not noticed any fraud on or by the Company, during the year. Further, the management has
represented to us that no fraud on or by the Company has been reported during the year. However, we are unable to
determine / verify as to whether any such reporting has been made, during the year.

(xxi) All other provisions of the said order are not applicable to the company

For M/s P. CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P CHANDRASEKAR
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Date : 15 June 2007
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BALANCE SHEET

Schedule | 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
s, Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital 1 16,600,000 100,000
Reserves and surplus 2 460,317 -
17,060,317 100,000
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans 3 383,400 -
Unsecured loans 4 43,898,692 4,344,850
Deferred Tax Liabilities 870,000 -
45,152,092 4,344,850
TOTAL 62,212,409 4,444,850
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 5
Gross Block 24,974,923 -
Less : Accumulated depreciation 383,711 -
Net block 24,591,212 -
Capital work-in-progress and advances - 1,030,462
24,591,212 1,030,462
INVESTMENTS - -
CURRENT ASSETS,LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 6 684,371 -
Sundry debtors 7 2,286,868 -
Cash and bank balances 8 23,117,621 74,800
Loans and advances 9 18,484,165 4,320,000
44,573,025 4,394,800
LESS:CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 10 6,679,138 1,005,612
Provisions 11 292,850 -
6,971,988 1,005,612
Net current assets 37,601,037 3,389,188
Miscellaneous Expenditure
(to the extent not written-off or Adjusted)
Preliminary Expenses 20,160 25,200
Profit & Loss account - -
TOTAL 62,212,409 4,444,850
Note forming part of accounts 21
As per our report of even date
For M/s P. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
P.Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Arjun Baljee
Partner Director Director
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15 June 2007 Dated : 15 June 2007
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Schedule | 31+ March 2007 31* March 2006
Rs. Rs.
INCOME
Operating income 12 12,116,140 -
Other income 13 390,074 -
12,506,214 -
EXPENDITURE
Food and beverages consumed 14 1,333,730 -
Employees cost 15 2,140,783 -
Other operating expenses 16 6,097,046 -
Selling, General and administration expenses 17 1,009,564
Finance charges 18 12,155 -
Depreciation 19 383,711 -
10,976,989 -
Profit before tax, change in accounting polocy 1,529,225 -
and prior period items
Profit before tax and prior pericd items - -
Profit before tax change in accounting -
Provision for Income tax 170,000 -
Provision for Fringe benefit tax 28,908 -
Provision for Deferred tax 870,000
Profit after tax 460,317 -
Balance brought forward for the previous year - -
Excess provision for Tax written back n -
Surplus available for appropriation 460,317 -
Appropriation - -
Transfer to general reserve - -
Interim Dividend -
Proposed final dividend - -
Corporate Tax on dividend - -
Surplus carried to balance sheet 460,317 -
Notes forming part of accounts 21
As per our report of even date
For M/s P. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
P.Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Arjun Baljee
Partner Director Director
Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15 June 2007 Dated : 15 June 2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31« March 2007 31¢ March 2006
Ris. Rs.
SCHEDLULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
2000000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 20,000,000 500,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
1660000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 16,600,000 100,000
16,600,000 100,000
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Balance transferred from Profit & Loss accounts 460,317 -
460,317 -
SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS
Vehicle loan - ICICI bank car loan {Against hypothecation of vehicles) 383,400 -
383,400 -
SCHEDULE 4
UNSECURED LOANS
Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd 43,898,692 4,344,850
43,898,692 4,344,850
SCHEDULE 5
FIXED ASSETS
Cost Depredation Wiitten Down Value
Particulars Value Addit- | Deductions/ Value | Depredation Upto | Deductions/ Forthe Upto Asat Asat
asan ians Adjust- Asat Rate | 31.032006 Adjust- year | 31.032007 3032007 | 31032006
3032006 ments | 1032007 ments
Buildings - - - M - - - - - -
Plantand machinery - | 1273712 - | e 475% - - 120,906 120,906 12620810 -
Office Equipment - 162,153 - 33068% 475% - - 12062 12,062 3294734
Computers - | 330570 - 1R2X8 16.21% - - 96,597 96,897 65311 -
Furniture fixtures - | 8259151 - 8261964 85% . - 145219 45219 8116245
Vehides - 502,189 - 502182 95% - - 8627 8627 493562 -
Discothegue - - - - 475% - - - - - -
Gym Eguipmenits - - - - 4.5 - - - - - -
Water equipments - - - - 4.75% - - - - - -
P 1030462 - 1030462 - 4.75% . - - 1,030462
Current year 130482 | 497295 1030402 | 24974923 - - - ol 33N 259,212 1.030462
Previous year - - - - - - - - - -
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31 March 2007

31 March 2006

SCHEDULE 6
INVENTORIES

{Valued at cost}

Food and beverages
Stores and spare parts

SCHEDULE 7

SUNDRY DEBTORS

{Unsecured considered good)

Debtors oustanding for a period exceeding six months
Others Considered good

SCHEDULE 8

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash balances on hand

Banks balances with Scheduled Banks :
In Current accounts

In deposts account (TOR)

In margin account

SCHEDULE 9

LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Staff

Security deposit

Prepaid expenses

Interest accrued and not due

TDSTCS

SCHEDULE 10

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors suppliers
Accrued expences

Duties and taxes

Lease rent payable
Other liabilities

Security deposit

Share Application money

SCHEDULE 11

Gratuity

Provision for taxation
Provision for FBT

Total

SCHEDULE 12

OPERATING INCOME
Room revenue

Food & Beverages revenue
Other service revenue

Rs.

353,855
330,516

Rs.

684,371

2,286,868

2,286,868

279,646

2,929,488
17,763,521
2,144,966

23,117,621

40,911
17,177,500
865,889
321,715
78,150

4,320,600

18,484,165

4,320,000

3,056,069
1,116,616
1,104,132
1,391,400
4,921
6,000

5,612

100,000

6,679,138

1,005,612

93,942
170,006
28,908

292,850

9,792,013
2,178,628
146,099

12.116.140
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31t March 2007 31 March 2006

SCHEDULE 13
QTHER INCOME
Interest income
Guest transportatin
Profit on FC

SCHEDULE 14

FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED
Opening stock

Add Purchases during the year

Less Closing stock

Consumption for the year

SCHEDULE 15

EMPLOYEES" REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS
Salaries/allowances/Gratukity/Bonus
Contribution to FF

Staff welfare

SCHEDULE 16

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Linen and room supplies

Other kitchen supply

Linen, uniform washing and laundry expenses
Power and fuel

Lease rent for hotel properties
Hire charges

Repairing and maintenance
Machinery

Furniture & Fixture

Others

Preliminary expenses written off

SCHEDULE 17

SELLING GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Commission, brokerage and discount
Rates and taxes

Advertisement and business promotion
Legal and professional charges
Communicatin cost

Printing and stationery

Travelling and conveyance

Security charges

Audit fees

Insurance

Bank charges

Miscellaneoues expenses

Postage and couriers

SCHEDULE 18
INTEREST
Interest on lean
Interest - others

SCHEDULE 19
DEPRECIATION
Depreciation

Rs. Rs.

334,273 -
494,26 -
6,375 -

390,074 -

1,687,585 -
(353,855)

1,333,730 -

1,839,243 -
111,712 -
189,828 -

2,140,783 -

713,684 -
334,084 -
166,652 -
720,442 -
3,948,209 -
32,275 -

99,616 -
42,319 -
34,725 -

5,040 -

6,097,046 -

181,054
139,039
231,077
17,284
92,959
51,664
101,080
89,187
84,270
3,530
10,492
1,731
6.197 -

1,009,564 -

9,213 -
2,942

12,155 -

383,711 -

383,711 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANUTIAL STATEMERNTS

SCHEDULE 21

1.

108

Background

Royal Crchid Jaipur Pvt. Ltd. {"the Company”} was incorporated on 21.07.05 to carry on the business hotels/holiday
resorts and related services. M/s. Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd holds 100% of equity shares of the Company. The Hotel started
its commercial activity on 26%January 2007.

The company entered into an agreement with M/s. Paradise Mehak Properties Pyvt. Ltd for lease the property along with
the building for a period of 19 years 11 months with a right of renewal. The rent payable Rs. 12,50,000/= per month with
an enhanced at the rate of 3% every year. An interest free refundable Security deposit of Rs 1,71,20,500/= was given to
M/s. Paradise Mehak Properties Pvt. Ltd.

The company entered intc an agreement with M/s.Paradise Mehak Properties Pvt. Ltd. For lease of equipment, plant and
machinery at the property for a period of 19 years 11 months with a right of renewal. The rent payable is at Rs.5,50,000/
- per month with an enhanced at the rate of 3% every year.

A tri-partite agreement was sign on 29™ of January 2007 between Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
who lend Rs. 12.50 Crores to M/s. Paradise Mehak Properties Pvt. Ltd. the lessor and Royal Crchid Jaipur Pvt Ltd the
lessee. As per the agreement the lessee will pay the loan repayment amount with interest directly to the lender HDFC
from the lease rent payable to the lesser account.

The Hotel already approach the Govt of India, Ministry of Tourism for 4 star category approval and the process are on for
the same.

Significant accounting policies

i Basis of preparation

The financial statement have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}. The
accounting pelicies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

i Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires man-
agement of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results could differ from those estimates of the economic useful lives of the fixed assets, provisions for bad and
doubtful debts and accruals of leave encashment, bonus and gratuity.

il Revenue recognition

Revanues comprise income from the sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services during a guest's stay at
the Hotel, room revenue is recognized based on occupation and revenues for sale of foed and beverages and other
allied services, as the services are rendered.

v Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. All costs relating to acquisition
and installation of fixed assets are capitalized.
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v Depreciation
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line Method, using the higher of the rates specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or management estimates of the economic useful lives of such assets.
These rates are specified below:
Assets category Rates of depreciation used %
Plant and Machinery 4.75%
Office Equipment 1.75%
Computer and related equipment, including software 16.21%
Furniture and fittings 9.5%
Vehicles 9.5%
Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5000.00 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Improvements to
buildings are amortized over the pericd of the lease.

vi Impairment of assets
The company assessed at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less that its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as on impairment loss
and is recognized in the profit and loss account. It at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

vii  Inventory
Inventory comprised stock of food and beverages and is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes all expenses incurred in bringing the good to their present location and condition and determined on a
Weighted Average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.

viii Retirement benefits
The Company provides for gratuity and bonus, a defined benefit plan in accordance with the rules of the company
based on actuarial valuation carried out at the balance sheet date, by an independent actuary. Contributions
payahle to the recognized Provident Fund and Employees state Insurance scheme, which are defined contribution
schemes, which are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

ix Leave Encashment
The company provides for the leave encashment liability at the balance sheet date based on the accumulated leave
balance of the employees and the last drawn salary.

x  Taxes on incorme
During the year no deferred tax has been recognized in accordance with A522 of ICAL

X Earnings per share

XiF

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit/loss for the period divided by Number of shares. As there
are ng un-issued shares during the year the diluted earning will be the same as basic earning.

Provisions and contingent fiabilities

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
and outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
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contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
required an outflow of rescurces. When there is a possible obligation or present cbligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made.

xiif Leases - Operating Leases

Operating Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased term are classified as operating leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit
and loss account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

RECOVERABILITY OF LOANS AND ADVANCES

In the opinion of the board of directors, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordi-
nary course of business at Jaipur equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provisions for all known liakilities
has been made in the accounts.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

31+ March 2007 31+ March 2006

{Rs.) (Rs.)
Net profit/loss after tax attributable to equity shareholder 4,30,317 {3,30,462)
Basic earning per share 0.26 {-)
Nominal value per equity share 10.00 10.00
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTINS
i Parties where control exists include
Name of the party Nature of relationship
Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd Entity controlled by Directors
Mr. Arjun Baljee Entity controlled by Directors
Mr. C K Baljee Entity controlled by Directors

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Company’s business comprises the operation of hotel, the services of which represent one business segment as they
are subject to risks and returns that are similar 1o each other. Further the company derives its entire revenues from
services rendered in India, consequently, the disclosure of business and gecgraphic segment-wise information is not
applicable to the company.

PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVES

The Company has prepared financial statements, in accordance with AS-25 prior period comparatives have been pro-
vided and have been reclassified and rearranged wherever necessary.

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
The deferred tax asset has been taken into books for the period under review.
QUANITITATIVE DETAILS

Due to the volume and large number of insignificant transactions, the management is unable 1o provide the quantitative
information on the turnover and consumption of food and beverages consumed. The Company is in the process of
applying to the central government for exemption from presentation of such information.
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10. State Bank of Hyderabad Bangalore has issued deferred payment guarantee to HDFC for a maximum amount of Rs.150
Lakhs with validity up to 21/02/2008.

11. The company has received two EPCG licences with entitles it to import capital goeds at a concessional rate of duty.
Against these imports the company has export obligations equal to eight times of the duty amount saved. The Company
has commenced this obligation from the current year enwards.

Particulars relating to foreign exchange

Income from operations Rs.13,06,224
Value of import on CIF basis capital goods Rs.39,87,043
For M/s P Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Arjun Baljee Chander K. Baljee
Partner Director Director

Place ; Bangalore
Date : 15 June 2007
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CASLH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended
31 March 2007
Rs.
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 1,529,225
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation 383.711
Assets written off 5,040
Finance charges 12,155
Provisional for Doubtful debts
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,930,131
Movement in working capital :
Increase in sundry debtors - 2,286,868
Increase in Inventories - 684,371
Increase in loans and advances - 14,164,165
Increase in current liabilities 5,966,375
Taxes paid - 1,068,908
Net cash from operative activities - 11,367,937
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets -23944460
Net investment in term deposit -
Purchase of investment -
Loan to holding company 39937242
Loan repayment by holding company -
Sales/fmaturity of investments -
Interest received -
Net cash used in investing activities 15992782
C.  Cash flows from financing activities
Share capital 16500000
Proceeding from long-term borrowings -
Repayment of long-term borrowings -
Interest paid -12155
Net cash used in financing activities 16487845
A+B+C 23042821
Cash and bank balance as on 01/04/06 74800
Cash and bank balance as on 21/03/07 23117621

Far M/s P. Chandrasekar

Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place : Bangalore

Dated : 15 June 2007
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Chander K. Baljee
Director

Place : Bangalore

Dated ; 15 June 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Arjun Baljee
Director
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: [ 36813 | State code [ 8

Balance sheet date [ 31/03/2007 |

ii Capital raised during the year (Amounts in Rs.”000)
Public Issue [ Nil | Rights Issue l Nil |

Bonus lssue | Nil | Private Placemant | Nil |

iii Paosition of Mobilisation and deployment of funds (amounts in Rs."000})

Total Liabilities 62212 | Total Assets 62212

Sources of fund

Paid up capital I 16600 | Reserves & Surplus I 460 |
{P&Lalk)
Secured Loans l 383 | Unsecured loans l 44769 |

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | 24591 | Investrents | 0 |
Net current assets [ 37601 | Preliminary expenses [ 20 |
Accumulated losses [ Nil |
iv Performance of the Company {amount in Rs."000)
Turnover l 12506 | Total Expenditure l 10976 |
Profit /{loss) after tax I 460 | Earnings per share in Rs. I 0.26 |
Divident rate% | Nil |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms)
Item code No: {ITC code) 591001006
Product description Hotel
Item code No.(ITC code) 390001002
Product desperation Restaurant
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DIRECTORY REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We, the Directors of your Company, have pleasure in presenting the Second Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2007.

Financial Results :

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2007 is summarized below:
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2006 - 07 2005 - 06

Operating income - -
Nan-operating income - -
Total revenue - -
Expenditure 1.62 0.31

Net loss before Depreciation & Tax 1.62 0.31
Depreciation - -
Loss after Depreciation but before Taxation 1.62 0.31

Performance Analysis :

Your Company was incorporated on 9th March 2006 and has incurred a net loss of Rs. 1, 62,152.
Future outlook :

Tourist arrivals remain healthy

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have touched an all
time high. Success of “Incredible India” campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing infrastructure thrust by the government
and India’s emergence as an outsourcing hub has led to a 13.2% surge in foreign tourist arrival in calendar year 2006 over the
previous year.

ARR expected to rise further

With growing business, domestic and international |eisure travel, room demand is going to rise further. Though there is a huge
room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction, the demand supply
mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next year. By the middle of 2008 we might see some capacities coming in. Till
that time room rates are expected to rise further.

Company’s performance

With Industrial growth, including the Hospitality Industry, likely to remain strong, your Company's overall performance and
operating results are expected to further improve in the current year. With the positive mood prevailing in the tourism industry,
the outlook for the company promises to he brighter in the coming years,

Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 256, Mr.Arjun Baljee- Director retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

Auditors’ and their Report:

M/s. P. Chandrasekar, Chartered Accountants, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has expressed their willingness
to continue in office if re-appointed. Since the proposal is in the best interests of the Company, your Directors propose their
appointment as Statutory Auditors for the current year, for the approval of shareholders.

Public Deposits

During the year under review, your company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public.
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Directors’ Responsibility Staterment

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the representations
received from the Management, hereby confirms that:

i In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there are no
material departures.

ii. It has, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and has applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

iii. It has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should be recognized
while relying on any system of internal control and records.

iv. It has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

Employees :

The details of employees as specified under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies {Particulars
of Employees} Rules, 1975 as amended upto date is not applicable.

Statutory Information

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (1)(e} of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
{Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors} Rules, 1988 are set out hereunder:

(7 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company's efforts towards conservation of energy, which results in savings in consumption of electricity, a significant
component of the energy cost, is an ongoing process.

2) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION

Your Company is engaged in Hotel & Hospitality Industry. Hence, your Company does not require Research & Development
activities. Despite that, the Company is constantly upgrading and optimizing the Process parameters with emphasis on
cost control and rationalization. The Company continues to strive for improving methedology of work and productivity of
operations through continuous research. However, the actual expenditure incurred theraon is minimal.

(3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
There is no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year.
Acknowledgments

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish to place on record sincere thanks and appreciation for the co-operation
received by the Company from customers, suppliers, bankers, Central and State Governments and other statutory authorities
and others associated with the Company.

Your Diraectors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering outstanding services. Your Directors thank you for
the unstinted support and confidence reposed in the Management and look forward to your continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ROYAL ORCHID SOUTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Flace: Bangalore CHANDER K. BAUEE
Date: 15.06.2007 Chairman
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Registration No : 08/38712
Nominal Capital : Rs 1 Crore

To

The

Members,

ROYAL ORCHID SOUTH PRIVATE LIMITED

| have examined the registers, records, books and papers of ROYAL ORCHID SOUTH PRIVATE LIMITED {the Company), as
required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 1956, (the Act) and the rules made there under and also the provisions
contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company from 09.03.2006 {Incorporation) to financial
year ended on 31+ March 2007. In my opinien and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried
out by me and explanations furnished to me by the company, its officers and agents, | certify that in respect of the aforesaid
financial year ;

1.

® N oo

10.
11.

12.
13.
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The company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure ‘A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions
and the rules made there under and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

The company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other authorities under the Act and the
rules made there under.

The company being a private limited company (and subsidiary of public company) has minimum prescribed paid-up
capital and its maximum number of members during the said financial year was 3 excluding its present and past
employees and the company during the year under scrutiny.

i Has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures; and
ii  Has not invited or accepted any deposits from persons other than its members, directors or their relatives.

The Board of Directors duly met 4 {(Four) times on 3™ April 20086, 28" August 2006, 25™ December 2006, and 28" March,
2007 and in respect of which meetings proper natices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and
signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose

The Company was not required to close its Register of Members or Debenture holders during the financial year.
No Annual General Meeting was held during the financial year since it was first year of Incorporation.
One Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year.

The company has not advanced any loans to its directors or persons or firms or companies referred to under Section 295
of the Act.

The company has duly complied with provisions section 237 of the Act in respect of contracts specified in that section.
The company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act

As there were no instances falling within the purview of section 314 of the Act, the company has not obtained any
approvals from the board of directors, members or Central Government.

The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the financial year.

The company

{iy has not delivered all the certificates on allotment of securities during the financial year;

{ii) has not deposited any amount in a separate bank account as no dividend was declared during the financial year.

{(iii} has not posted warrants to any member of the company as no dividend was declared during the financial year

{iv) was not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund, as the Company has no
unclaimed dividend.

{v) has duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.
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14. The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted.

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Directar /Whole-time Directar/ Manager during the financial year.

16. The Company has not appointed any sole-selling agents during the financial year.

17. The company was not required to obtain any approvals of the Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional
Director, Registrar of Companies or such other authorities as may be prescribed under the various provisions of the Act
during the financial year.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms /companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and the rule made there under.

18. The company has issued 9,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each during the financial year and complied with the provisions
of the Act.

20. The company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

21. Since the company has not issued debentures and preference shares the matter of redemption does not arise.

22. There were no transactions necessitating the company to keep in abeyance rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus
shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The company has not invitedfaccepted any deposits including any unsecured loans falling within the purview of Section
58A of the Companies Act 1956, during the financial year.

24, The amounts borrowed by the Company are within borrowing limits of the Company and no resolution need to be
passed U/s 293(1)(d) of the Act.

25. The company has not made any loans or advances or given guarantees or provided securities to other bodies corporate
and consequently no entries have been have been made in the register kept for the purpose.

26. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to situation of the company
during the year under scrutiny

27. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to the objects of the
company during the year under scrutiny.

28. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to name of the company
during the year under scrutiny.

29. The company has altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to share capital of the company
during the year under scrutiny.

30. The company has not altered its Articles of Association during the financial year.

31. The company has not received any notices from Registrar of Companies during the financial year

32. The company has not received any money as security from its employees during the financial year.

33. Since the company is directly paying employers and employees contribution to provident fund authorities, the provisions
of section 418 of the Act is not applicable to this company.

Sd/-

Place : Bangalere Name : G. Shankar Prasad

Date :15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice
C.P.No. : 6450
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ANNEXURE “A”

Registers as maintained by the Company:

Statutory Registers

SL. No. Name of the Register Under Section Remarks
1 Register of Members 150 Updated
2 Register of Directors 303 Updated
3 Register of Director's Share holding 307 Updated
4 Register of Charges 143(1) Updated
5 Minutes Books of Board Meeting & General Meeting 193 Updated
6 Books of Accounts 209 Updated
7 Register of Contracts 301(3) Updated

Other Registers

SL No Name of the Register

Register of Directors Attendance
2 Register of shareholders Attendance

Note: - The company has not maintained the following registers as it was informed that there were no entries/transactions

to be recorded there in

5. No. Name of the Register

Register of Securities Bought Back

Register and Index of Debenture holders
Minutes Bock of Class Meeting

Register of Renewed and duplicate certificates
Register of Destruction of Records

Register of Deposits

(=AY BN PV W

ANNEXURE “B”

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies during the financial year ending on
31" March 2007

SL. No. Forms U/s For Whether filed If delay in filing
within the whether requisite
prescribed time additional fee paid
Yes/No Yes/No
1. Form 5 94(2) Increase of
Authorized Share Capital NO YES
Sdr-

Place : Bangalore Name : @G. Shankar Prasad
Date : 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice

CPNo. : 6450
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AUDITORSY REPORY
To

The Members
Royal Orchid South Private Limited
Bangalore

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of ROYAL ORCHID SOUTH PRIVATE LIMITED as at 31 March 2007 and also the
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s Management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies {(Auditors Report} Crder, 2003, issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227(44A) of
the Companies Act, 1956, the matters specified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order, are not applicable to the Company.

Further to our comments in the annexure attached hereto, we report that:

A.  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit;

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by Company, so far as appears from our
examination of books;

C. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

D. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection
(30) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ;

E. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors under clause {g) of sub section {1) of Section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

F.  In cur opinion, and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
together with the notes thereon,. give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and
give the true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2007.
(b) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the Company for the year ended on the date.

For M/s. B Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Date :15" June 2007
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS REPORYT
Annexure to the auditor's report of even date to the members of Royal Orchid South Private Limited {‘the Company’), on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we report that:

(i)
(i
{iin

(iv)

{v)

{vi)

(vii}

{viii)

(i)

(x)
{xi)

{xii)

{xiii)

{xiv}
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{a) The company does not have any fixed assets an clause {i}@)(b){c} of this order are not applicable.

{a) The Company does not hold any inventory and hence clause ii{a}(b){c) of this order are not applicable.

{a) The company has not granted interest free unsecured loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act on the terms and conditions of loans taken by the company,
unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company. There is no amount cverdue for more
than Rupees One Lakh.

(b) The company has taken interest free unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act from one party amounting to Rs. 4.60 Lakhs and the terms and conditions
of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company. There is no
amount overdue for more than Rupees One Lakh.

In our opinion and according to informations and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,

{a) All transactions that need to be entered into a register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act have been so entered.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act,
1956 and exceeding the value of Rs. 5.00 Lakhs, in respect of any party during the year have heen made at prices
which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market price at the relevant time;

The company has not accepted deposits from the public, under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 58A and 584A of the Act and the rules framed there under.

In our opinion the company has an intarnal audit system commensurate with its siza and nature of its business. However
it needs to be strengthened

The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under clause (d) of sub-secticon (1)
of section 209 of the Act.

The Company has accumulated losses and has sustained cash losses during the current financial year covered under our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank.

The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
other securities.

The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/societies are not applicable to
the Company and therefore the provisions of clause &{xiii} of the Companies {Auditor's Report} Order, 2003 are not
applicable to the company.

As the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, the maintenance of
proper records of the transactions and contracts and making timely entries of the shares, securities, debentures and
other securities held by the company, are not applicable.

The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions, the terms and
conditions whereof are prejudicial to the interest of the company;
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{xv)

{xvi}

{xvii}

{xviii}

(xix}

(oo

{xxi)

The Company has not taken any term loan from any bank or financial institutions.

According to information and explanations given to us, and an overall examinaticn of the Balance Sheet and fund flow
statement of the Company, we report that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long term
investment and vice versa.

The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under section 301 of the Act .

According to information and explanations given 1o us, the company has not issued any debentures during the year and
no securities were created by the company.

The company has not raised money on public issue.

On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and other relevant records and information made available to
us, prima-facie have not noticed any fraud on or by the Company, during the year. Further, the management has
represented to us that no fraud on or by the Company has been reported during the year. However, we are unable to
determine / verify as to whether any such reporting has been made, during the year.

All other provisions of the said order are not applicable to the company

For M/s. P Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place :

Date

Bangalore

115" June 2007
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BALANCE SHEET

Schedule | 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS" FUNDS
Share Capital 1 9,100,000.00 1006,000.00
Reserves and surplus - -
9,100,000.00 1006,000.00
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans - -
Unsecured loans 3 460,130.00 -
TCTAL 9,560,130.00 1006,000.00
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation - .
Net block - -
Capital work-in-progress and advances - -
INVESTMENTS - -
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories - -
Sundry debtors - -
Cash and bank balances 4 488,658.00 82,300.00
Loans and advances 5 8,502,800.00 -
9,391,498.00 82,300.00
LESS : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 6 24,792.00 13,572.00
24,792.00 13,572.00
Net current assets 9,366,706.00 68,728.00
Miscellaneous Expenditure
{to the extent not written-off or Adjusted)
Preliminary Expenses - -
Profit & Loss account 2 193,424.00 31,272.00
TOTAL 9,560,130.00 100,000.00
Note forming part of accounts 8

As per our report of even date

For M/s. P. Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15% June 2007
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Chander K. Baljee

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Arjun Baljee
Director
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Schedule | 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Food and heverages consumed
Employees cost - -
Cther operating expenses - -
General and administration expenses 7 162,152.00 31,272.00
Finance charges - -
Depreciation - -
162,152.00 31,272.00

LOSS BEFORE TAX (162,152.00) {31,272.00)
Provision for tax - -
Fringe Benefit Tax - -
LOSS AFTER TAX (162,152.00) {31,272.00)
Balance brought forward for the previous year (31,272.00} -
Profit/loss carried to balance sheet {193,424.00) {31,272.00)
Notes forming part of accounts 8

As per our report of even date

For M/s. P. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Arjun Baljee
Partner Director Director

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL 5TATEMENTS

31 March 2007 31+ March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1000000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 10,000,000.00 500,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
910000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 9,100,000.00 100,000.00
9,1060,000.00 100,600.00
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Profit and Loss account
Balance at the beginning of the period 31,272.00
Add:Loss for the year / period 162,152.00 31,272.00
193,424.00 31,272.00
Balance at the end of the year / period 193,424.00 31,272.00
193,424.00 31,272.00
SCHEDULE 3
UNSECURED LOANS
Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd. 460,130.00
460,130.00
SCHEDULE 4
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash balances on hand £2,300.00 82,300.00
Banks balances with Scheduled Banks:
In Current accounts 406,398.00
488,698.00 82,300.00
SCHEDULE 5
LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Deposits 8,902,800.00
TOTAL 8,902,800.00
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31 March 2007

31 March 2006

SCHEDULE &
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Gopichand Rohra Pyt Ltd
Kaali Art printers
Vijay Shetty

Audit fees payable
TOTAL

SCHEDULE 7

Profit and loss account
Rates & Taxes
Protessional charges
Audit fees

Bank charages

Cthers

Total

Rs. Rs.
5.000.00 5,000.00
1,660.00 1,660.00
1,300.00 1,300.00

16,832.00 5,612.00

24,792.00 13,572.00

148,300.00 17,700.00

0.00 5,000.00

11,220.00 5,612.00

2.632.00 0
0.00 2,960.00
162,152.00 31,272.00

For M/s. P. Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chander K. Baljee
Director

Place : Bangalore

Dated : 15" June 2007

Arjun Baljee

Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE 8

vi
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Background

Royal Orchid South Pvt. Ltd. (“the Company”} was incorporated on 09.03.06 to carry on the business hotelstholiday
resorts and related services. M/s. Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd holds 98.90% of equity shares and the balance 1.09% hold by
Mr. CK Baljee and 0.01% by Mr. Arjun Baljee.

The company has signed exclusive territorial rights with Ramada International USA, for a territorial exclusivity fee of
Two hundred Thousands US Dollars. As per information given by the management, the scheme will commence shortly.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial statement have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl). The accounting
policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
could differ from those estimates of the economic useful lives of the fixed assets, provisions for bad and doubtful debts
and accruals of leave encashment, bonus and gratuity.

Revenue recognition
The commercial opening of the hotel not been taken during the period under review.

Taxes on income
During the year no deferred tax has been recognized as there is no commercial activity.

Earnings per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit/floss for the period divided by Number of shares. As there are
no un-issued shares during the year the diluted earning will be the same as basic earning. As there was no commercial
activity shares were not valued.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
and outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
required an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made.
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3. RECOVERABILITY OF LOANS AND ADVANCES

In the opinion of the board of directors, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary
course of business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provisions for all known liahilities has been
made in the accounts.

4, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

i Parties where control exists include

Name of the party Nature of relationship

Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd Entity controlled by Directors
Mr. Chander K. Baljee Entity controlled by Directors
Mr. Arjun Baljee Entity controlled by Directors

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Company’s business comprises the operation of hotel, the services of which represent one business segment as they
are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each ather. Further the company derives its entire revenues from
services rendered in India, consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment-wise information is not
applicable to the company.

6. PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVES

The Company has prepared financial statements, in accordance with AS-25 prior period comparatives have heen
provided.

7. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

The deferred tax asset was not taken into books for the peried under review.

For M/s. P. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Arjun Baljee
Partner Director Director
Place :Bangalore Place : Bangalere

Dated : 15" June 2007 Dated : 15 June 2007
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CALH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended
31* March 2007

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation

Add: Adjustments for

Depreciation

Assets written off

Finance charges

Provisional for Doubtful debts
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital:

Increase in sundry debtors

Increase in Inventories
Decrease/Increase in loans and advances
Increase in current liabilities

Net cash from operative activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets

Net investment in term deposit
Purchase of investment

Loan to holding company

Loan repayment by holding company
Sales/maturity of investments

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Share capital

Proceeding from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities
A+B+C

Cash and bank balance as on 01/04/06

Cash and bank balance as on 31/03/07

Rs.

-162152

- 162152

- 8902800
11220

- 8891580

460130

4560130

9000000

9000000
406398
82300

488698

For M/s. P. Chandrasekar

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P Chandrasekar
Partner

Place : Bangalore

Dated : 15" June 2007
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Director Director

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY’'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: [ 38712 | State code | 8

Balance sheet date | 31/03/2007 |

ii Capital raised during the year {Amounts in Rs."000}

Public Issue [ Nil | Rights Issue | Nil |

Bonus Issue I Nil | Private Placement | Nil |

iii Pasition of Mobilisation and deployment of funds (amounts in Rs.’000)

Total Liabilities | 9560 | Total Assets | 9560 |

Sources of fund

Paid up capital [ 9100 | Reserves & Surplus | 0 |
(P &L a/c)

Secured Loans [ 0 | Unsecured loans | 460 |

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | o | Investments | o |
Net current assets I 9367 | Preliminary expenses | 0 |
Accumulated losses [ 193 |
iv Performance of the Company (amount in Rs.'000)
Turnover | 0 | Total Expenditure | 162 |
Profit Aloss) after tax | -162 | Earnings per share in Rs. | 0 |
Divident rate% | NIL |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms)
Item code No: (ITC code) 591001006
Product description Hotel
Item code No.(ITC code) 390001002
Product desperation Restaurant
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

Dear Sharehclders,

We, the Directors of your Company, have pleasure in presenting the Second Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 317 March 2007,

Financial Results
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2007 is summarized below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 2006 — 07 2005 - 06

Operating income - -
Non-operating income - -
Total revenue - -
Expenditure 9.86 10.37
Net |loss before Depreciation & Tax 9.86 10.37

Depreciation - -

Loss after Depreciation but before Taxation 9.86 10.37
Provision for taxation 0.15 -
Loss after depreciation and taxation 10.01 10.37

Performance Analysis

Your Company was incorperated on 12th September 2005 and has incurred a net loss of Rs.10,01,096.
Future Outlook

Touwrist arrivals remain healthy

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have touched an
all time high. Success of “Incredible India” campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing infrastructure thrust by the
government and India’s emergence as an outsourcing hub has led to a 13.2% surge in foreign tourist arrival in calendar year
2006 over the previous year.

ARR expected to rise further

With growing business, domestic and international leisure travel, room demand is geoing to rise further. Though there is a
huge room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction, the demand
supply mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next year. By the middle of 2008 we might see some capacities
coming in. Till that time room rates are expected to rise further,

Company’s performance

With Industrial growth, including the Hespitality Industry, likely to remain strong, your Company’s overall performance and
operating results are expected to further improve in the current year. With the positive mood prevailing in the tourism
industry, the outlook for the company promises to be brighter in the coming years.
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Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 256, Mrs. Sunita Baljee- Director retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for
re-appointment.

Auditors’ and their Report:

M/s. P. Chandrasekar, Chartered Accountants, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has expressed their willing-
ness to continue in office if re-appointed. Since the proposal is in the best interests of the Company, your Directors propose
their appointment as Statutory Auditors for the current year, for the approval of shareholders.

Public Deposits
During the year under review, your company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217{2AA} of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the represen-
tations received from the Management, hereby confirms that:

i. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there
are no material departures.

ii. Ithas,intheselection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditers and has applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that pericd.

iii. It hastaken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adegquate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should be
recognized while relying on any systern of internal control and records.

iv. It has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
Employees

The details of employees as specified under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies {Particu-
lars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended upto date is not applicable.

Statutory Information

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (1)(e) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
{Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out hereunder:

(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Company's efforts towards conservation of energy, which results in savings in consumption of electricity, a
significant component of the energy cost, is an ongoing process.

(2) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION

Your Company is engaged in Hotel & Hospitality Industry. Hence, your Company does not require Research &
Development activities. Despite that, the Company is constantly upgrading and eptimizing the Process parameters
with emphasis on cost control and rationalization. The Company continues to strive for improving methodology of
work and productivity of operations through continuous research. However, the actual expenditure incurred thereon
is minimal.
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{3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OQUTGO
There is no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year.

Acknowledgments

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish to place on record sincere thanks and appreciation for the co-operation
received by the Company from customers, suppliers, bankers, Central and State Governments and other statutory
authorities and others associated with the Company.

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering outstanding services. Your Directors thank you for
the unstinted support and confidence reposed in the Management and look ferward to your continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ROYAL ORCHID HYDERABAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Place : Bangalore CHANDER K. BALJEE
Date : 15.06.2007 Chairman
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SECRETARIAL COMPLUANCE CERTIFICATE
Registration No : 08/37198
Nominal Capital : Rs 2 Crores

To
The Members,
ROYAL QORCHID HYDERABAD PRIVATE LIMITED

| have examined the registers, records, books and papers of ROYAL ORCHID HYDERABAD PRIVATE LIMITED {the Company),
as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 1956, (the Act) and the rules made there under and also the
pravisions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year ended on 31%
March 2007. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me and
explanations furnished to me by the company, its officers and agents, | certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1. The company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure 'A' to this certificate, as per the provisions and
the rules made there under and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

2. The company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other authorities under the Act and the
rules made there under.

3. The company being a private limited company {and subsidiary of public company) has minimum prescribed paid-up
capital and its maximum number of members during the said financial year was 2 excluding its present and past
employees and the company during the year under scrutiny.

Has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures; and
Has not invited or accepted any deposits from persens other than its members, directors or their relatives.

4. The Board of Directors duly met 5 (Five) times on 6th June 2006, 12th June 2006, 30th September 2006, 9th October
2006, 30th January 2007 and in respect of which meetings proper natices were given and the proceedings were
properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose

5. The Company was not required 1o close its Register of Members or Debenture holders during the financial year.

6. The Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended on 31st March 2006 was held on 30th September 2006 after
giving due notice 10 the members of the Company and the resoluticn passed thereat were duly recorded in Minutes
Bock maintained for the purpose.

One Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year.

8. The company has not advanced any loans to its directors or persons or firms or companies referred to under Section 295
of the Act.

9. The cempany has duly complied with provisions section 297 of the Act in respect of contracts specified in that section.
10. The company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act

11.  As there were no instances falling within the purview of section 314 of the Act, the company has not obtained any
approvals from the board of directors, members or Central Government.

12. The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the financial year.

13. The company

has delivered all the certificates on allotment of securities during the financial year;

has not depasited any amount in a separate bank account as no dividend was declared during the financial year.
has not posted warrants to any member of the company as no dividend was declared during the financial year
was not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund, as the Company has no
unclaimed dividend.

has duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.
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14. The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted.

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Director AWhole-time Director/ Manager during the financial year.

16. The Company has not appointed any sole-selling agents during the financial year.

17. The company was not reguired to obtain any approvals of the Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional
Director, Registrar of Companies or such other authorities as may be prescrived under the varicus provisions of the Act
during the financial year.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms /fcompanies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and the rule made there under.

19. The company has issuad 17,50,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each during the financial year and complied with the provisions
of the Act.

20. The company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

21. Since the company has not issued debentures and preference shares the matter of redemption does not arise.

22. There were no transactions necessitating the company to keep in abeyance rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus
shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The company has not invitedfaccepted any deposits including any unsecured loans falling within the purview of Section
584 of the Companies Act 1856, during the financial year.

24. The company has not made any borrowings during the financial year.

25. The company has not made any loans or advances or given guarantees or provided securities to other bodies corporate
and consequently no entries have been have been made in the register kept for the purpose.

26. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to situation of the
company during the year under scrutiny

27. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to the objects of the
company during the year under scrutiny.

28. The company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to name of the company
during the year under scrutiny.

29. The company has altered the provisions of the Memorandum of Association with respect to share capital of the
company during the year under scrutiny.

30. The company has altered its Articles of Association during the financial year.

31. The company has not received any notices from Registrar of Companies during the financial year

32. The company has not received any money as security from its employees during the financial year.

33. Since the company is directly paying employers and employees contribution to provident fund authorities, the provisions
of section 418 of the Act is not applicable to this company.

Sdf-

PLACE: BANGALORE Name : G. Shanker Prasad

DATE: 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice
C.PNo. : 8450
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ANNEXLURE "A"
Registers as maintained by the Company:

Statutory Registers

SL. No. Name of the Register Under Section Remarks
1 Register of Members 150 Updated
2 Register of Directors 303 Updated
3 Register of Director's Share holding 307 Updated
4 Register of Charges 143{1) Updated
5 Minutes Books of Board Meeting & General Meeting 193 Updated
6 Books of Accounts 209 Updated
7 Register of Contracts 301(3) Updated

Other Registers

SL. No. Name of the Register
1 Register of Diractors Attendance
2 Register of shareholders Attendance

Note: - The company has not maintained the following registers as it was informed that there were no entries/transactions

to be recorded there in:

SL. No. Name of the Register
1 Register of Securities Bought Back
2 Register and Index of Debenture holders
3 Minutes Book of Class Meeting
4 Register of Renewed and duplicate certificates
5 Register of Destruction of Records
6 Register of Deposits
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ANNEXURE "B"

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies during the financial year ending on 31" March

2007
SL. No. Forms U/s For Whether filed If delay in filing whether
within the requisite additional fee
prescribed time paid
Yes/No Yes/No
1. Balance Sheet 220 For the year ended on
31.03.2006 NQ YES
2 Annual Return 159 Made up to 30.09.2006 YES NO
3. Form 2 75(1} Allotment of shares YES NO
4 Form 23 192 Alteration of articles of
association and Increase of
share capital YES NO
5 Form 62 Alteration of articles of
association for increase of
share capital YES NO
6 Form 5 Increase of share capital YES NO
Sdr-
PLACE: BANGALORE Name : G. Shanker Prasad
DATE: 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice
C.PNo. : 6450
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AUDITORS REPORT
To

The Members
Royal Orchid Hyderabad Private Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Royal Orchid Hyderabad Private Limited as at 31% March 2007 and also the
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s Management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit alse includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003, issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227(4A)
of the Companies Act, 1956, the matters specified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order, are not applicable to the Company.

Further to our comments in the annexure attached hereto, we report that;

A.  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by Company, so far as appears from our
examination of books;

C.  The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

D. Inocur opinion, the Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsec-
tion (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ;

E. Inour opinion and to the best of our infoermation and according to the explanations given to us, none of the Directors
of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors under clause {g) of sub section (1} of Section 274 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

F In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
together with the notes thereon,. give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required
and give the true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

a. inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31¢ March 2007.

b. in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the Company for the year ended on the date.

For M/s. P CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR

Partner
Place : Bangalore
Date : 15.06.2007
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ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS” REPORT

Annexure to the auditor's report of even date to the members of Royal Orchid Hyderabad Private Limited (‘the Company’),
on the financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2007

{i}
(in)
(i}

{vi)

(v}

vi)

(vid)

{viii}

{ix)

(x)
{xi}

{xi)
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{a) The company does not have any fixed assets an clause {i}a)}b){c) of this order are not applicable.
{a) The Company deesnot hold any inventory and hence clause ii{a){b){c) of this order are not applicable.

(a) The company has granted interest free unsecured loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act to one party amounting to Rs. 0.32 Lakhs and the terms and
conditions of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the
company. There is no amount overdue for more than Rupees One Lakh.

(b) The company has taken interest free unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act from one party amounting to Rs. 0.03 Lakhs and the terms
and conditions of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the
company. There is no amount overdue for more than Rupees One Lakh

In our opinion and according to informations and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,

(a) All transactions that need to be entered into a register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act have been so
entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions made
in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rs. 5.00 Lakhs, in respect of any party during the year have been made at
prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market price at the relevant time;

The company has not accepted deposits from the public, under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules framed there under.

In our opinion the company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its business.
However it needls to be strengthened.

The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under clause (d} of sub-section
(1) of section 209 of the Act.

The Company has accumulated losses and has sustained cash losses during the current financial year covered under
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank .

The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities.

The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/societies are not applicable
to the Company and therefore the provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are
net applicable to the company.
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{xiii)

{ xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

{xvii)

{xviii)

{xix)

(xx)

{xxi}

As the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, the maintenance
of proper records of the transactions and contracts and making timely entries of the shares, securities, debentures
and other securities held by the company, are not applicable.

The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions, the terms
and conditions whereof are prejudicial to the interest of the company;

The Company has not taken any term loan from any bank or financial institutions.

According to information and explanations given to us, and an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and fund
flow statement of the Company, we report that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long
term investment and vice versa.

The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under section 301 of the Act .

According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not issued any debentures during the year
and no securities were created by the company.

The company has not raised money on public issue.

On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and other relevant records and information made
available to us, prima-facie have not noticed any fraud on or by the Company, during the year. Further, the
management has represented to us that ne fraud on or by the Company has been reported during the year.
However, we are unable to determine / verify as to whether any such reporting has been made, during the year.

All other provisions of the said order are not applicable to the company

For M/s. R CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Date : 15.06.2007
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SALANCE SHEET

Schedule | 31% March 2007 31t March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital 1 17,700,000.00 200,000.00
Reserves and surplus - -
17,700,000.00 200,000.00
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans - -
Unsecured loans 3
ROHL 3,008.00 6,162,958.00
TOTAL 17,703,008.00 6,662,958.00
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block - -
Less : Accumulated depreciation - -
Net block - -
Capital work-in-progress and advances 35,920.00 -
35,920.00 -
INVESTMENTS - -
CURRENT ASSETS,LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories - -
Sundry debtors - -
Cash and bank balances 4 248,425.00 297,575.00
Loans and advances 5 15,067,781.00 5,000,000.00
15,316,206.00 5,297,575.00
LESS:CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 6 51,0%17.00 35.420.00
Net current assets 15,265,189.00 5,262,155.00
Miscellaneous Expenditure.
(to the extent not written-off or Adjusted)
Preliminary Expenses 30.240.00 30,240.00
Profit & Loss account 2,371,659.00 1,370,563.00
TOTAL 17,703,008.00 6.662,958.00
Notes forming part of accounts 8

As per our report of even date

For M/s. P. Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15% June 2007
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Chander K. Baljee

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15 June 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunita Baljee
Director
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

S5chedule | 31 March 2007 31" March 2006
Rs. Rs.
INCOME - -
EXPENDITURE
Food and beverages consumed
Employees cost - -
Other operating expenses - -
General and administration expenses 7 {986,096.00} {1,036,763.00)
Finance charges -
Depreciation - -
{986,096.00) (1,036,763.00)
LOSS BEFORE TAX (986,096.00} {(1,036,763.00)
Provision for tax
Fringe Benefit Tax 15,000.00 -
15,000.00 -
LOSS AFTER TAX {(1,001,0596.00) (1,036,763.00}
Balance brought forward from the previous years (1,370,563.00) {333,780.00)
Profit/loss carried to balance sheet {2,371,655.00) (1,370,563.00)
Notes forming part of accounts 8

For M/s. B Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Sunita Baljee
Partner Director Girector

Flace :Bangalore
Dated : 15™ June 2007

Flace : Bangalcre
Dated : 15" lune 2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PARYT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
2000000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 20,000,000.00 500,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
1770000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 17,700,000.00 200,000.00
17,700,000.00 200,000.00
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Profit and Loss account
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,370,563.00 333,780.00
Add:Loss for the year / period 1,001,096.00 1,036,783.00
Balance at the end of the year / period 2,371,659.00 1,370,563.00
SCHEDULE 3
UNSECURED LOANS
Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd 3,008.00 6,462,958.00
3,008.00 6,462,958.00
SCHEDULE 4
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash balances on hand 98,000.00 98,000.00
Banks balances with Scheduled Banks:
In Current accounts 150,425.00 194,575.00
248,425.00 297,575.00
SCHEDULE 5
LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Deposit 15,600,000.00 5,000,000.00
Leans and advances 35,000.00
QOthers 32,781.00
Total 15,667,781.00 5,000,000.00
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SCHEDULE &
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors
Duties/Taxes

Audit fees

Total

SCHEDULE 7

Profit and loss account
Rates & Taxes

Legal expenses

Professional charges

Audit fees
Tender fee
Bank charages
Others

Total

Travelling/Transportation

31* March 2007 31* March 2006
Rs. Rs.
30,240.00 30,240.00
15,601.00 -

5.176.00 5,18C.00
51.017.00 35,420.00
20%9,362.00 25,000.00
12,400.00 -
371,298.00 834,410.00
283,463.00 131,325.00
11,220.00 5,18C.00
15,000.00 -
568.00 425.00
82,785.00 40,443.00
986,096.00 1,036,783.00

For M/s. F. Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Flace : Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chander K. Baljee Sunita Baljee
Director Director

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule 8

1
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Background

Royal Qrchid Hyderabad Pvt. Ltd. {("the Company”) was incorporated on 12/09/05 tc carry on the business of hotels/
holiday reserts and related services. M/s. Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd holds 99.45% of equity shares and balance 0.55% by
Mrs. Sunita Baljee.

The company has signed a lease agreement on 06/12/2004 with Bagga Group for a lease of the property for a period of
25 years and has paid an interest free deposit of Rs.150 Lakhs.The lease commences from the date of completion of the
building and amenities proposed to be constructed at Hyderabad..As per information given by the management, the
project is still under progress.

Significant accounting policies

vi

Basis of preparation

The financial statement have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). The
accounting policies have been consistently applied unless othenwise stated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods.

Although these estimates are based upen management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results could differ from those estimates of the economic useful lives of the fixed assets, provisions for bad and
doubtful debts and accruals of leave encashment, bonus and gratuity.

Revenue recognition

The commercial opening of the hotel not been taken during the period under review.
Taxes on income

During the year no deferred tax has been recognized as there is no commercial activity.
Earnings per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit/loss for the period divided by Number of shares. As there
are no un-issued shares during the year the diluted earning will be the same as basic earning. As there was no
commaercial activity shares were not valued.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
and cutflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present cbligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of rescurces, When there is a possible obligation or present abligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made.
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3. Recoverability of loans and advances

In the opinion of the board of directors, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary
course of business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provisions for all known liabilities has been
made in the accounts.

4. Related party transactions

Parties where control exists include

Name of the party Nature of relationship

Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd Entity controlled by Directors
Mr. C K Baljee Entity controlled by Directors
Mrs. Sunita Baljee Entity controlled by Directors

5.  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Company’s business comprises of the operation of hotel, the services of which represent one business segment as
they are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each other. Further the company derives its entire revenues from
services rendered in India, consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment-wise information is not
applicable to the company.

6. PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVES

The Company has prepared financial statements, in accordance with AS-25.As this is the first year of operation,
previcus years figures have not been provided.

7. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
The deferred tax asset was not taken into books for the period under review.

For M/s, P. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Sunita Baljee
Partner Director Director
Place : Bangalore Place :Bangalore

Dated : 15" June 2007 Dated : 15™ June 2007
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CALH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended
31* March 2007
Rs.

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation - 986,096
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation -
Assets written off -
Finance charges -
Provisional for Doubtful debts -
Operating profit before working capital changes - 986,096
Movement in working capital:
Increase in sundry debtors -
Increase in Inventories -
Increase in loans and advances -
Increase in current liabilities 15,597
Taxes paid - 15,000
Net cash from operative activities 587

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets - 35920
Net investment in term deposit -
Purchase of investment -
Loan to holding company - 10067781
Lean repayment by holding company - 6459950
Sales/matunity of investments -
Interest received -
Net cash used in investing activities - 16563651

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Share capital 17500000
Proceeding from long-term borrowings -
Repayment of long-term borrowings -
Interest paid -
Net cash used in financing activities -
Net cash used in financing activities 17500000
A+B+C - 49150
Cash balance and bank balance as on 1/4/06 297575
Cash balance and hank balance as on 31/03/07 248425

For M/s. P Chandrasekar

Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar

Partner Director

Place : Bangalore
Dated : 15* June 2007
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Chander K. Baljee

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunita Baljee
Director
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS CGF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: [ 37198 | State code

Balance sheet date [ 31/03/2007 |

ii Capital raised during the year (Amounts in Rs."000)

Public Issue [ Nil | Rights Issue

Bonus Issue | Nil | Private Placement

i Position of Mobilisation and deployment of funds (amounts in Rs.’000)

Total Liabilities | 17703 | Total Assets

Sources of fund

Paid up capital I 17700 | Reserves & Surplus
(P &L alc)
Secured Loans [ 0 | Unsecured loans

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | 36 | Investments
Net current assets [ 15265 | Preliminary expenses
Accumylated losses [ 2372 |
iv Performance of the Company {amount in Rs."000)
Turnaver I 0 | Total Expenditure
Profit /{loss) after tax l 1001 | Earnings per share in Rs.
Divident rate% I Nil |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms)
Item code No: (ITC code} 591001006
Product description Hotel
Item code No.{ITC code) 390001002
Product description Restaurant

Nn|

Nil |

17703 |

986 |
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CHRECTORS® REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We, the Directors of your Company, have pleasure in presenting the First Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2007,

Financial Results :

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2007 is summarized below:
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2006 - 07

Operating income -
Non-operating income -
Total revenue -
Expenditure 50.24
Net loss before Depreciation & Tax 50.24
Depreciation -

Loss after Depreciation but before Taxation 50.24

Performance Analysis :
Your Company was incorporated on 25th August 2006 and has incurred a net loss of Rs. 50,23,978.
Future Outlaok

Tourist arrivals remain healthy

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have touched an
all time high. Success of “Incredible India” campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing infrastructure thrust by the
government and India's emergence as an outsourcing huh has led to a 13.2% surge in foreign tourist arrival in calendar year
2006 over the previous year.

ARR expected to rise further

With growing business, domestic and international leisure travel, rcom demand is going to rise further. Though there is a
huge room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction, the demand
supply mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next year. By the middle of 2008 we might see some capacities
coming in. Till that time room rates are expected to rise further.

Company’s performance

With Industrial growth, including the Hospitality Industry, likely to remain strong, your Company’s overall performance and
operating results are expected to further improve in the current year. With the positive mood prevailing in the tourism
industry, the outlook for the company promises to be brighter in the coming years.

Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 256, Mr. Chander K. Baljee- Director retires by rotation and heing eligible offers himself
for re-appointment. Also during the year, Mr. Arjun Baljee was co opted as Additional Director of the company after the
Company became a subsidiary of A B Holdings Private Limited. As per the provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act
1956, the appeointment of additional director is subject to confirmation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly,
suitable agenda has been inserted in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting proposing confirmation of appointment
of additional director. The shareholders are requested to consent to the same for benefit of the company.
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Auditors’ and their Report:

M/s. P. Chandrasekar, Chartered Accountants, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has expressed their willingness
to continue in office if re-appointed. Since the proposal is in the best interests of the Company, your Directors propose their
appeintment as Statutory Auditors for the current year, for the approval of shareholders.

Public Deposits
During the year under review, your company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the representations
received from the Management, hereby confirms that:

i. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there
are no material departures.

ii. [Ithas, inthe selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and has applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

iii. It has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should be
recognized while relying on any system of internal control and records.

iv. It has prepared the annual accounts on a geoing concern basis.
Employees

The details of employees as specified under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended upto date is not applicable.

Statutory Information

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (1){e) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
{Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out hereunder:

(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Your Company's efforts towards conservation of energy, which results in savings in consumption of electricity, a
significant component of the energy cost, is an ongoing process.

(2} RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D), TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION
Your Company is engaged in Hotel & Hospitality Industry. Hence, your Company does not require Research &
Development activities. Despite that, the Company is constantly upgrading and optimizing the Process parameters
with emphasis on cost control and ratienalization. The Company continues to strive for improving methodology of
work and productivity of operations through centinuous research, However, the actual expenditure incurred thereon
is minimal,

(3} FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
There is no foreign exchange earnings and outge during the year.

Acknowledgments

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish to place on record sincere thanks and appreciation for the co-operation
received by the Company from customers, suppliers, bankers, Central and State Governments and other statutory authorities
and others associated with the Company.

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering outstanding services. Your Directors thank you for
the unstinted support and confidence reposed in the Management and look forward to your continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ROYAL ORCHID EAST PRIVATE LIMITED

Place : Bangalore CHANDER K. BALIEE
Date : 15.06.2007 Chairman
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Registration Na  : 08/38712
Nominal Capital : Rs 2,00,00,000/-

To

The Members,

M/s ROYAL ORCHID EAST PRIVATE LIMITED
No.1, Golf Avenue, Adjeining KGA Golf Course,
Airport Road,

Bangalore - 560 008.

Dear Sir,

| have examined the registers, records, books and papers of M/s ROYAL ORCHID EAST PRIVATE LIMITED as required to be
maintained under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made there under and also the provisions contained in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2007. In my
opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished
to me by the Company, its officers and agents, | certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1.

10.

11.

12.
13.

150

The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure 'A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions
and the rules made there under and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar of
Companies, or other authorities as per the provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.

The Company is a Private Limited Company, which is a subsidiary of a company which is not a private Limited company
within the meaning of section of 3 (1) (iv} of the companies Act 1956 and has the minimum prescribed paid up capital
and its maximum number of members during the said financial year was 03 (Three) and the company during the year
under scrutiny:
a. has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures and

and
b. has not invited or accepted any deposits during the financial year under review.

The Board of directors duly met 5 times on 27.08.2006, 15.12.2006, 02.02.2007 10.03.2007 and 28.03.2007 in respect
of which meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes
Book maintained for the purpose.

The Company has not closed its Register of Members during the financial year.

The First Annual General meeting for the financial year ended on 31.3.2007 is due to be held under the provisions of
section 166 read with section 210 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Two Extra-Crdinary General Meeting were held during the financial year on 24.02.2007 and 31.03.2007.
The Company has not made any loan to Directors under the provisions of section 295 of the Companies Act 1956.
The Company has not entered in to any contracts falling within the purview of section 297 of the Act.

The Company has made necessary entries in the Register of Companies and firms in which Directors are interested
maintained under Section 301(3) of the Act.

As there were no instances Talling within the purview of Section 314 of the Act, the Company has not obtained any
approvals from the Board of Directors, members or Central Government as the case may be.

The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the financial year.

a) There was allotment of Equity Shares during the financial year. There was no transfer/transmission of equity shares
during the financial year.

b} The Company has not deposited any amount in a separate Bank Account as no Bividend was declared during the
financial year.
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¢) The Company has not posted warrants to any member of the Company as no Dividend was declared during the
financial year.

d} The company has duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.

14. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. There was no appointment of Additional Director/Alternate
Director or Directors to fill Casual vacancy during the financial year.

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Director/Whole time Director/fManager during the financial year.
16. The Company has not appointed any sole selling agents during the financial year.

17. The Company was not required to obtain any approval of the Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional
Director, Registrar of Companies and/or such autherities prescribed under the various provisions of the Act.

18. The directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/Companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and the rules made there under and hence the same has been recorded in the register maintained under
section 301(3) of the Act.

19. The Company has issued Equity Shares during the financial year under review.
20. The Company has not hought hack any shares during the financial year.

21. The company has not issued any preference shares or debentures and hence redemption thereof during the year does
not arise.

22. There were no transactions necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance the rights te dividend, rights shares and
bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits including any unsecured loans falling within the purview of Section
58A during the financial year.

24. The Company has not made any borrowings falling within the provisions of section 293(1} (d) of the Companies Act
1956.

25. The Company has not made any loans/investments or provided any guarantee or securities falling within the provisions
of section 3724 of the Act.

26. The Company has notaltered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to Situation of the Company’s registered
office from one State to another during the year under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to the QObjects of the Company during
the year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to Name of the Company during the
year under scrutiny.

29. The Company has altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to Share Capital of the Company during the
year under scrutiny.

30. The Company has not altered the provisions of its Articles of Association during the year under scrutiny.

31. There were no prosecution initiated against or show cause notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties
or any other punishment was imposed on the company during the financial year, for offences under the Act.

32. From the records, it has been observed that the Company has not received any money as security deposit from its
employees during the financial year.

33. The Company has not collected any contribution towards Provident Fund from the emplayees during the financial year.

Sdr-

Flace : Bangalore Name : Ramachandra Bhat. §

Date : 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice
CPNo. . 5421
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ANNEXURE-A

Name of the Company : M/s ROYAL ORCHID EAST PRIVATE LIMITED

Company No. . 0B/31516
Authorised Capital ; Rs.2,00,00,000/-
Paid Up Capital : Rs.2,00,00,000/-

Registers as maintained by the Company:

1. Register of Members u/s 150
2. Register of Companies and Firms in which Directors, etc., are interested u/s 301(3)
3. Minutes of Board Meetings/Annual General Meetings/Extra- Crdinary General Meetings u/s 193

4. Register of Directors u/s 303

5. Beoard Meeting Attendance Register
6. General Meeting Attendance Register
7. Register of share transfers.

8. Register of Contract ufs 301

9. Register of Directors share holding u/s 307

ANNEXURE-B

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, during the financial year ending on
31t March 2007.

1. Form 32 in respect of changes in the office of Directors was filed with the ROC on 16.05.2007.
2. Form 5 in respect of enhancement of Authorised Share Capital of the Company was filed with the ROC on 13.02.2007

3 Form 23 for registration of Special resolution for Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company was filed with the
ROC on 08.02.2007.

4, Form 2 in respect of allotment of Equity Shares done on 31.03.2007 is yet to be filed.

5. Form No.23 in respect of ordinary resolution passed in the EGM under Section 293{1}(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 is yet

to be filed.
Sd#-
Place : Bangalore Name : Ramachandra Bhat. S
Date : 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice

C.PNo. : 5421
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AUDITORYS REPORT

To

The Members
Royal Orchid East Private Limited
Bangalore

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of ROYAL ORCHID EAST PRIVATE LIMITED as at 31* March 2007 and also the
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial staternents are the responsibility
of the Company's Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

As required by the Companies {Auditors Report} Crder, 2003, issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227(4A}
of the Companies Act, 1956, the matters specified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order, are not applicable to the Company.

Further to our comments in the annexure attached hereto, we report that:

A.  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by Company, so far as appears from our
examination of books;

C. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

D. Inour opinion, the Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsec-
tion (3C} of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ;

E. Inouropinionand to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors under clause {g} of sub section {1) of Section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

F In our cpinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
together with the notes thereon,. give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required
and give the true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

{a )in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2007.
{b) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the Company for the period ended on the date.

For M/s. P CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR
Partner

Flace : Bangalore
Date : 15.06.2007
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS REPORY
Annexure to the auditor’s report of even date to the members of Royal Orchid East Private Limited (‘the Company’), on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007

(i)

(ii)

(iii}

(v)

{vi)

{vii}

{viii)
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{a} The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

{b) These Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c} no substantial part of Fixed Assets have been disposed off during the year, to affect the going concern.

{a} The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management. In our opinion
the frequency of verification is reascnable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

(b} The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

{c} The company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

(a} The company has not granted interest free unsecured loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act on the terms and conditions of loans taken by the company,
unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company. There is no amount overdue for more than
Rupees One Lakh.

(k) The company has taken interest free unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act from one party amounting to Rs. 445.67 Lakhs and the terms and
conditions of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company.
There is no amount overdue for more than Rupees One Lakh

iv) In our opinion and according to informations and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,

{a} All transactions that need to be entered into a register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act have been so entered.

{b} In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rs. 5.00 Lakhs, in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices
which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market price at the relevant time;

The company has not accepted depaosits from the public, under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules framed there under.

In our opinion the company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its business. However
it needs to be strangthened.

The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under clause {d) of sub-section {1}
of section 209 of the Act.
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{ix) The Company has accumulated losses and has sustained cash losses during the current financial year covered under our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

{x) The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank.

{xi} The Company has not granted leans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
other securities.

{xii) The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/nidhif mutual benefit fundfocieties are not applicable to the
Company and therefore the provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable
to the company.

{xiii} As the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, the maintenance of
proper records of the transactions and contracts and making timely entries of the shares, securities, debentures and
other securities held by the company, are not applicakle.

{xiv) The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions, the terms and
conditicns whereof are prejudicial to the interest of the company;

{xvJ The Company has not taken any term loan from any bank or financial institutions.

{xvi) According to information and explanations given to us, and an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and fund flow
statement of the Company, we report that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long term
investment and vice versa.

{xvii)The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under section 3G1 of the Act.

{xviii) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not issued any debentures during the year and
no securities were created by the company.

{xix) The company has not raised money on public issue.

{xx} On the basis of our examination of the hooks of accounts and other relevant records and information made available
to us, prima-facie have not noticed any fraud on or by the Company, during the year. Further, the management has
represented to us that no fraud on or by the Company has been reported during the year. However, we are unable to
determine / verify as to whether any such reporting has been made, during the year.

{xxi) All other provisions of the said order are not applicable to the company

For M/{s. B CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Date : 15.06.2007
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BALANCE SHEET

Schedule 31 March 2007
Rs.
SOWRCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital 1 5,000,000.00
Reserves and surplus E
5,000,000.00
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans
Unsecured loans 2 44,567,548.00
TOTAL 49,567,548.00
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block -
Less : Accumulated depreciation -
Net hlock
Capital work-in-progress and advances 2,560,884.00
2.560,884.00
INVESTMENTS -
CURRENT ASSETS,LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories -
Sundry debtors -
Cash and bank balances 3 5.064,418.00
Loans and advances 4 40,166,068.00
45,230,486.00
LESS:CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 5 3,256,100.00
Net current assets 41,974,386.00
Miscellaneous Expenditure.
{to the extent not written-off or Adjusted)
Preliminary Expenses 8.300.00
Profit & Loss account 5,023,978.00
TOTAL 49,567,548.00
Notes forming part of accounts 7

As per our report of even date

For M/s. P Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15.06.2006
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chander K. Baljee Sunita Baljes
Director Directar

Flace :Bangalore
Dated : 15.06.2007
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Schedule 31+ March 2007
Rs.
INCOME -

EXPENDITURE

Food and beverages consumed
Employees cost -
Other operating expenses -
General and administration expenses 6 {5,023,978.00)
Finance charges -
Depreciation

(5,023,978.00}
LOSS BEFORE TAX {5,023,978.00)
Provision for tax

Fringe Benefit Tax -

LOSS AFTER TAX {5,023,978.00)
Profit/loss carried to balance sheet (5,023,978.00)
Notes forming part of accounts 7

As per our report of even date

For M/5. P. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Sunita Baljee
Partner Director Director
Place :Bangalore Place :Bangalore

Dated : 15.06.2007 Dated : 15.06.2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31# March 2007

SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
500000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid up
500000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

SCHEDULE 2
UNSECURED LOANS
AB Holdings Pvt Ltd.

SCHEDULE 3

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash halances on hand

Banks balances with Scheduled Banks:
In Current accounts

SCHEDULE 4

LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, considered good)
Deposits

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Total

SCHEDULE 5

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Duties and taxes

Audit fees payable

Lease rental payable

SCHEDULE &

Profit and loss account
Lease rental
Registration charges
Miscellaneous charges
Bank charges

Audit fees

Rates & Taxes

Rs.

5,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

5,000,000.00

44,567,548.00

44,567,548.00

191,700.00

4,872,718.00

5,064,418.00

40,000,000.00
166,068.00

40,166,068.00

44,880.00
11,220.00
3,200,000.00

3,256,100.00

3,200,000.00
1,525,800.00
174,200.00
3,010.00
11,220.00
10%8,748.00

5,023,978.00

For M/s. P Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee
Partner Director

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15.06.2007
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Flace :Bangalore
Dated : 15.06.2007

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunita Baljee
Director




ROYAL ORCHID EAST PRIVATE LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

NOTES TO THE FMINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE 7

1.

Background

Royal Orchid East Pvt. Ltd. {“the Company”) was incorporated on 25.08.06 to carry on the business hotels/
holiday resorts and related services. M/s. AB Holdings Pvt. Ltd holds 96% of equity shares and balance 2% hold by
Mr. Chander K. Baljee and 2% by Mrs. Sunita Baljee.

The company has entered in to a lease agreement with M/S. Sandhya Hotels Limited for an initial period of five years
extendable up to fifteen years at a monthly rental of Rs. 16 Lakhs for lease of land, buildings, fittings, amenities for
running and operating hotel at Hyderabad. The company has paid an interest free refundable deposit of Rs.400 Lakhs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation :

The financial statement have been prepared ¢n accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). The
accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results could differ from those estimates of the economic useful lives of the fixed assets, provisions for bad and
doubtful debts and accruals of leave encashment, bonus and gratuity.

Revenue recognition :
The commercial opening of the hotel not been taken during the period under review.

Fixed assets :
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. All costs relating to acquisition
and installation of fixed assets are capitalized.

Depreciation :

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line Methed, using the higher of the rates specified in
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 or management estimates of the economic useful lives of such assets.
These rates are specified below:

Assets category Rates of depreciation used %
Plant and Machinery 4.75%

Office Equipment 1.75%

Computer and related equipment, including software 16.21%

Furniture and fittings 9.5%

Vehicles 9.5%

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5000.00 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Improvements to
buildings are amortized over the period of the lease. No depreciation charged period under review as no commercial
activity.
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vi Impairment of assets :

The company assessed at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less that its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as on impairment loss
and is recognized in the profit and loss account. It at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

vii Inventory:

Inventory comprised stock of food and beverages and is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes all expenses incurred in bringing the good to their present location and condition and determined on a
Weighted Average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

estimated costs of completion and to make the sale. There was no inventory during the year under review.

viii Retirement benefits :
The Company provides for gratuity and bonus, a defined benefit plan in accordance with the rules of the company
based on actuarial valuation carried out at the balance sheet date, by an independent actuary. Contributions
payable to the recognized Provident Fund and Employees state Insurance scheme, which are defined contribution
schemes, which are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred. As there was no commercial activity the
company did not hire any employee.

ix Leave Encashment :
The company provides for the leave encashment liability at the balance sheet date based on the accumulated leave
balance of the employees and the last drawn salary. . As there was no commercial activity the company did not hire
any employee.

x Taxesconincome :
During the year no deferred tax has been recognized as there is no commercial activity.

xi Earnings per share :
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit/loss for the period divided by Number of shares. As there
are no un-issued shares during the year the diluted earning will be the same as basic earning. As there was no
commercial activity shares were not valued.

Xii

Provisions and contingent liabilities :

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
and outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
required an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or present chbligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made.

RECOVERABILITY OF LOANS AND ADVANCES

In the opinicn of the board of directors, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary
course of business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provisions for all known liabilities has heen
made in the accounts.
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4,  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

i Parties where control exists include

Name of the party Nature of relationship

AB Holdings Pvt. Ltd Entity controlled by Directors
Mr. Chander K. Baljee Entity controlled by Directors
Mrs. Sunita Baljee Entity controlled by Directors

5.  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Company's business comprises the operation of hotel, the services of which represent one business segment as they
are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each other. Further the company derives its entire revenues from
services rendered in India, consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment-wise infarmation is not
applicable to the company.

6. PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVES

The Company has prepared financial statements, in accordance with AS-25. As this is the first year of operation,
previous years figures have not been provided.

7. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

The deferred tax asset was not taken into books for the period under review.

Far M/s. B. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Chander K. Baljee Sunita Baljee
Partner Director Director
Place :Bangalore Place : Bangalore

Dated : 15.06.2007 Dated : 15.06.2007
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CALH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended
31* March 2007
Rs.
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation - 5,023,978
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation -
Assets written off -
Finance charges -
Provisional for Doubtful debts -
Operating profit before working capital changes - 5,023,978
Movement in working capital
Increase in sundry debtors -
Increase in Inventories -
Increase in loans and advances - 40,166,068
Increase in current liabilities 3,258,100
Taxes paid -
Net cash from operative activities - 35,909,968
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets - 2,560,884
Net investment in term deposit “
Purchase of investment -
Lean to holding company 44,567,548
Loan repayment by holding company -
Sales/Maturity of investments -
Interest received -
- 8,300
Net cash used in investing activities 41,998,364
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Share capital 5,000,000
Proceeding from long-term borrowings -
Repayment of long-term borrowings -
Interest paid -
Net cash used in financing activities 5,000,000
A+B+C 5,064,418
cash and Bank balance as on 1/4/06 -
cash and Bank balance as on 31/03/07 5,064,418

For M/s, P. Chandrasekar

Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place :Bangalcre
Dated : 15.06.2007
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Chander K. Baljee
Director

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15.06.2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunita Baljee
Director
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: | 40290 | State code 8

Balance sheet date | 31/3/2007 |

ii Capital raised during the year (Amounts in Rs."000}

Public Issue | Nil | Rights lssue | Nil |

Bonus Issue I Nil | Private Placement | Nil |

i Position of Mobilisation and deployment of funds (amounts in Rs.’000)

Total Liabilities | 49568 | Total Assets | 49568 |

Sources of fund

Paid up capital [ 5000 | Reserves & Surplus | 0 |
(P &L alc)

Secured Loans | 0 | Unsecured loans | 44568 |

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | 2561 | Investments | G |
Net current assets [ 41975 | Preliminary expenses | 8 |
Accumulated losses [ 5024 |
iv Performance of the Company (amount in Rs."000)
Turnover | 0 | Total Expenditure | 5024 |
Profit Aloss) after tax I - 5024 | Earnings per share in Rs. | 0 |
Divident rate% | NIL |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms}
Item code No: {ITC code} 591001006
Product description Hotel
Itern code No.(ITC code) 390001002
Product description Restaurant
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OIRECTORY REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We, the Directors of your Company, have pleasure in presenting the First Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Staterment of Accounts for the year ended 31% March 2007.
Financial Results :

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2007 is summarized below:
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2006 - 07

Cperating income -
Non-operating income B
Total revenue -

Expenditure 18.23
Net loss before Depreciation & Tax 18.23
Depreciation -
Loss after Depreciation but before Taxation 18.23
Fringe benefit tax 0.05
Loss after Depreciation and Taxation 18.28

Performance Analysis
Your Company was incorporated on 9th November 2006 and has incurred a net loss of Rs.18, 28,628,
Future Qutlook

Tourist arrivals remain heafthy

The hotel industry in India is witnessing a new high in all respects. Tourist arrival, occupancies and room rates have touched an
all time high. Success of “Incredible India” campaign, introduction of low cost airlines, growing infrastructure thrust by the
government and India‘s emergence as an outsourcing hub has led to a 13.2% surge in foreign tourist arrival in calendar year
2006 over the previous year.

ARR expected to rise further

With growing business, domestic and international leisure travel, rooam demand is going to rise further. Though there is a
huge room capacity addition lined up by many companies and which are under various stages of construction, the demand
supply mismatch is expected to continue at least for the next year. By the middle of 2008 we might see some capacities
coming in. Till that time room rates are expected to rise further,

Company’s performance

With Industrial growth, including the Hospitality Industry, likely to remain strong, your Company’s overall performance and
operating results are expected to improve in the current year. With the positive mood prevailing in the tourism industry, the
outlook for the company promises to be brighter in the coming years.

Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 256, Mr.Arjun Baljee- Director retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
re-appointment. Also during financial year 2007-08 Mr.Shekar Bhargav, Mr.K.V.Rao, Mr.Naresh K Malhotra and Mr.Prakash
Gurbaxani- were co opted as Additional Directors of the company after the Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of
Royal Crehid Hotels Limited. As per the provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act 1956, the appointment of additional
directors is subject to confirmation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, suitable agenda has been inserted
in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting proposing confirmation of appeintment of additional directors. The
shareholders are requested to consent to the same for benefit of the company.
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Auditors” and their Report:

M/s. P. Chandrasekar, Chartered Accountants, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has expressed their willingness
to continue in office if re-appointed. Since the proposal is in the best interests of the Company, your Directors propose their
appeintment as Statutory Auditors for the current year, for the approval of shareholders.

Public Deposits
During the year under review, your company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board of Directors, based on the representations
received from the Management, hereby confirms that:

i. Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there
are no material departures.

ii. [Ithas, inthe selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and has applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2007 and of the profit of the Company for that period.

ii. It hastaken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities, to the best of its knowledge and ability. There are however, inherent limitations, which should be
recognized while relying on any system of internal control and records.

iv. It has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

Employees

The details of employees as specified under section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended upto date is not applicable.

Statutory Information

The particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (1)(e) of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
{Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out hereunder:

(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Your Company's efforts towards conservation of energy, which results in savings in consumption of electricity, a
significant component of the energy cost, is an ongoing process.

{(2) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R & D), TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION
Your Company is engaged in Hotel & Hospitality Industry. Hence, your Company does not require Research &
Development activities. Despite that, the Company is constantly upgrading and optimizing the Process parameters
with emphasis on ¢ost control and rationalization. The Company continues to strive for improving methodology of
work and productivity of operations through centinuous research. However, the actual expenditure incurred thereon
is minimal.

(3} FOREIGN EXCHANGE FARNINGS AND OUTGO
There is no foreign exchange earnings and ocutge during the year.

Acknowledgments

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude and wish to place on record sincere thanks and appreciation for the co-operation
received by the Company from customers, suppliers, bankers, Central and State Governments and other statutory authorities
and others associated with the Company.

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all employees for rendering outstanding services. Your Directors thank you for
the unstinted support and confidence reposed in the Management and look forward to your continued support,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
A B HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Flace : Bangalore ARJUN BALJEE
Date : 15.06.2007 Chairman
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Registration Na : 08/04033%4
Nominal Capital : Rs 15,00,00,000/-

To

The Members,

M/s AB HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
No. 4711, Dickenson Road,

Bangalore - 560 042,

Dear 5ir,

I have examined the registers, records, books and papers of M/s A B HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED as required to be
maintained under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made there under and also the provisions contained in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2007. In my
opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished
to me by the Company, its officers and agents, | certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year:

1.

1.

12,
13.
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The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure *A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions
and the rules made there under and all entries therein have been duly recorded.

The Company has duly filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate, with the Registrar of
Companies, or other authorities as per the provisions of the Act and the rules made there under.

The Company is a Private Limited Company, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of a company which is not a private
Limited company within the meaning of section of 3 (1} {iv) of the companies Act 1956 and has the minimum prescribed
paid up capital and its maximum number of members during the said financial year was 03 (Three) and the company
during the year under scrutiny:

has not invited public to subscribe for its shares or debentures and
has not invited or accepted any deposits during the financial year under review.

The Board of directors duly met 3 times on 10.11.2006, 01.03.2007 and 31.03.2007 in respect of which meetings proper
notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the
purpose.

The Company has not closed its Register of Members during the financial year.

The First Annual General meeting for the financial year ended on 31.3.20G7 is due to be held under the provisions of
section 166 read with section 210 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Two Extra-Crdinary General meeting was held during the financial year on 15.11.2006 & on 26.03.2007
The Company has not made any lean to Directors under the provisions of section 295 of the Companies Act 1956,
The Company has not entered in to any contracts falling within the purview of section 297 of the Act.

The Company has made necessary entries in the Register of Companies and firms in which Directors are interested
maintained under Section 301(3) of the Act.

As there were no instances falling within the purview of Section 314 of the Act, the Company has not obtained any
approvals from the Board of Directors, members or Central Government as the case may be.

The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the financial year.

a) There was an allotment of Equity Shares during the financial year. There was transfer of equity shares during the
financial year.

b) The Company has not deposited any amount in a separate Bank Account as no Dividend was declared during the
financial year.

¢ The Company has not posted warrants to any member of the Company as no Dividend was declared during the
financial year.

d) The company has duly complied with the requirements of Section 217 of the Act.
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14. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. There was no appointment of an Additional Director during
the financial year. However four additional Directors were appointed by the Board in the Board meeting held on
16.04.2007. There was no appointment of Alternate Directors or Directors to fill Casual vacancy during the financial
year.

15. The Company has not appointed any Managing Director/Whole time Director/Manager during the financial year.
However the Board has appointed Mr. Arjun Baljee as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 01.04.2007 in the
Board Meeting held on 16.04.2007

16. The Company has not appointed any sole selling agents during the financial year.

17. The Company was not required to obtain any approval of the Central Government, Company Law Board, Regional
Director, Registrar of Companies and/or such authorities prescribed under the various provisions of the Act.

18. Thedirectors have disclosed their interest in other firms/Companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions
of the Act and the rules made there under and hence the same has been recorded in the register maintained under
section 301({3) of the Act.

1%. The Company has issued Equity Shares during the financial year under review.
20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.

21. The company has not issued any preference shares or debentures and hence redemption thereof during the year does
not arise.

22. There were no transactions necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance the rights to dividend, rights shares and
honus shares pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. The Company has not invited/accepted any deposits including any unsecured loans falling within the purview of Section
58A during the financial year.

24. The Company has not made any borrowings falling within the provisions of section 293(1} (d} of the Companies Act
1956.

25. The Company has not made any loans/investments or provided any guarantee or securities falling within the provisions
of section 372A of the Act.

26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to Situation of the Company’s registered
office from one State to another during the year under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to the Cbjects of the Coampany during
the year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to Name of the Company during the
year under scrutiny.

2%. The Company has altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to Share Capital of the Company during the
year under scrutiny

30. The Company has altered Capital Clause of the Articles of Association during the year under scrutiny.

31. There were no prosecution initiated against or show cause notices received by the Company and no fines or penalties
ar any other punishment was imposed on the company during the financial year, for offences under the Act.

32. From the records, it has been observed that the Company has not received any money as security deposit from its
employees during the financial year.

33. The Company has not collected any contribution towards Provident Fund from the employees during the financial year.

Sdi- :

Place : Bangalore Name : Ramachandra Bhat. §

Date : 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice
C.P.Ne. : 5421
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ANNEXURE-A

Name of the Company : AB HOLDINGS PVT. LTD.

Company No. : 08/040894
Authorised Capital : Rs. 15 Crores
Paid Up Capital . Rs. 26 Lakhs

Registers as maintained by the Company:

1. Register of Members ufs 150
2. Register of Companies and Firms in which Directars, etc,, are interested u/s 301(3)
3. Minutes of Board Meetings/Annual General Meetings/Extra- Ordinary General Meetings u/s 193

4. Register of Directors u/s 303

5. Beoard Meeting Attendance Register
6. General Meeting Attendance Register
7. Register of share transfers.

8. Register of Contract u/s 301

9. Register of Directors share holding u/s 307

ANNEXURE-B

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, during the financial year ending on
31+t March 2007.

1. Form 32 in respect of changes in the office of Directors was filed with the ROC on 16.05.2007.
2. Form 5 in respect of enhancement of Authorised Share Capital of the Company was filed with the ROC on 13.02.2007
3. Form 23 for registration of Special resolution for Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company was filed with the

ROC on 08.02.2007.

4, Form 2 in respect of allotment of Equity Shares done on 31.03.2007 is yet to be filed.

5. Form No. 23 in respect of ordinary resalution passed in the EGM under Section 293(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 is yet
to be filed.
Sdr-
Place : Bangalore Name : Ramachandra Bhat. §
Date : 15.06.2007 Company Secretary in Practice

C.PNo. : 5421
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AUDITORS” REPORT

To

The Members
AB Holdings Private Limited
Bangalore

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of AB Holdings Private Limited as at 31 March 2007 and also the Profit and
Loss Account for the period ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the respensibility of the
Company's Management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We helieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

As required by the Companies {Auditors Report) Crder, 2003, issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 227(4A}
of the Companies Act, 1956, the matters specified in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order, are not applicable to the Company.

Further to our comments in the annexure attached hereto, we report that:

1. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by Company, so far as appears from our
examination of books;

3.  The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

4. Inouropinion, the Balance Sheet & Profit & Loss Account comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in subsection
(3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 ;

5.  Inouropinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, none of the Directors of
the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors under clause (g) of sub section (1) of Section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

6. Inouropinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
together with the notes thereon,. give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required
and give the true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

{a )in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2007.
{b) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the Company for the period ended on the date.

For M/s. P CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Date :15.06.2007
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ANNEXNURE TO THE AUDITORE REPORT

Annexure to the auditors’ report of even date to the members of A B Holdings Private Limited (“the Company”), on the
financial statement for the year ended 31+ March 2007

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we report that :

(i)
(i)
(i}

(iv}

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

{viii}

(ix)

(x)
{xi)

{xii)

(iii}

170

{a} The company does not have any fixed assets an clause {i){a){b){c) of this order are not applicable.
(a} The Company does not hold any inventory and hence clause ii{a}{b)}c} of this order are not applicable.

{a) The company has granted interest free unsecured loans from one companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act from one party amounting to Rs. 444.67 Lakhs and the terms and
conditions of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the company.
There is no amount overdue for more than Rupees Cne Lakh.

{b} The company has taken interest free unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Act from four parties amounting to Rs. 552.16 Lakhs and the terms
and conditions of loans taken by the company, unsecured, are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the
company. There is no amount overdue for mere than Rupees Cne Lakh

In our opinion and according to information’s and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business,

(a} Alltransactionsthat need to be entered into a register in pursuance of section 301 of the Act have been so entered.

(b} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions made in
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of Rs. 5.00 Lakhs, in respect of any party during the year have been made at
prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market price at the relevant time;

The company has not accepted deposits from the public, under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 58A and 58BAA of the Act and the rules framed there under.

in our opinion the company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its businass. However
it needs to be strengthened.

The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under clause {d) of sub-section (1)
of section 209 of the Act.

The Company has no accumulated losses and has sustained cash losses during the current financial year covered under
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank .

The Company has not granted loans and advances on the hasis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and
other securities.

The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund/midhif mutual benefit fund/societies are not applicable to the
Company and therefore the provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Companies {Auditor's Report} Order, 2003 are not applicable
to the company.

As the company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments, the maintenance of
proper records of the transactions and contracts and making timely entries of the shares, securities, debentures and
other securities held by the company, are not applicable,
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{xiv) The company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions, the terms and
conditions whereof are prejudicial to the interest of the company;

{xv] The Company has not taken any term loan from any bank or financial institutions.

{xvi) According to information and explanations given to us, and an overall examination of the Balance Sheet and fund flow
statement of the Company, we report that the funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long term
investment and vice versa.

{xvii} The company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under section 301 of the Act .

{xviii) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has notissued any debentures during the year and
no securities were created by the company.

(xix} The company has not raised money on public issue.

{x) On the basis of our examination of the bhooks of accounts and other relevant records and information made available
to us, prima-facie have not noticed any fraud on or by the Company, during the year. Further, the management has
represented to us that no fraud on or by the Company has been reported during the year. However, we are unable to
determine / verify as to whether any such reporting has been made, during the year.

{xxi) All other provisions of the said order are not applicable to the company
For M/s. P CHANDRASEKAR
Chartered Accountants

P. CHANDRASEKAR
Partner

Place : Bangalore
Date : 15.06.2007
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BALANCE SHEET

Schedule | 31% March 2007
Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital 1 2,600,000.00
Reserves and surplus -
2,600,000.00
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans -
Unsecured loans 2 54,4384,102.00
TOTAL 57.084,102.00
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block -
Less : Accumulated depreciation -
Net block -
Capital work-in-progress and advances 947,300.00
947,300.00
INVESTMENTS 3 4,800,000.060
CURRENT ASSETS,LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories -
Sundry debtors -
Cash and bank balances 4 116,500.00
Loans and advances 5 51,232,812.00
51,349.312.00
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 6 1,841,138.00
Net current assets 49,508,174.00
Miscellaneous Expenditure.
{tc the extent not written-off or Adjusted}
Preliminary Expenses -
Profit & Loss account 7 1,828,628.00
TOTAL 57,084,102.00
Notes forming part of accounts B
As per Report of Even date
For M/s. P Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
P. Chandrasekar K.V. Rao Arjun Baljee
Partner Director Director

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
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Schedule

31 March 2007

INCOME

EXPENDITURE

Food and beverages consumed
Employees cost

Other operating expenses

General and administration expenses
Finance charges

Depreciation

LOSS BEFORE TAX
Provision for tax
Fringe Benefit Tax
LOS5 AFTER TAX

Profit/loss carried to balance sheet

Notes forming part of accounts

Rs.

{1,823,628.00)

(1,823,628.00}

{1,823,628.00)

5,000.00

{1,828,628.00)

(1,828,628.00}

For M/s. P. Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

B Chandrasekar
Partner

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15™ June 2007

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K.\, Rao
Director

Arjun Baljee
Director

Flace : Bangalore
Dated : 15™ Jupe 2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31* March 2007

SCHEDULE 1

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized

300000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid up

2600000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

SCHEDULE 2
UNSECURED LOANS
Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd
Others

Mr. C K Baljee

SCHEDULE 3

INVESTMENTS

Long term Non trade - (Investment in subsidiary company)
480000 equity shares of Rs. 10/-each fully paid in Royal
Orchid East (P) Ltd.

SCHEDULE 4

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash balances on hand

Banks balances with Scheduled Banks:

In Current accounts

SCHEDULE 5

LOANS AND ADVANCES

{Unsecured, considered good)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 10 be received
Advance payment

Royal Orchid East Pvt Ltd

Security deposit

Rs.

3,000,000.00

2,600,000.00

2,606,000.00

51,951,321.00
32,781.00
2,500,000.00

54,484,102.00

4,800,000.00

4,800,000.00

104,282.00

12,218.60

116,500.00

665,264.00
44,567,548.00
6,000,000.00

51,232,812.00
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315 March 2007

SCHEDULE &
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for FBT
Duties/Taxes

Others

Audit fees

SCHEDULE 7

Profit and loss account
Audit fees

Rates & Taxes
Salariesfsecurity charges/staff welfare
Professional charges
Travelling/Transportation
Advertisement charges
Electricityfwater charges
Telephone/mobile

Bank charages

Cthers

Rs.

5,000.00
42,878.00
1,782,040.00
11,220.00
1,841,138.00

11,220.00
691,090.00
42,919.00
976,082.00
17,492.00
22,040.00
47,152.00
3,553.00
2,530.00
9,460.00
1,823,538.00

For M/s. B Chandrasekar
Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar
Partner

Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K.V. Rao
Director

Arjun Baljee
Director

Place ;Bangalore
Dated : 15" June 2007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 5TATEMENTS
SCHEDULE 8
1. Background

AB Holding Pvt. Ltd. ("the Company”) was incorporated on 09.11.06 to carry on the business hotels/holiday resorts and
related services, M/s. Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd holds 100% of equity shares.

The company has taken a commercial property of lease at Bangalore for a period of five years and has given interest
free security deposit of Rs. 60 Lakhs. The lease rentals of Rs. 6 Lakhs per month shall commence from 01.07.2007

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i Basis of preparation

The financial statement have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAl). The
accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

i Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods.

Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual
results could differ from those estimates of the economic useful lives of the fixed assets, provisions for bad and
doubtful debts and accruals of leave encashment, bonus and gratuity.

i Revenue recognition

The commercial opening of the hotel not been taken during the period under review.

v Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. All costs relating to acquisition
and installation of fixed assets are capitalized.

v Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line Method, using the higher of the rates specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 or management estimates of the economic useful lives of such assets.
These rates are specified below:

Assets category Rates of depreciation used %
Plant and Machinery 4.75%

Office Equipment 1.75%

Computer and related equipment, including software 16.21%

Furniture and fittings 9.5%

Vehicles 9.5%

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5000.0C are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Improvements to
buildings are amortized over the period of the lease. No depreciation charged period under review as no commercial
activity.
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vi lmpairment of asseis

The company assessed at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less that its carrying
amount, the carrying amcunt is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as on impairment loss
and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

vii fnverntory

Inventory comprised stock of food and beverages and is carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes all expenses incurred in bringing the good to their present location and condition and determined on a
Weighted Average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

estimated costs of completion and to make the sale. There were no inventory during the year under review,

viii Retirement benefits
The Company provides for gratuity and bonus, a defined benefit plan in accordance with the rules of the company
based on actuarial valuation carriedout at the balance sheet date, by anindependent actuary. Contributions payable
1o the recognized Provident Fund and Employees state Insurance scheme, which are defined contribution schemes,
which are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred. As there was no commercial activity the company did
not hire any employee.

ix teave Fncashment
The company provides for the leave encashment liability at the balance sheet date based on the accumulated leave
halance of the employees and the last drawn salary. As there was no commercial activity the company did not hire
any employee.

x Jaxes on income
During the year no deferred tax has been recognized as there is no commercial activity.

Xi Earnings per share
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit/loss for the period divided by Number of shares. As there
are no un-issued shares during the year the diluted earning will be the same as basic earning. As there was no
commercial activity shares were not valued.

xii Provisions and contingent liabilitias

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
and outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
required an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or present obligation in respect of which the

likelihood of outflow of resources is remote no provision or disclosure is made.

3. RECOVERABILITY OF LOANS AND ADVANCES
In the opinion of the board of directors, current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary
course of business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provisions for all known liabilities has been
made in the accounts,
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4,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTINS

i. Parties where control exists include

Name of the party Nature of relationship

Royal Orchid Hotels Ltd Entity controlled by Directors
Mr. Arjun Baljee Entity controlled by Directors
Mrs. Sunita Baljee Entity controlled by Director

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The Company’s business comprises the operation of hotel, the services of which represent one business segment as they
are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each other. Further the company derives its entire revenues from
services rendered in India, consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment-wise informaticn is not
applicable to the company.

6. PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVES
The Company has prepared financial statements, in accordance with AS-25. As this is the first year of operation, previous
years figures have not been provided.

7. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
The deferred tax asset was not taken into books for the period under review.

For M/s P Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar K.V.Rao Arjun Baljee

Partner Director Director

Place :Bangalore Flace :Bangalore

Cated : 15" June 2007 Dated : 15™ June 2007
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended
31 March 2007

Rs.

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation - 1,823,628
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation -
Assets written off -
Finance charges -
Provisional for Doubtful debts -
Operating profit before working capital changes - 1,823,628
Movement in working capital :
Increase in sundry debtors -
Increase in Inventories -

Increase in loans and advances - 51,232,812

Increase in current liabilities 1,841,138

Taxes paid - 5,000

Net cash from operative activities - 49,396,674
B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets - 947,300.00

Net investment in term deposit -
Purchase of investment -
Loan to holding company 54,484,102.00
Loan repayment by holding company -
Sales/Maturity of investments -
Interest received -

Net cash used in investing activities 53,536,802.00
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Share capital 2,600,600.00

Proceeding from long-term borrowings -
Repayment of long-term borrowings -
Interest paid -

Net cash used in financing activities - 4,860,000.00
2,200,000.00
A+B+C 116,500.00
Cash and bank balance as on 1/4/06 =
Cash and bank balance as on 31/03/07 116,500.00

For M/s P. Chandrasekar For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

P. Chandrasekar Arjun Baljee K.V. Rao
Partner Director Director
Flace :Bangalore Place :Bangalore
Dated : 15.06.2007 Dated : 15.06.2007
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO
THE COMPANIES ACT 1956

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPNY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

i Registration details :

Registraion No: | 40894 | State code 8

Balance sheet date | 317372007 |

ii Capital raised during the year (Amounts in Rs."000}

Publiclssue | Nil | Rights Issue | Nil |

Bonus Issue I Nil | Private Placement | 2500 |

i Pasition of Mobilisation and deployment of funds (amounts in Rs.’000)

Total Liabilities | 57084 | Total Assets | 57084 |

Sources of fund

Paid up capital [ 2600 | Reserves & Surplus | Nil |
(P &Lalc)

Secured Loans | Nil | Unsecured loans | 54484 |

Application of funds

Net Fixed assets | Nil | Investments | 4800 |
Net current assets [ 49508 | Preliminary expenses | 0 |
Accumulated losses [ ¢ |
iv Performance of the Company (amount in Rs.'000)
Turnover | 0 | Total Expenditure | 1824 |
Profit /(loss) after tax I - 1829 | Earnings per share in Rs. | Nil |
Divident rate% | NIL |
v Generic names of three pricipal products/services of the company (as per monetary terms}
Item code No: {ITC code} 591001006
Product description Hotel
Itern code No.(ITC code) 390001002
Product description Restaurant
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AUDITORS® REPORT

The Board of Directors
Royal Orchid Hotels Limited

1.

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Royal Orchid Hotels Limited ("the Company’) and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as "the Group’ as at 31 March 2007 and also the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Group’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
ouropinian.

We have not audited the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs 234,166,244 as at 31 March 2007 and total revenues of Rs 69,761,992 and cash flows amounting to Rs 41,374,799 during
the year ended 31 March 2007. These financial statements and cther financial information have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinion in respect thereof is based sclely on the report of the
other auditors.

As more fully discussad in Note b of Schedule 13, during the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company acquired a 51 per cent
equity interest in Maruti Comforts and inn Private Limited (‘the subsidiary’). In accordance with the terms of the shareholder’s
partnership agreement, the Company or its subsidiary would not be liable for any amounts to the previous promoter group
on account of any dues or loans axisting prior to the date of the Company’s investment. However, the subsidiary continues
to record a current liability of Rs 23,374,098 representing arnounts due to the previous promoters, as it s currently under
discussion with them for this amount. Consequently, as at 37 March 2007, subject to the effect of the adiustments based
on tha discussions above, the current fiabifities of tha Group and the goodwill on this consolidation are overstated by
Rs 23,374 098 in these consolidated financial statements.

As mare fully discussed in note 7 to Schedule 22, the Company s subsidiary, fcon Hospitality Private Limited has recorded
remuneration payable to fits directors in excess of tha limits specified by Section 309 of the Companies Ac, 1956 by
Rs 7, 128,080 without the prior approval of the Central Government, the Company has applied to the Central Government
for the said approval, which is currently awaited.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company's management in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Subject to our comments in paragraph 4 and 5 above, and on consideration of the report of the other auditor on the
separate financial staterments of the entities not audited by us, we are of the opinion that to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the attached Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a} in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31* March 2007,
{b} in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and
{c} inthe case of the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement, of the consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh
Partner
Membership No. 210122

Bangalore
15 June 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Schedule 31 March 2007 31* March 2007
Rs. Rs.
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Capital 1 272,339,650 272,339,650
Reserves and surplus 2 1.426,192,748 1,264,798,535
1,698,532,398 1,537,138,185
MINORITY INTEREST 3 58,091,391 43,229,617
LOAN FUNDS
Secured |oans 4 224,555,056 274,161,062
Unsecured [oan 5 89,080,376 9,080,376
313,635,432 283,241,438
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY b 36,170,000 36,400,600
2,106,429,221 1,9G0,009,240
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
GOODWILL 61,732,120 61,732,120
FIXED ASSETS 7
Gross block 752,326,775 604,747,682
Less: Accumulated depreciation 174,366,620 130,384,622
Net block 377,260,155 474,363,040
Capital wark-in-progress and advances 14,680,780 9,463,900
592,640,935 483,826,560
INVESTMENTS 8 225,000 25,000
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories 9 8,030,843 6,960,850
Sundry debtors 10 68,585,651 46,451,738
Unbilled revenues 3,845,119 7,722,683
Cash and bank balances 11 1,284,08%,739 1,440,313,211
Loans and advances 12 478,588,634 173,239,543
1,843,140,986 1,674,728,425
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Liabilities 13 194,417,120 159,366,071
Provisions 14 196,951,400 160,937,194
391,368,520 320,303,265
NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,451,772.466 1,354,425,160
Miscellaneous expenditure 58,700 -
2,106,429,221 1,900,009,240
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 22

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the consclidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Naresh K Malhotra

Someswara Rao

Aashish Arjun Singh Chander K. Baljee

Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 210122
Bangalore Bangalore

15 June 2007 15 June 2007
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Schedule | 31* March 2007 31 March 2007
Rs. Rs.
INCOME
Operating Income 15 1.137,019,835 834,519,916
Other income 16 104,560,618 25,273,895
1,241,580,453 859,793,811
EXPENDITURE
Feod and beverages consumed 17 98,729,586 61,396,579
Employee costs 18 113,893,097 79,369,268
Operating expenses 19 258,654,719 192,409,781
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20 198,954,252 142,171,312
Interest 21 25,296,36% 16,083,447
Depreciation 7 43,981,998 30,223,717
739,510,021 521,654,104
PROFIT BEFORE TAX, MINORITY INTEREST AND
SHARE IN EARNINGS OF AFFILIATE 502,070,432 338,139,707
Provision for income tax
- Current {132,270,000} (79,098,702)
- Deferred 230,000 (9,900,000)
- Fringe benefit tax (1,953,007} (1,593,514)
- Provision for income tax of prior years written back - 200,000
PROFIT AFTER TAX AND BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 368,077,425 247,747,491
Minority Interest 3 {15,508,948} {17,754,425)
Share in earnings of affiliates 3 - 485,332
NET PROFIT 352,568,477 230,488,398
Balance brought forward from the previous year 110,412,131 155,889,605
Balance available for appropriations 462,980,608 386,378,003
Minority shareholders’ share of |osses absorbed 3 - {2,294,149)
Balance available for appropriations 462,980,608 384,083,854
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend {163,403,790} {136,169,825)
Tax oh distribution of dividend (27,770,474} (19,097,818)
Transfer to General Reserve {33,944,202) (21,204,380)
Bonus shares issued - (97,199,700)
Balance carried to balance sheet 237,862,142 110,412,121
EARNINGS PER SHARE {Rs 10 par value)
Basic and diluted earnings 12.95 10.98
(Refer Note 4 in Schedule 22).
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 22

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
This is the consolidated profit and loss account referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co
Chartered Accountants

Aashish Arjun Singh

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Chander K. Baljee Naresh K Malhotra Someswara Rao

Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 210122
Bangalcre Bangalore

15 June 2007 15 June 2007
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CONSQLIDATRED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended Year ended
31% March 2007 | 31* March 2006
Rs. Rs.
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 502,070,432 338,139,707
Adjustments for;
Depreciation 43,981,998 30,223,717
Loss on disposal of investments 427,000
Advances written off 2,474,834
Interest income (87,678,937} (17,593,276)
Interest expense 28,913,043 16,076,856
Provision for doubtful debts 6,061,593 2,739,919
Bad debts written off 1,369,380
Operating profit before working capital changes 493,348,129 373,858,137
Movements in working capital :
(Increase} in sundry debtors (22,972,519} (18,296,969)
(Increase} in inventories (385,619} {1,219,241)
(Increase} in margin monies (1,710,982) {5,312,645)
(Increase} / Decrease in unbilled revenue 1,362,503 {4,172,648)
(Increase} in loans and advances {333,484,594) (49,156,951)
Increase / (Decrease} in current liabilities and provisions 45,550,242 8,972,599
Cash generated from operations 181,707,161 304,572,282
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (101,291,401) (60,182,840)
Net cash from operating activities 80,415,760 244,389,442
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets {158,992,705) (86,681,001)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets -
Net investrnent in term deposit 20,878,016 {1,181,984,368)
Purchase of investments (200,000} (58,951,000)
Sale / maturity of investments
Interest received 67,785,631 3,070,439
Net cash used in investing activities (70,529,058) (1,324,545,930)
C. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital (including premium)
Dividend paid

Share issue expenses paid

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short term borrowings

Interest Paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

{155,267,643)
{8,449,821}
71,500,000

(56,387,029}
1,002,869
(21,797,569)

1,280,499,850

(61,975,684)
82,857,345
(34,279,807)

(15,996,210)

(164,399,193)

1,261,104,794

{154,512,491) 180,948,306
227,278,799 46,330,493
72,766,308 227,278,799
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Note:

a) The Group considers all highly liguid investments with a remaining maturity, at the date of purchasefinvestment, of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at year end

2007 2006
Cash and bank balances at 31 March 1,284,089,739 1,440,313,211
Less : Bank deposits and margin monies
considered separately {Refer note above } 1,211,323,431 (1,213,034,412)
72,766,308 227,278,799
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in cur report of even date.
For Walker, Chandiok & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Aashish Arjun Singh Chander K. Baljee Naresh K. Malhotra A Someswara Rao
Partner Managing Director Director Company Secretary

Membership No. 210122

Bangalore Bangalore
15 June 2007 15 June 2007
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

SCHEDULE 1
CAPITAL

Authorised
30,000,000 (31 March 2006 ; 30,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid up

27,233,965 (31 March, 2006 : 27,233,965) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Rs. Rs.
300,000,000 300,000,000
272,339,650 272,339,650
272,339,650 272,339,650

Note:

a} Of the above 6,000,000 {31 March 2006: 6,000,000} equity shares have been allotted as fully paid up, by capitalizing the
interest free refundable deposit due to the Managing Director. Pursuant to an agreement entered between the Company
and the Managing Director, in 1992, the Company has been granted the right to use his interest in the land leased from
the Karnataka State Tourism Development Corporation ('KSTDC') pertaining to the Royal QOrchid Hotel, for the period of

the lease arrangement.

b} At the Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2005, the members of the Company approved a bonus issue of
one equity share for every equity share held on 1 September 2005. Consequently, of the above outstanding shares,
9,719,970 (31 March 2006 — 9,719,970) equity shares have been allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares by

capitalising the balance in the profit and loss account.

<) On January 30, 2006, the Company issued 6,820,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs.155 per equity share

through an Initial Public Offer ('IPC") of equity shares. (Refer Schedule 2).

31 March 2007

31 March 2006

SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Share Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Premium received on equity shares issued during the year (a)
Less: Utilisation towards IPC issue expenses
Balance at the end of the year
Foreign Exchange Earnings Reserve
General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Transfer during the year
Balance at the end of the year
Capital Reserve {b)
Profit and Loss Account
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: net profit for the year
Less; Proposed Dividend
Less: Tax on distribution of dividend
Less: Transfer to General Reserve
Less: Minority Share in pre-acquisition losses absorbed
Less: Issue of bonus shares
Balance at the end of the year

Rs.

1.130,684.095

Rs.

1,202,109,600

- 71,425,505
1,130,684,095 1,130,684,095
1,750,000 1,750,000
21,204,380 -
33,944,202 21,204,380
55,148,582 21,204,380
747,928 747,929
110,412,131 155,889,605
352,568,477 230,488,398
163,403,790 136,169,825
27,770,474 19,097,818
33,944,202 21,204,380
- 2,294,149

- 97,199,700
237,862,142 110,412,131

1,426,192,748

1,264,798,535

Note:

a) Share premium includes an amount Rs 1,057,100,000 received on allotment of 6,820,000 equity shares pursuant 1o the

Company’s IPO in January 2006. Also Refer Schedule 1.

b) Capital reserve represents the excess of the Company's share in the equity of Icon Hospitality Private Limited over the cost
of the investment at the date of the shareholders’ partnership agreement {Refer Note 2 on Schedule 22}.
<) At the Annual General Meeting held on 28 September 2005, the members of the Company approved a bonus issue of one
equity share for every equity share held on 1 September 2005. Cf the above outstanding shares, 9,719,970 (31 March 2006
-9,719,970) equity shares have been allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares by capitalising the balance in the profit

and loss account.

186




ROYAL ORCHID HOTELS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES ANNUAL REPORT 2006-07

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE 3

MINOGRITY INTEREST

a) Asdiscussed in Note 2 of Schedule 22, Minority Interest represents the interest of the minority shareholders in the company’s
subsidiaries and includes their share of applicable profits.

b} During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Company acquired a 51% equity interest in Maruti Comforts and Inn Private
Limited. However on the date of acquisition, the minority shareholders’ share in the losses of Maruti Comforts and Inn
Private Limited exceeded their interest in the equity by Rs 2.3 million with no binding obligation on them to make good
the losses. Conseguently, this amount has been adjusted against the Company’s reserves in these consolidated financial
statements. Subsequent profits are being allocated to the Company until these losses are fully recovered.

31 March 2007 31" March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 4
SECURED LOANS
Term loans from banks (a} 213,650,992 263,650,987
Other loans {b) 9,079,366 9,098,529
Interest accrued and due 1,824,698 1,411,546
224,555,056 274,161,062
Note:

a)  During the year ended 31 March 2004, the Company availed a term loan facility of Rs 250 million from the Housing and
Urban Development Corporation of India ("HUDCQ") for the expansion activities of the Company that carried an interest
rate of 11.25 % per annum which was subsequently revised to 9.75 % per annum. Of the above, the Company availed
Rs 208 million with the balance facility remaining unutilised. This loan was repayable in 36 quarterly instalments of
Rs 6.9 millicn each ending in June 2013 and was secured against the land and buildings of Royal Crchid Hotel and Royal
Orchid Harsha with an escrow over the collections from sales settled through credit cards at both hotels.

Additionally, this borrowing was backed by the perscnal guarantees of Mr. Chander K. Baljee, the Managing Director of
the Company and Mrs. Sunita Baljee, Director of the Company and a corporate guarantee from Baljee Hotels and Real
Estate Private Limited, a company under the same management.
On 16 December 2004, the Company was sanctioned a term loan from the State Bank of Hyderabad {"the Bank') for
Rs 300 million. The company drew down Rs.192 million of which Rs.154 million was utilised towards the repayment of the
loan outstanding from HUDCO with the halance of Rs.38 million being utilised for the purposes of the expansion hy the
Company. This loan carries an interest rate of 3 % below the Prime Lending Rate ('PLR') of the Bank subject to a maximum
of 8.75 % per annum. This loan is secured by way of an equitable mortgage of the land and building of the Royal Orchid
Hotel and a first charge on the present and future fixed assets of the Company. The key covenants include cost overruns
on expansion being met directly by the Company, and new plant and machinery acquired to be insured jointly in the
names of the Company and the Bank. Further, the arrangement also requires all expenditure in excess of the budgets and
any other expansion activities to be pre-approved by the Bank.

b} Other loans represent loans taken to purchase vehicles that are secured by the hypothecation of the vehicles concerned.
These loans carry interest rates varying from 6.29 % to 8.5 % and are repayable through 2010,

Amounts due in one year are as follows:

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

Rs. Rs.
Term loans 50,000,000 50,000,000
Other loans 1,536,821 2,994,068
51,536,821 52,994,068
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31= March 2007 | 31¢ March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 5
UNSECURED LOANS
From Others £9,080,376 9,080,376
89,080,376 9,080,376
Note:

Loans represent loans taken by the Company’s subsidiaries, Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited and Icon Hospitality
Private Limited, from its directors. The loan of Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited is interest free and repayable on
demand. The loan of lcon Hospitality Private Limited amounting to Rs 77.5 million carries a interest of 10% and is also repayable

on demand.
31¢ March 2007 31+ March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 6
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY NET
Deferred tax liability arising on account of ;
Depreciation 40,035,285 39,895,365
Less: deferred tax asset arising account of :
Employee benefits 1,510,341 1,930,981
Provision for doubtful debts 1,678,324 973,177
Other deductions on payment basis -
Lease rentals 676,620 591,207
Deferred revenue expenditure -
36,170,000 36,400,000

The Company is eligible for a deduction of 30 percent of its profits from the Royal Orchid Hotel, being a new industrial
undertaking as defined under Section 80IB of the Income-tax Act, 1961. This benefit is available for a period of ten consecutive
years ending on 31 March 2010, Consequently, the deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31" March 2007 have been recorded
to the extent of the timing differences that reverse outside the tax holiday period.

SCHEDULE 7

FIXED ASSETS

Gross block Depredation Block Netblock
Assets Asat Additions Deletions Asat Asat Charge Daletions As at Asat Asat
19 April 31t March 1= Apil forthe 31* March 319 March 31*March

206 20 206 year 007 p.ird 206
Goodwill - 43554452 - 454452 - 355,790 - 555,790 3998662 -
Building X1pM1N 25,364,662 - 316,085,743 40711469 9824124 . 50,535,593 266,450,190 2SA09E52
Plant and Machinery 129882611 B 10422 - 185862 033 3398009 8914854 - 2904073 142,957 960 95,603402
Office Equipment 8%1310 1427591 - 10383901 3241706 695,29 - 3937002 6A51599 3719604

Compuersand

related software 10417356 34153 - 17451548 36883 2003630 . SAE2 (19 11,759,529 6729006
Fumiture and fixture 142672385 2B18E15 - 17083124 HA9193 18690534 - 63169727 107 661477 919319%
Vehides 2139285 2485998 - 46252854 4274556 3297700 - 1572416 38630558 17113200
Total B 747682 17508 - RLD6TS 130,384,692 43,981,998 | 124366620 577,960,155 474,363,060
Previous year 3046735 BAINIn - 604,747 a2 100,160,907 02577 -1 130384620 474,363,060 234440830
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31+t March 2007 31%t March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 8
INVESTMENTS
[Long Term, unquoted, at cost {non-traded}]
Investment in Government Securities 225,000 25,000
225,000 25,000
SCHEDULE 9
INVENTORY
Food and beverages 5,375,835 4,279,497
Stores and spare parts 2,655,008 2,681,353
8.030.843 6,960,850
SCHEDULE 10
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months:
- Considered good 6,975,469 50,072
- Considered doubtful - 3,364,139
6,975,469 3,414,211
Other debts
- Considered good 68,585,651 46,487,587
- Considered doubtful - a03,727
75,561,120 50,305,525
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 6,975,469 3,813,787
68,585,651 46,491,738
A reconciliation of the provision for doubtful debts is provided below:
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,813,787 1,073,857
Add: Additional provisions created during the year 4,692,752 3,217,330
Less: Debts written off 1,531,070 477,400
Balance at the end of the year 6,975,469 3,813,787
SCHEDULE 11
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash balances on hand 3,732,335 5.812,605
Banks halances with Scheduled banks :
In Current Accounts (a) 67,925,751 215,560,867
In Exchange Earners Foreign Currency Account 1,108,222 5,905,326
In Deposit Account {b} 1,191,491,444 1,196,611,719
In Margin Money () 19,831,987 16,422,694
1,284,089,739 1,440,313,211
Note:

a} At 317 March 2007, current accounts include Rs. 5,511,556 {31"March 2006 — Rs 82,489,172) representing unutilised
proceeds from the Company's IPO.

b) Asat 31" March 2007, deposit accounts include unutilised public issue proceeds amounting to Rs 1,031,664,797 (2006 -
Rs 1,600,000,000) which has been temporarily invested with banks until utilization for the specific objects of the IPO.

¢ Margin Money represents bank guarantee given by the Company for imports at concessional duty rates under various
Export Promotion Capital Goods ('EPCG’) licenses and proposed projects and letters of credit for imported purchases. These
deposits are to be released between years 2012 and 2014.
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31+ March 2007 31= March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 12
LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits {a) 386,224,534 108,570,041
prepaid expenses {b} 27,845,964 23,234,124
Advances to suppliers 16,986,867 3,055,502
Due from related parties {a] 142,191 16,242,226
Advance tax (net of provision} 15,188,198 827,591
Interest Accrued and not due 321,715 14,628,274
Others 31,879,165 6,682,185
478,588,634 173,239,943

Note:

a} Security deposits includes Rs 60,000,00G (31 March 2006 - Rs 60,000,000) being a interest-free, refundable security deposit
with the Managing Director for his 50 percent interest in the land taken on lease from the KSTDC for the Royal QOrchid
Hotel. This deposit is repayable on the expiration of the lease agreement with the KSTDC. (Refer Notes 6 and 9 in
Schedule 22).

Security deposits also include Rs 10,000,000 (31 March 2006 — Rs 10,000,000) heing an interest free, refundable lease
deposit with companies under the same management for the buildings and assets at Royal Orchid Harsha. This amount is
repayable on the termination of the lease. {(Refer Notes 6 and 9 in Schedule 22}.

Security deposits also include Rs 11,253,000 (31 March 2006 - 11,253,000) being amount paid to National Stock Exchange
as a security deposit for the public issue of equity shares in accordance with Clause 42 of the Listing Agreement. This
depaosit is refundable on receipt of a No-Objection Certificate from the Securities Exchange Board of India in accordance
with the SEBI {Disclosure and Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000.

b} Prepaid expenses include Rs. 12,116,115 {31 March 2006 — Rs 9,%89,041) representing insurance premium paid towards
two Keyman Insurance policies taken by the subsidiary lcon Hospitality Private Limited for two of its directors. The premiums
are for the period from 31 March 2007 to 31 March 2008

¢) Dues from related parties represent amounts dues from companies under the same management. The maximum amount
cutstanding during the year ended 31 March 2007 was Rs 16,244,226 (31 March 2006 - Rs. 16,242,226).

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 13
LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors 40,316,278 33,323,515
Accrued expenses 31,444,708 26,013,979
Dues to employees 12,564,137 8,762,070
Duties and taxes payable 29,158,313 22,226,664
Dues to related parties 19,260 441,793
Security deposits {a) 3,035,500 2,894,710
Lease rent payable 11,602,672 -
Other liabilities (b) 66,276,252 65,703,340
194,417,120 159,366,071
Note:

a} Security deposit includes Rs 2,980,000 (31 March 2006 — Rs 2,500,000) received from an entity under the same management
for premises space provided tc them for no charge. This amount is repayable on vacation of the aforesaid premises. {Refer
Note 9 in Schedule 22).
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b} The Company acquired a 51 percent equity interest in Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited through the shareholders’
partnership agreements dated 21 November 2005 and 31 January 2006. In accordance with the terms of these agreements
between the Cormpany, its subsidiary and the erstwhile promoters, the Company or its subsidiary would not be liable for any
amounts to the previous promaoters/directorsimembers or relatives of such directors on account any dues or loans or any such
dues, prior to the date of the Company’s investment. However, the subsidiary continues to record a current liability of
Rs 23.3 million representing amounts due to the promoters and their relatives as it is currently under discussions. Accordingly,
the current liabilities of the Company and the goodwill on this investment are overstated by Rs 23.3 million in these
conselidated financial statements.

31t March 2007 31 March 2006
Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 14
PROVISIONS
Provision for leave encashment 2,670,293 2,416,333
Provision for gratuity 3,706,843 3,253,218
Proposed dividend 163,403,790 136,169,825
Tax on proposed dividend 27,770,474 19,097,818
196,951,400 160,937,194
A recenciliation of the provision for leave encashment is provided below:
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,416,333 759,748
Add: Additional provisions created during the year - 1,743,623
Less: Payments made during the year 346,040 87,038
Balance at the end of the year 2,070,293 2,416,333
A reconciliation of the provision for gratuity is provided below:
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,253,218 1,620,440
Add: Additional provisions created during the year 1,181,370 1,687,462
Less: Paid during the year 727,745 54,684
Balance at the end of the year 3,706,843 3,253,218
SCHEDULE 15
OPERATING INCOME
Room revenues 824,890,519 629,687,450
Food and beverages 284,814,375 182,534,187
Other service charges 27,314,941 22,298,279
Management fees - 771,836
1,137,019,835 835,291,752
SCHEDULE 16
QTHER INCOME
Interast income [Tax deducted at source Rs. 19,176,033
{2006- Rs 4,026,636)] 83,253,982 17,593,276
Gain from sale of mutual funds 7,721,320 -
Miscellaneous income 13,585,316 6,908,783
104,560,618 24,502,059
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31 March 2007

31t March 2006

Rs. Rs.
SCHEDULE 17
FOOD AND BEVERAGES CONSUMED
Opening stock 6,960,852 37,220,559
Add: Purchases during the year 97,144,569 31,136,872
104,105,421 68,357,431
Less: Closing stock 5.375.835 6,960,852
Consumption for the year 98,729,586 61,396,579
Note:
Consumption above is net of Rs 5,495,55C (31 March 2006 - Rs 3,986,284)
representing amounts utilised for internal consumption which has been
classified under staff welfare.
SCHEDULE 18
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries, wages and honus 98,168,211 64,280,148
Contribution to provident fund 5,895,736 4,238,498
Staff welfare 9,326,377 9,475,134
Gratuity 502,773 1,375,488
113,893,097 79,369,268
SCHEDULE 19
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Lease rent for hotel properties 99,816,064 79,644,775
Linen and room supplies 26,774,954 12,158,591
Catering supplies 7,108,421 2,723,670
Other kitchen supplies 8,231,065 10,015,656
Linen, uniform washing and laundry expenses 8,866,399 7,168,981
Power, fuel and water 61,932,713 48,483,974
Hiring charges 11,712,100 3,621,722
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 24,027,559 7,769,545
- Machinery 3,785,140 2,989,466
- Furniture and fixtures - 6,847,187
- Others 3,266,026 8,857,081
Contractor charges 2,342,671 1,522,687
Management fees 791,607 606,446
258,654,719 192,409,781
SCHEDULE 20
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Commission, brokerage and discount 39,515,914 27,954,554
Advertising and business promotion 16,932,027 13,320,425
Legal and professional charges 16,070,825 8,770,936
Rates and taxes 21,112,974 10,121,278
Communication expenses 11,189,306 8,987,941
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31t March 2007

31 March 2006

Rs. Rs.

SCHEDULE 20 (Contd..)
Printing and stationary 9,251,713 4,904,699
Travelling and conveyance 9,197,193 6,559,684
Directors’ remuneration 17,904,827 13,419,491
Directors’ commission 8,820,434 5,587,282
Audit fees 1,611,771 1,462,069
Provision for doubtful debts 4,692,752 3,217,319
Bad debts written off - 891,980
Advance written off - 2,274,834
Insurance 13,308,409 12,484,702
Music and entertainment 4,426,168 4,751,867
Carriage inwards 1,829,603 1,584,172
Security charges 4,511,362 3,076,146
Bank charges 825,226 614,011
Loss on disposal of investment - 427,000
Miscellaneous expenses 17,753,748 11,760,922

198,854,252 142,171,312
SCHEDULE 21
INTEREST
Interest on term loan 17,508,984 15,376,072
Cther finance charges 2,942 -
Interest on vehicle loan 681,019 652,154
Interest on overdraft - 55,221
Interest on unsecured loans 7,103,424 -

25,296,369 16,083,447
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANTIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE - 22

1.
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Background

Royal Orchid Hotels Limited {"the Company‘} was incorporated on 3" January 1986 as Universal Resorts Limited to carry
on the business and management of hotelstholiday resorts and related services. The name of the Company was changed
to Royal Orchid Hotels Limited on 10" April 1997. The Company currently operates five properties - Royal Orchid Hotel,
Bangalore, Royal Orchid Harsha, Bangalore, Royal Orchid Metropole, a heritage property in Mysore, Royal Qrchid Jaipur,
in Jaipur and Maruti Comferts and Inn. Additionally the Company has also entered into a hotel operation agreement for
Royal Orchid Central, with its subsidiary, lcon Hospitality Private Limited ('lcon’) and with Maruti Comforts and Inn Private
Limited.

The Company acquired the business of Royal Orchid Harsha effective 7" July 2002 on an ongoing basis. Prior to 1 July 2002,
Royal Orchid Harsha was managed and operated by a company under the same management. Pursuant to this
arrangement, the Company has not acquired the underlying land, building and the related assets, which continue to be
leased from the owners. Consequently, in the financial statements of the Company, only the transactions and related
working capital balances, such as sundry debtors and creditors, have been included with that of the Company.

The Company has leased Royal Orchid Metropole (including the land and buildings}, from the Government of Karnataka
for a non-cancellable period of 15 years. For further details refer to Note 5.

Icon Hospitality Private Limited was incorporated on 28" January 2003 as a private limited company in India providing
hospitality services. The Company operates Royal Grchid Central in Bangalore, India and has leased the land, building and
certain assets from Sacred Hospitality Private Limited for a period of 25 years.

Basis of cansolidation and group structure

on 4" April 2003, the Company entered into a tri-partite Shareholders’ Partnership Agreement (‘the Agreement’} with
Icon and the minority shareholders. As per the terms of the Agreement, equity shares of the subsidiary would be held
by the Company and the minority holders in the ratio of 51.22 percent and 48.78 percent, with the ratio required to be
maintained throughout the tenure of the arrangement. Any changes in this ratio would result in the issuance and
allotment of additional shares to ensure the consistency of the agreed ratic.

Further, the Agreement also provided for the Company to appoint the majority of the directors to the Board of Icon, of
which one would be the Managing Director having a casting vote on all matters subject to a vote. Pursuant to this
agreement, the Company invested Rs 3,500,000 in February and March 2003 which was recorded as share application
money pending allotment. The shares against this application were allotted on 24" March 2004,

Although in April 2003, the Company did not have control over the subsidiary through ownership of more than 50 per
cent of the voting power, on entering into the Agreement, the Company obtained the right to control the Board of
Directors of lcon. Consequently, in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 — Consolidated Financial Statements, the
operations of the subsidiary were been consolidated with the operations of the Company effective 4" April 2003.

As mentioned above, these shares were allotted on 24" March 2004 and represent 58.33 per cent of the paid up share
capital of the subsidiary. As the Agreement provides for the shareholding ratio to be maintained, any excess allotment
of equity shares does not provide additional control over the operations of the subsidiary. Consequently, Minority
Interest has been recorded at 48.78 percent of the voting capital of the subsidiary as against 41.67 percent for all periods
(which represented the percentage of shares held by the minority shareholders). Further, on 1" April 2005, the Company
transferred 4,270 equity shares held by it in lcon Hospitality Private Limited, to the minority shareholders, for no
consideration, thereby making the equity interest of the Company and mincrity sharehclders consistent with the provisions
of the Agreement.
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During the year ended 31" March 2006, the Company acquired a 51% equity interest in Maruti Comforts and Inn Private
Limited through a step acquisition, wherein it acquired 25% effective November 2005 and subsequently an additional
25% effective February 2006,

The list of the Company's subsidiaries with the percentage holding as at 31" March 2007 is as follows :

Name of subsidiary Country of incorporation Percentage of holding
Icon Hospitality Private Limited India 51.22%
Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited India 51.00%

Royal Crchid Hyderabad Private Limited India 100.00%

AB Holdings Private Limited India 100.00%

Royal Grehid Jaipur Private Limited India 100.00%

Royal Orchid South Private Limited India 100.00%

Royal Orchid East Private Limited (subsidiary of

AB Holdings Private Limited} India 96.00%

The consolidated operations of the Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the Group’,

Capital reserve represents the excess of the Company's share in the equity of lcon Hospitality Private Limited over the
cost of the investment at the date of the shareholders’ partnership agreement. Goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of the company’s investment over the net asset of Maruti Comforts and Inn Private Limited at the date of the
investment.

3. Significant accounting policies

£

it

.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {"ICAI}. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting periods. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates used by
management in the preparation of these financial statements include the estimates of the economic useful lives of
the fixed assets, provision for bad and doubtful debts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consclidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries, which
are more than 50% owned or controlled. Please refer to Note 1 for the description of the Group.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures for the preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements as laid down under Accounting Standard -21 prescribed by the
ICAl. The consolidated financial statements have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding the book values
of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balancesftransactions and
resulting unrealized profits in full. The amounts shown in respect of reserves comprise the amount of the relevant
reserves as per the balance sheet of the parent company and its share in the post-acquisition increase in the
relevant reserves of the consolidated entity.
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Vit

Minority interest represents the amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date on which investment in a
subsidiary is made and its share of movements in the equity since that date. Any excess consideration received from
minority shareholders of subsidiaries over the amount of equity attributable to the minority on the date of investment
is reflected under Reserves and Surplus.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies across the Group.
Revenue recognition

Revenues comprise income from the sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services during a guest’s stay at the
hotel. Room revenue is recognized based on occupation and from sale of food and beverages and other allied
services, as the services are rendered.

Unbilled revenues represent revenues recognized which have not been billed to the customers at the balance sheet
date and are billed subsequently.

Fixaed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. All costs relating to acquisition and installation of
fixed assets are capitalised. Advances paid towards acquisition of fixed assets before the financial year ended are
classified as capital work in progress.

Financing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets are also included to the extent they relate to the period till
such assets are ready to be put to use.

The carrying amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date when required to assess whether they are recorded
in excess of their recoverable amounts, and where carrying values exceed this estimated recoverable amount,
assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Expenditure directly relating to expansion is capitalized only if it increases the life or functionality of an asset beyond
its ariginal standard of performance.

Depreciation

Cepreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line method, using the higher of the rates specified in
Schedule XIV to the Companies, Act, 1956 or rates based on management estimates of the economic useful lives of
such assets. These rates are specified below:

Asset Category Rates of Depreciation (%)
Plant and machinery 4.75% to 20%
Office equipment 4.75%
Computers and related equipment, including Software 16.21%
Furniture & fittings 9.50%
Vehicles 9.50%

Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. Leasehold improvements
(including improvements to buildings) are amartized over the period of the lease.

Goodwill

Goodwill on consolidation is not amortised and is tested forimpairment on an annual basis. Goodwill on acquisition
of entities is amortised over a period of five years.
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viii. Impairment of assets

.

XP.

XFF.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss
and is recognised in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

inventory

Inventory comprises stock of food and beverages and operating supplies and is carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition
and is determined on a Weighted Average hasis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary
foreigh currency assets and liabilities are translated into rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance
sheet date. The differences in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign
currency transactions, other than those related to fixed assets are recognised in the profit and loss account. Exchange
differences in respect of liabilities incurred to acquire fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying cost of fixed assets,

Leases
finance leases

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments
at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the |ease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged
directly against income. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

For hotel properties i.e. land and buildings, taken on leases along with related assets as a part of a combined lease
arrangement, the Group determines whether these assets acquired are integral to the land and building. If these
assets are integral, the Group analyses the nature of the lease arrangement on a combined basis for all assets. If
the assets are not integral to the land and building, the Group evaluates each asset individually, to determine the
nature of the lease.

If there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, capitalized
leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Cperating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term,
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss
account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirernent benefits

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan in accordance with the rules of the Group based on an
actuarial valuation carried out at the balance sheet date, by an independent actuary. Contributions payable to the
recegnized provident fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme, which are defined contribution schemes, are
charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.
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Xiv.

AW

Xvi.

Leave encashment

The Group provides for the leave encashment liability at the balance sheet date based on the accumulated leave
balance of the employees and the last drawn salary.

Taxes on income

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred taxes. Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year
timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences
of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets are recognised
on carry forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax
assets can be realised against future taxable profits.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realised.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share
to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares).

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probahly requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but prohably will
not, require an outflow of rescurces. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Earnings Per Share ('EPS’)

Year ended Year ended
31t March 2007 31« March 2006

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 27,233,965 20,994,370

(Rs) {Rs.)
Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders 352,568,477 230,488,398
Basic and diluted earnings per share 12.95 10.98
Nominal value per equity share 10 10

On 28" September 2005, at the Annual General Meeting members of the Company approved the issuance of a bonus
share for every equity share held in the Company on 1" September 2005. For the purpose of calculating EPS, the effact of
the bonus issue has been considered for all periods presented.
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5. Leases

Operating leases
The key operating lease arrangements entered into by the Company are summarised below:

Hotel Royal Orchid

The Cempany has entered inte various non-cancellable tri-partite agreements along with its Managing Director and the
Karnataka State Tourism Development Corporation ('KSTDC') to lease lands on which the hotel premises has been
constructed and adjacent areas. The primary lease periods for these agreements is 30 years and are further extendable
by a period between 10 to 30 years at the option of the Company and carry an escalation provision for the increase in
annual rent by 15 per cent every 10 years thereafter.

Additionally, the Company has also entered into an agreement with its managing director for the use of his 50 percent
interest in the leased lands with the value of this consideration being determined at Rs 60 million, payable as an interest
free security deposit repayable on the termination of the lease with KSTDC. This consideration could be discharged
either in cash or through the issue of equity shares of the Company. The Company discharged this consideration
through the allotment of 6 million equity shares at par through July 1999. (Refer Schedule 1 and Schedule 12).

Royal Orchid Harsha

Effective July 2002, the Company entered into a tri-partite agreement with Hotel Stay Longer Private Limited and Baljees
Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited, Companies under the same management, to lease the hotel premises and
related assets at Royal Orchid Harsha. This agreement was for an initial period of 11 months, renewable at the option
of the Company and it has deposited an interest-free security deposit of Rs 10 million with Baljees Hotels and Real Estate
Private Limited which is repayable on the termination of the lease agreement.

This agreement has been revised effective 1" September 2005 for a period of eleven months with an option to renew for
a further 22 months. As per the agreement, the Company is required to make annual payments at 33 % of gross room
revenues or a minimum committed amount, whichever is higher. This lease charge is paid to Hotel Stay Longer Private
Limited and Baljees Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited at a pre-determined ratio of 20% and 80% respectively.
(Refer Note 8).

Royal Orchid Metropole

In May 2004, the Company entered into a lease agreement with Jungle Lodges and Resorts Limited {'JLR’}, a Government
of Karnataka Undertaking for the use of the land and building representing Royal Orchid Metropole at Mysore for a
nen-cancellable period of 15 years. As a consideration, the Company is required to pay an annual amount comprising a
fixed charge per annum and a revenue share representing 10% of the annual revenues in excess of Rs 25 million. As the
commercial operations commenced only in October 2004, no revenue share charge has been recorded during the period
ended 30 September 2005. As a part of this consideration, the Company has also issued a bank guarantee of ks & million
1o the lessor for the period of the lease.

Royal Orchid Central

As indicated in Note 1 of this schedule, the business of lcon comprises revenues from the operation of the Royal Orchid
Central at Bangalore. This operation is carried out through a lease entered into with Sacred Hospitality Company
Limited in January 2003. As per the provisions of this arrangement, the Company has leased the land, the associated
hotel building and cther assets necessary for the operation of the hotel under a non-cancellable cperating lease
arrangement for a period of five years. This agreement was renewed in June 2004 extending the period of the lease for
a further period of 20 years ending on 30" January 2028.

As per the agreement, the Company is required to make annual payments at 33 percent of net room revenues determined
after reducing certain allowable expenses from the room revenues for the peried, or a minimum committed amount,
whichever is higher. This lease includes an escalation provision of 15 percent from the previous rent, every three years
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commencing from July 2010. This agreement also requires the Company to invest Rs 50 million towards renovation and
improvement of the concerned property within three years from the date of the arrangement or within six months from
obtaining a favourable order from the Supreme Court of India frefer section 6 (a)) on the matter currently pending
before it.

Rayal Orchid Brindavan

In March 2006, the Company entered into a lease agreement with Jungle Lodges and Resorts Limited {JLR"), a Government
of Karnataka Undertaking for the use of the land and building representing Hotel Krishna Raja Sagar at Mysore for a
non-cancellable period of 15 years commencing from the readiness date. As a consideration, the Company is required to
pay an annual amount comprising a fixed charge per annum and a revenue share representing 10% of the annual
revenues in excess of Rs 25 million..

Property at Hyderabad

In December 2004, the Company has entered into a lease arrangement for leasing a hotel property in Hyderabad. This
arrangement has an initial period of 25 years which commence on the handover of the constructed property 1o the
Company by the lessor. The lease rent comprises a fixed rate per square foot constructed which maybe enhanced by
12% every three years from the commencement of the lease peried. In the event that the Company withdraws from the
arrangement during the construction period, the Company is liable to pay the lessor, 2 sum of Rs 5 million (if the
withdrawal is within 12 months of the date of construction and Rs 10 million, if the withdrawal is after that period.

Lease expense

The lease expense for cancellable and non-cancellable operating leases for the year ended 31" March 2007 was
Rs 99,816,064 (31" March 2006 — Rs 79,644,775), as the same is currently under renovation.

The details of lease commitments in terms of minimum |ease payments within the non-cancellable period are as follows :

2007 2006
Payments falling due: Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.)
WwWithin 1 year 47,828,611 46,678,611
Later than one year but not later than five years 193,196,073 174,066,157
Later than 5 years 1,095,994,901 1,153,953,428
TOTAL 1.337,019,585 1,379,698,196

The above commitments does not include the lease payments amounting to Rs.137 million in respect of Hotel Krishna
Raja Sagar, for the property at Mysore payable over 15 years from the date of readiness.

Commitments and contingencies
a) Litigation

i)  The Company has been named as a defendant in two civil suits filed restraining the Company from using certain
parts of land taken on lease from the KSTDC for the operation of the Royal Orchid Hotel, which are adjacent to the
hotel premises. Consequently, these lands are currently not being utilised by the Company. These cases are pending
with the Civil Courts and scheduled for hearings shortly,. Management believes that these cases will be settled in its
favour and will not adversely effect its operations.

b) Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at 31 * March 2007
- Rs. 4,570,600(31" March 2006 — Rs 25,025,224).
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¢} Export obligation

The Company has received variocus Export Promotion Capital Goods (‘EPCG') licenses which entitles it to import
capital goods at a concessional rate of duty. Against these imports the Company has an export obligation equal to
eight times the duty amount saved. The Company’s export turnover till date is in excess of this chligation.

d) Other matters

Sacred Hospitality Company Limited (‘Sacred Hospitality') has permitted the Company's subsidiary, Icon Hospitality
Private Limited, vide a deed of license dated January 31" 2003, to use its license to sell liguor and the retail sale of
bulk beer at the Royal Orchid Central for a consideration included in the lease rentals. In terms of the license issued
for Indian/ foreign liquer to Sacred Hospitality, Royal Orchid Central (previously Central Park) was permitted to
possessfsell Indian/ foreign liquor and for retail sale of bulk beer. In accordance with the terms of the deed of
license, the revenues from such sales are recorded in these financial statements and Icon Hospitality has been
paying the excise on behalf of Sacred Hospitality in respect of the sale of liguor and the retail sale of beer for the
license to the appropriate authorities, which means that Sacred Hospitality has assigned the right to use the license
to Icon Hospitality, which is not in terms of the license issued to Sacred Hospitality. However, based on independent
legal advice received, the Company is informed that this transaction is not a violation of the Karnataka State Excise
Act, 1961 and that the Company will not be subject to any penalties or levies. Accordingly, this transaction will not
have an adverse impact on the Company’s financial statements and accordingly no provision for any penalties or
levies has been made in these financial statements.

7. Payments to directors
Year ended Year ended
31" March 2007 31" March 2006
Rs. Rs.
a) Salary and allowances 17,904,827 13,419,491
b) Commission 5,512,771 2,618,804
<) Perquisites - 59,814
d} Gratuity - 606,812
TOTAL 23,417,598 16,704,921
Note:

Directors’ remuneration includes remuneration payable to the Directors of both the holding and subsidiary company.

As per the provisions of Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956, remuneration payable to directors not in the whole time
employment of the Company cannot exceed 3 percent of the net profits for the year, without the prior approval of the
Central Government. The total remuneration paid to the directors during the year ended 31" March 2007 exceeds the
limits as specified in Section 309 by Rs 7,128,080 {31" March 2006 - Rs 7,035,536 ). The Company has applied for the Central
Government approval under Section 309 of the Companies Act, 1956 and the reply for the same is awaited.
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8. Related party transactions

i Partfes where control exists

Parties where control exists include

Name of party

Nature of relationship

Chander K Baljee

Arjun Baljee

Harsha Farms Private Limited

Baljee Hotels and Real Estate Private Limited
Hotel Staylonger Private Limited

Presidency College of Hotel Management

Key management personnel
Relative of Key management personnel
Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors

/. Transactions with related parties during the year

Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year include:

Name of Party

Nature of relationship

Chander K Baljee

Arjun Baljee

Presidency Caterers

Harsha Farms Private Limited

Royal Orchid Banjara Private Limited

Baljees Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited
Hotel Staylonger Private Limited

Key management personnel

Relative of Key management perscnnel
Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors
Entity controlled by Directors

The transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2007 is summarised below:

Entity Key Relatives
Nature of transaction controlled | Management of key Total

by directors Personnel | management

personnel
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Lease rent paid to related parties 18,223,476 - - | 18,223,476
Dues

Remuneration - 17,904,827 1,440,000 | 19,344,827
Commission - 4,410,217 1,102,554 5,512,771
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The transactions with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2006 is summarised below :

Entity Key Relatives
Nature of transaction controlled | Management of key Total
by directors Personnel | management
personnel
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
General and administrative expenses incurred
on behalf of related parties charged to related
parties 2,315,010 - - 2,315,010
Lease rent paid to related parties 11,212,122 - - | 1,212,122
Payments received on behalf of related parties 8,906,199 - - 9,906,159
Payments made on behalf of related parties 6,019,495 - - 6,019,495
Purchases made on behalf of associates charged 1,942,301 - - 1,942,301
Loans to related parties 5,344,850 - - 5,344,850
Remuneration - 13,674,400 411,717 | 14,086,117
Commission - 2,368,197 250,607 2,618,804

Other transactions

a) Asdiscussed in Schedule 4, the horrowing from HUDCO has been backed by the personal guarantees of Mr. Chander
K. Baljee, the Managing Director of the Company and Mrs. Sunita Baljee, Director of the Company and a corporate
guarantee from Baljees Hotels and Real Estates Private Limited.

b} The Company has also entered inte an arrangement with Presidency College of Hotel Management (an associate)
whereby the associate is provided the use of a part of the Royal Orchid Hotel premises rent free against a refundable
security deposit of Rs. 2,980,000 (2006 - Rs. 2,500,000)

Balances receivable/ {payable) from/to related parties as at 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006 is summarised below:

31" March 2007 31" March 2006

{Rs)) {Rs.)
Dues from subsidiaries 142,191 16,242,226
Security deposit given to entity controlled by Directors 10,000,000 10,000,000
Security deposit given to key management personnel 60,000,000 60,000,000
Security deposit received from entity controlled by Directors (2,980,000) {(2,500,000)

9. Segmental Information

The Company’s business comprises the operation of hotels, the services of which represent one business segment as they
are subject to risks and returns that are similar to each other. Further the Company derives its entire revenues from
services rendered in India. Consequently, the disclosure of business and geographic segment - wise information is not
applicable to the Company.

10.  Prior year comparatives

Prior year figures/balances have been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s representation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chander K. Baljee Naresh K. Malhotra A Someswara Rao
Managing Director Director Company Secretary
Bangalore

15 June 2007
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